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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 17th Annual General Meeting of the Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences 
Limited will be held on Thursday, the 8th day of August, 2019 at 4.00 PM, at “KIMS Hospitals” # 1-8-31/1, 
Minister’s Road, Secunderabad - 500003 to transact the following business:

A.	 ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.	 Adoption of financial statements:

	 To consider and adopt the audited standalone and consolidated financial statements of the Company 
for the financial year ended 31st March 2019 and the reports of the Board of Directors (“the Board”) 
and Auditors thereon. 

2.	 Appointment of Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao as a director liable to retire by rotation:

	 To appoint a director in place of Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao (DIN No: 00008985) who retires by rotation and, 
being eligible, seeks re-appointment. 

	 “RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act 2013, the approval of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for 
reappointment of Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao (DIN: 00008985) as a director, to the extent that he is liable to 
retire by rotation.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any director or the company secretary of the Company be and is hereby 
severally authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to 
give effect to this resolution.”

3.	 To consider and appoint statutory auditors and to fix their remuneration and in this regard to consider and 
if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and all other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Companies Act 2013 and the rules made there under (including statutory modification(s) and 
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) the appointment of M/s. S. R. Batliboi & Associates 
LLP, Chartered Accountants, having Registration No.- (101049W/ E300004), as Statutory Auditors of 
the Company be and is hereby approved, for a term of 5 years i.e. from conclusion of 17th AGM to the 
conclusion of 22nd AGM, at such remuneration (plus service tax, out of pocket expenses and travelling 
expenses etc.,) as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company and the 
Auditors.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the said Audit fee may be paid to the Auditors on a progressive billing on 
the basis of the schedule of work to be agreed between the Auditors and the Company”.

B.	 SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4.	 To approve the loan, guarantee or security under section 185 of Companies Act, 2013.

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Special 
Resolution.

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended 
by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, approval of members of the Company be and is hereby 
accorded for loan(s) made/to be made, including loan represented by way of Book Debt (the “Loan”) 
and/or giving of guarantee(s), and/or providing of security(ies) in connection with any Loan taken/
to be taken by Kurnool Rainbow Hospitals Private Limited, subsidiary Company, upto an aggregate 
amount of Rs. 90 Crores (Rupees Ninety crores only).
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	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board of Directors 
of the Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Board”), be and is hereby authorized to negotiate, 
finalise and agree to the terms and conditions of the aforesaid loan/ guarantee/ security, and to take 
all necessary steps, to execute all such documents, instruments and writings and to do all necessary 
acts, deed and things in order to comply with all the legal and procedural formalities and to do all such 
acts, deeds or things incidental or expedient thereto and as the Board may think fit and suitable.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao, Managing Director or M. Uma Shankar, Company 
Secretary of the company be and is hereby severally authorized to sign/digitally sign all such necessary 
e-forms as may be required to be filed under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under 
and as amended from time to time for giving effect to the said resolution.

5.	  Approval of inter-corporate loans & investments in excess of limits.

	 To consider and if thought fit to pass, the following resolution, with or without modification(s) as Special 
Resolution.

	 RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 186 of the Companies act 2013 (as amended or 
re-enacted from time to time) read with  rule no 11  & 13 the Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers) 
Rules, 2014 and subject to such approvals, consents, sanctions and permissions of the appropriate 
authorities, departments or bodies as may be necessary, the consent be and is hereby accorded to 
grant loans or make investment or provide security or guarantee for an amount(s) exceeding 60% of 
paid-up capital, free reserves and securities premium account or 100% of free reserves and securities 
premium account but not exceeding Rs 900 crores on such terms and conditions as may be decided 
by the Board  from time to time. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to rule no 12 of the Companies (Meeting of Board and its 
Powers) Rules, 2014 and section 117 of the Companies Act 2013 (as amended or re-enacted from 
time to time) read with  rule no 24 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules 2014, 
Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao, Managing Director and Uma Shankar Mantha, Company Secretary of the Company 
be and is hereby severally authorized to making necessary entries in the Register of Investment, 
authenticate it and file form no MGT-14 with the Registrar of Companies. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao, Managing Director and Uma Shankar Mantha, Company 
Secretary of the Company, be and is hereby authorized to take such steps as may be necessary for 
obtaining approvals, statutory, contractual or otherwise, in relation to the above and to settle all 
matters arising out of and incidental thereto and sign and execute all deeds, applications, documents 
and writings that may be required, on behalf of the Company for the purpose of giving effect to the 
said Resolution.

6.	 To approve the amendment of the existing articles of association of the Company

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications(s), the following resolution as a special 
resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, approval and consent 
of the members is hereby given for adoption of the revised articles of association of the Company.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the following changes be and hereby altered/amended/included and 
adopted as follows:
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101.	General Covenants

(b)	 Other than

(i)	 the Existing Encumbrances over the 
Shares held by the Promoters as set out in 
Schedule 3 of these Articles, or 

(ii)	 the Existing Encumbrance over: (A) 
5,760,770 Shares of Dr. Bhaskar Bollieneni; 
and (B) 2,117,936 Shares of Rajyasri 
Bollineni (, for the benefit of IDBI Trusteeship 
Services Limited acting as security trustee 
for Avendus Finance Private Limited 
(“Avendus Tranferee”), details of which are 
set out in Schedule 3 of these Articles (the 
“Avendus Existing Encumbrance Shares”), 
created in accordance with the provisions 
of the facility agreement dated October 
17, 2017 by and between BVR Educational 
Institutions Private Limited, Mrs. Rajyasri 
Bollineni, Mr. Adwik Bollineni, Mr. Bhaskara 
Rao Bollineni, Mr. Abhinay Bollineni, 
Avendus Finance Private Limited and IDBI 
Trusteeship Services Limited, in its capacity 
as a security trustee for Avendus Finance 
Private Limited (the “Avendus Agreement”), 

	 the Promoters shall not create any 
Encumbrance over: (i) any of their Shares; 
or (ii) the Shares or other securities of the 
Promoters. 

(c)	 During the subsistence of the Existing 
Encumbrance over Avendus Existing 
Encumbrance Shares in favour of Avendus 
Transferee, in accordance with the 
provisions of the Avendus Agreement, 
in the limited event of enforcement or 
invocation of such Existing Encumbrance by 
the Avendus Transferee in accordance with 
the provisions of the Avendus Agreement, 
the Avendus Existing Encumbrance Shares 
shall be freely transferrable in favour of 
the Avendus Transferee, upon providing a 

Existing Article Amendment  Article

101.	 General Covenants

(b)	 Other than

(i)	 the Existing Encumbrance over the 
Shares held by the Promoters, as set out 
in Schedule 3 of these Articles; or

(ii)	 the Shares pledged/to be pledged by 
Dr. Bhaskar Rao Bollineni (“Pledgor”) 
to maintain the Required Cover (“New 
Pledge”), on a fully diluted basis, for 
securing the Avendus Secured Facilities 
in accordance with the provisions of the 
Avendus Share Pledge Agreement in 
favour of Vistra ITCL (India) Limited acting 
in the capacity of a “Security Trustee” 
under the Avendus Security Trustee 
Agreements acting for the benefit of 
the Avendus Lenders in relation to the  
Avendus Secured Facilities (such Shares 
hereinafter referred to as the “Avendus 
Pledged Shares”), 

 	 the Promoters shall not create any 
Encumbrance over any of their Shares.

(c)	 Subject to Articles 101(c)(1) and 101(c)(2), 
during the subsistence of the New Pledge 
over Avendus Pledged Shares in favour 
of the Security Trustee, in the limited 
event of enforcement or invocation of 
such New Pledge by the Security Trustee 
strictly in accordance with the provisions 
of the  Avendus Facility Agreements, 
Avendus Security Trustee Agreements 
and Avendus Share Pledge Agreement, 
the Avendus Pledged Shares shall be 
freely transferrable to enable invocation 
and subsequent sale of the Pledged 
Shares by  the Security Trustee subject to 
compliance with the provisions of Article 
101(c)(2), and without the consent of any 
of the Remaining Shareholders or Other 
Shareholders or the Promoters for such 
invocation and subsequent sale of the 
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written intimation of 10 days to the Investor 
by the Promoters, and without the consent 
of any of the Remaining Shareholders or 
Other Shareholders or the Promoters for 
such transfer to the Avendus Trasnferee, 
provided that in the event any such Transfer 
in favour of Avendus Transferee results 
in Change of Control of the Company, the 
Investor shall be permitted to exercise 
all rights available to the Investor under 
these Articles in relation to Transfer of any 
Shares, in the Investor’s sole discretion. 
Until invocation and/or enforcement of 
of such Existing Encumbrance by the 
Avendus Transferee in accordance with 
the provisions of the Avendus Agreement, 
and also upon the release of the Existing 
Encumbrance over the Avendus Existing 
Existing Encumbrance Shares, such 
Avendus Existing Encumbrance Shares 
shall be subject to the applicable Transfer 
restrictions as set out under these Articles.

Avendus Pledged Shares by the Security 
Trustee, provided that in the event 
any such Transfer in favour of Security 
Trustee and/or such subsequent sale 
of the Avendus Pledged Shares by the 
Security Trustee, the Investor shall be 
permitted to exercise all rights available 
to the Investor against the Promoters 
under the Shareholders’ Agreement 
and these Articles, in the Investor’s 
sole discretion, except in relation to 
the Transfer of Shares of the Avendus 
Pledged Shares resulting in a Change of 
Control of the Company. Until invocation 
and/or enforcement of such New Pledge 
by the Security Trustee in accordance 
with the provisions of the Avendus Facility 
Agreements, Avendus Security Trustee 
Agreements and Avendus Share Pledge 
Agreement and Article 101(c), 101(c)(1) 
and 101(c)(2), and also upon the release 
of the New Pledge over all or any of the 
Avendus Pledged Shares, such Avendus 
Pledged Shares shall be subject to the 
applicable Transfer restrictions as set 
out under these Articles.

(c)(1) In the event, after the invocation of the 
New Pledge, pursuant to any Transfer 
or series of Transfers if the Pledgor, 
Promoters or any of their Affiliates 
(including directly, indirectly or in any 
manner whatsoever) acquire the 
Avendus Pledged Shares or any rights 
therein then: (i) the limited waiver 
provided by the Investor under this 
Article 101 or any other documents in 
relation to the New Pledge shall cease to 
exist in relation to such Avendus Pledged 
Shares; and (ii) the terms and conditions 
of the Shareholders’ Agreement and 
these Articles, as applicable to other 
Shares of the Company held by the 
Pledgor or the Promoters, shall apply 
mutatis mutandis to such Avendus 
Pledged Shares.

(c)(2) In the event, the Avendus Lenders and/
or the Security Trustee invokes the 
New Pledge created for securing the 
Avendus Secured Facilities, the Investor 
or any of its Affiliates (“Avendus ROFO 
Holder”) shall have the right of first 
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offer (“Investor ROFO”) on such Avendus 
Pledged Shares, in accordance with the 
following provisions:

(A)	 prior to Transfer of the Avendus Pledged 
Shares to any Third Party, the Avendus 
Lenders and the Security Trustee shall 
give a written notice (“Avendus ROFO 
Notice”) to the Avendus ROFO Holder 
specifying entire outstanding amount in 
relation to the Avendus Secured Facilities 
as on the date of the Avendus ROFO 
Notice (including all interest, additional 
interest, penal interest, principal, any 
other accrued interest, unpaid costs, 
unpaid fees and unpaid expenses) and 
the number of Avendus Pledged Shares 
desired to be Transferred (the “Avendus 
ROFO Shares”);

(B)	 the Avendus ROFO Holder shall have 7 
(seven) calendar days from the receipt of 
a Avendus ROFO Notice to issue a price 
per Avendus ROFO Share to purchase 
all the Avendus ROFO Shares (“Avendus 
ROFO Price”) to the Avendus Lenders 
(“ROFO Price”), in writing (such notice 
being the “Avendus ROFO Acceptance 
Notice”);

(C)	 In the event, the Avendus ROFO Price for 
the Avendus ROFO Shares is above than 
and/or equal to the amount required 
to cover all the outstanding amounts 
under the Avendus Secured Facilities, 
the Avendus Lenders and the Security 
Trustee shall be bound to accept the 
Avendus ROFO Price and Transfer the 
ROFO Shares to the Avendus ROFO 
Holder and issue an acceptance letter 
to the Avendus ROFO Holder (“Avendus 
Acceptance Letter”). Such payment 
of consideration for the ROFO Shares 
and Transfer of ROFO Shares shall be 
completed within 15 (fifteen) calendar 
days from the Avendus Acceptance 
Letter. However, in the event the Avendus 
ROFO Price for the Avendus ROFO 
Shares is not sufficient to cover the entire 
outstanding amount under the Avendus 
Secured Facilities, then Avendus 
Lenders and the Security Trustee shall 
have a right to sell the Avendus ROFO 
Shares to any Third Party, provided that 
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prior to such Transfer of the Avendus 
Pledged Shares to any Third Party 
(other than the Avendus ROFO Holder) 
at a price lower than the Avendus 
ROFO Price, the Avendus Lenders and 
the Security Trustee shall inform to the 
Avendus ROFO Holder, in writing, of 
such proposed sale (“2 Avendus ROFO 
Notice”), and the Avendus ROFO Holders, 
at their sole discretion, shall have an 
option to purchase the Avendus ROFO 
Shares at the ROFO Price by providing 
the Avendus Lenders and the Security 
Trustee a firm binding offer, in writing, 
within 3 (three) calendar days from the 
receipt of the 2 Avendus ROFO Notice 
issued by the Avendus Lenders and the 
Security Trustee for the purchase the 
Pledged Shares (such notice being the 
“2 Avendus ROFO Acceptance Notice”) 
and upon receipt of 2 Avendus ROFO 
Acceptance Notice, Avendus Lenders 
shall be compulsorily required to sell the 
Avendus Pledged Shares to the Investor. 
The Transfer of Avendus Pledge Shares to 
the Avendus ROFO Holder and payment 
of consideration to the Avendus Lenders 
for sale of Pledged Shares shall be made 
within 7 (seven) calendar days from the 
2 Avendus ROFO Acceptance Notice 
date. Provided, the provisions of this 
Article 101(c)(2)(C) shall deemed to have 
been duly complied with, in the event the 
Avendus ROFO Holders fail to provide 
their notices or fail to pay the required 
consideration to the Avendus Lenders, 
in accordance with the provisions of 
this Article  101(c)(2)(C), provided that 
in such an event, the Avendus Lenders 
shall be free to sell the Pledged Shares 
to any person at a price acceptable to 
the Avendus Lenders. Such sale of the 
Pledged Shares by the Avendus Lenders 
in accordance with this Article shall 
absolve the Avendus Lenders of any and 
all liabilities in relation to the Investor 
ROFO.

(c)(3) 	 In these Articles:

	 “Avendus Facility Agreements” means, 
cumulatively (i) the facility agreement 
dated April 29, 2019 entered into inter 
alia among BRMH, Avendus Finance 
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Private Limited and the Security 
Trustee, and the debenture trust deed 
dated April 29, 2019 entered into inter 
alia among BRMH, Vistra ITCL (India) 
Limited as the debenture trustee and 
the Security Trustee; and (ii) the facility 
agreement dated May 24, 2018 entered 
into inter alia among Shangrila and 
the Avendus Finance Private Limited in 
relation to the Shangrila Facility.

	 “Avendus Lenders” means Shangrila 
Lender and the BRMH Lender;”

	 “Avendus Secured Facilities” means 
Shangrila Facility and the BRMH Facility;

	 “Avendus Security Trustee Agreements” 
means cumulatively the security trustee 
agreement dated April 29, 2019 for the 
BRMH Facility and the security trustee 
agreement dated May 24, 2018 for the 
Shangrila Facility;

	 “Avendus Share Pledge Agreement” 
means share pledge agreement dated 
April 29, 2019 executed between the 
Pledgor and the Security Trustee;

	 “BRMH Facility” means certain financial 
assistances (including by way of 
issuance of non-convertible debentures) 
availed by BRMH from Avendus Finance 
Private Limited and Avendus Structured 
Credit Fund I represented through Vistra 
ITCL (India) Limited  for an aggregate 
amount of Rs. 840,000,000 (Rupees 
Eight Hundred and Forty Million only);

	 “BRMH Lender” means Avendus Finance 
Private Limited and Avendus Structured 
Credit Fund I represented through Vistra 
ITCL (India) Limited as the debenture 
trustee;

	 “BRMH” means Bollineni Ramanaiah 
Memorial Hospitals Private Limited, a 
company in India, incorporated under 
the (Indian) Companies Act, 1956, 
with Corporate Identification Number 
U85110TG1999PTC030882 and whose 
registered office is at 300A,MLA Colony, 
Road No 12, Banjarahills Hyderabad – 
500034, Telangana, India;

	 “Pledge Security Cover” shall mean 
Pledged Share Value / entire 
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outstanding amounts under the Avendus 
Secured Facilities (including all interest, 
additional interest, penal interest, 
principal, any other accrued interest, 
unpaid costs, unpaid fees and unpaid 
expenses determined in accordance 
with the Avendus Secured Facilities).

	 “Pledged Share Value” shall mean 
the total value of the shares of the 
Company pledged by the Pledgor in 
favour of the Security Trustee, which 
upon occurrence of a Primary Issuance 
shall be determined basis the post-
money equity valuation of the shares of 
the Company or upon the occurrence of 
an IPO shall be determined on the per 
share value finalized for the IPO of the 
Company;

	 “Primary Issuance” shall mean issuance 
of any new shares or any other 
convertible securities by the Company 
(excluding any new shares issued 
pursuant to an IPO);

	 “Required Cover” shall mean:

(i)	 till occurrence of any Primary Issuance 
and/or an IPO: 13% (thirteen percent) 
of the equity shares of the Company 
on a fully diluted basis, (amounting to 
96,83,642 (Ninety Six Lakhs Eighty 
Three Thousand and Six Hundred and 
Forty Two) number of shares as of the 
date of the Avendus Share Pledge 
Agreement; 

(ii)	 upon occurrence of any Primary Issuance 
and/or a IPO: the summation of: (a) 
shares already pledged in favour of the 
Security Trustee; and (b) such additional 
number of shares of the Company (if 
any) required to ensure that the Pledge 
Security Cover is at least 3x of the entire 
outstanding of the Avendus Secured 
Facilities;

	 “Shangrila Facility” means the financial 
assistances worth Rs. 300,000,000 
(Rupees Three Hundred Million only) 
availed by Shangrila under the facility 
agreement dated 24 May 2018 entered 
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into between Shangrila, Avendus 
Finance Private Limited and IDBI 
Trusteeship Services Limited, as the 
security trustee for the facility;

	 “Shangrila Lender” means Avendus 
Finance Private Limited;

	 “Shangrila” means Shangrila Infracon 
India Private Limited, a company 
in India, incorporated under the 
(Indian) Companies Act, 1956, with 
Corporate Identification Number 
U45209TG2012PTC083011 and whose 
registered office is at 21-26C, Golden 
Enclave, Fort Grand Road Shamshabad, 
Rangareddy, Telangana – 501218 India;”

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao, Managing Director and/ or Mr. Uma Shankar Mantha, 
Company Secretary be and are hereby severally authorized to take all such steps required for giving 
effect to the said resolution.”

7.	 Payment of remuneration to Cost Auditor M/s. Sagar & Associates, for the financial  year 2019-20.

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), a remuneration of Rs. 
5,00,000/- excluding applicable taxes, being paid to M/s. Sagar & Associates, Cost Accountants who 
were appointed as the Cost Auditors of the Company by the Board of Directors, to conduct the audit 
of the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending on March 31, 2020, be and is hereby 
ratified. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to 
do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this 
resolution.”

Date: 03.07.2019	 By the order of the Board of Directors of 
Place: Secunderabad	 Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Ltd

	 Sd/-
	 Uma Shankar Mantha 
	 Company Secretary
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Notes
1.	 The Explanatory Statement, pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is enclosed and 

forms part of this Notice.
2.	 A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND 

VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER. Proxies in order to be 
effective must be received by the company not later than forty eight (48) hours before the meeting. 
Proxies submitted on behalf of limited companies, societies, etc., must be supported by appropriate 
resolutions/authority, as applicable.

3.	 A person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty in number and holding in the 
aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. 
A Member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting 
rights may appoint a single person as a proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for any other 
person or shareholder. 

4.	 In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names 
will be entitled to vote at the Meeting. 

5.	 Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting pursuant 
to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send to the Company, a certified copy of 
the relevant Board Resolution together with their respective specimen signatures authorizing their 
representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

6.	 Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts are requested to write to the Company 
at an early date, to enable the management to keep the information ready at the meeting.

7.	 The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has taken a “Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance” by 
allowing paperless compliance’s by the companies and has issued circulars stating that service of 
notice/documents including Annual Report can be sent by e-mail to its members. To support this green 
initiative of the Government in full measure, members are requested to register their e-mail addresses 
in respect of electronic holdings with the Depository through their concerned Depository Participants. 
Members who hold shares in physical form are requested to send their e-mail address to the following: 
cs@kimshospitals.com 

8.	 The Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2018-19 is being sent by electronic mode to those 
Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories, unless any Member 
has requested for a physical copy of the same.

Explanatory Statement
(Pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013)

The following Explanatory Statements, as required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, set 
out all material facts relating to the business under Item No’s. 4 to 7 of the accompanying Notice dated 
03.07.2019.

Item No. 4

The Company may be required to make loan(s) including loan represented by way of Book Debt (the “loan”) 
to and/or give guarantee(s) and/or provide security(ies) in connection with any loan, taken/ to be taken by 
Kurnool Rainbow Hospitals Private Limited, Subsidiary Company. The said loan(s)/guarantee(s)/security 
(ies) are utilized or shall be utilitzed by the subsidiary for their principal business activities and the matters 
connected and incidental thereto. 

The Subsidiary entity is covered under the sub-section 2 of the Section 185 of Companies Act, 2013 and 
hence consent of the members is being sought by way of a special resolution pursuant to Section 185 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017) for making of loan(s) 
to, and/or giving of guarantee(s), and/or providing of security(ies) in connection with any loan taken/ to 
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be taken by Kurnool Rainbow Hospitals Private Limited, subsidiary Company for an aggregate amount 
not exceeding Rs. 90 Crores (i.e. Rs. Ninety Crores) as set out in the resolution at item no. 4 and necessary 
delegation of authority to the Board for this purpose. Your Directors recommend the resolution set out at 
Item no. 4 to be passed as a special resolution by the members.

Following are the brief particulars of Loan given or guarantee given or security provided and approval 
of the further limits for the proposed loans/guarantees/securities by your Company to Kurnool Rainbow 
Hospitals Private Limited, subsidiary company.

Except Dr. B. Abhinay, Common Director, no other director or KMP are in anyway interested or concerned 
financially or otherwise.

Item No. 5

The company from time to time has made equity investments, provided loans & advances and giving 
guarantees to the companies/body corporates. As part of its expansion plans, the Company may have to 
make further investments, provide loans and give guarantees in excess of limits specified under section 
186 of the Companies Act 2013. Hence, the Company requires approval from the shareholders in a general 
meeting.

Pursuant to Section 186(2) of the Companies Act 2013, no company shall give any loan, guarantee or 
invest in any body corporate exceeding 60% of paid-up share capital, free reserves and securities premium 
account or 100% of free reserves and securities premium account, whichever is more.

Pursuant to Rule 13 of the Companies (meetings of board and its powers) rules 2014, where the aggregate 
of the loans and investments so far made, the amount for which guarantee or security so far provided to or 
all other bodies corporate along with the investment, loan, guarantee or security proposed to be made or 
given by the board, exceed the limits specified under section 186, no investment or loan shall be made or 
guarantee shall be given or security shall be provided unless previously authorized by as special resolution 
passed in a general meeting.

Name of the Subsidiary	 Particulars of loans, guarantee	 Purpose 
Company	 security provided/to be provided.

Kurnool Rainbow Hospitals	 Rs. 90 Crores.	 For principle business 
Private Limited.		  activities of subsidiary 
		  company.

Calculation of the limits as per section 186 of Companies Act 2013

Particulars	 INR in Crores
	 As on 31.03.2019 

Paid up Share capital	 74.49

Retained Earnings	 (329.21)

Securities Premium	 752.58

Adjustment Reserve	 5.76

Total of above - A	 503.62

Retained Earnings	 (329.21)

Securities Premium	 752.58

Adjustment Reserve	 5.76

Total of above - B	 429.13

60% of A above 	 302.17

100% of B above	 429.13

Since the approval is for Rs. 900 crores which is over and above the limit of Rs.429.13 crores, the Company 
requires approval from the shareholders in a general meeting.
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The Board recommends the special resolution set out at item No. 5 of the Notice for approval by the 
Members. 

None of the directors, key managerial personnel are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or 
otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No.5 of the Notice.

Item No 6 

Shangrila Infracon India Private Limited, and Bollineni Ramanaiah Memorial Hospitals Private Limited, 
companies in which Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao, is one of the promoter has availed a loan of Rs. 30 Crore (Shangrilla 
facility) and Rs. 77 Crore (BRMH facility) respectively from Avendus Finance Private Limited. Bollineni 
Ramanaiah Memorial Hospitals Private Limited further issued debentures of Rs. 7 crore to Avendus 
Structured Credit Fund I, represented through Vistra ITCL (India) Limited (BRMH Facility).

One of the conditions of the Shangrila Facility and the BRMH Facility (cumulatively the “Secured Facilities”) 
is that the obligations of the relevant Borrowers shall be secured by exclusive pari passu pledge over 13% 
(thirteen percent) of the equity shares of the Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited (Company) on 
a fully diluted basis, (amounting to 96,83,642 (Ninety Six Lakhs Eighty Three Thousand and Six Hundred 
and Forty Two) equity shares of the Company and Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao has pledged his 96,83,642 Equity 
Shares of the company.

In order to secure the rights of Avendus Finance Private Limited pursuant to pledge of 13% equity shares 
by Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao, there is a requirement for amendment to the Article 101 of the Articles of Association 
of the Company. 

Except Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao and Dr. B. Abhinay none of the directors or key managerial personnel of the 
Company, are in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at in 
the notice.

The board of directors of the Company recommends the special resolution set out in this notice for approval 
by the members.

Item No 7

The Board of Directors, approved the re-appointment of M/s. Sagar & Associates Cost Accountants as 
the Cost Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2019-20 at fees of Rs. 5,00,000/-, exclusive of 
applicable taxes.

In accordance with Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (“the Act”), the remuneration so payable to the Cost Auditors is required to be 
ratified by the Shareholders of the Company. 

None of the directors/key managerial personnel of the Company / their relatives is in any way, concerned 
or interested, financially or otherwise, directly or indirectly in the proposed resolution. 

The resolution as set out in items no. 7 of this Notice is accordingly re-commended for your approval.

Date: 03.07.2019	 By the order of the Board of Directors of 
Place: Secunderabad	 Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Ltd

	 Sd/-
	 Uma Shankar Mantha 
	 Company Secretary
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1. Financial Summary of the Company

Particulars	 Standalone	 Consolidated 
	 Rs. In Million	 Rs. In Million

	 2018-19	 2017-18	 2018-19	 2017-18
Total Revenue	 7133.86	 6313.52 	 9237.37	 6980.23  
Profit/(Loss) Before Interest and Depreciation	 609.26	 641.14 	 812.81	 1007.88  
Less: Finance Cost	 333.79	 827.88 	 407.96	 830.80 
Less: Depreciation and amortization 
expenses	 409.70	 381.07 	 521.38	 396.54  
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax	 (134.23)	 (567.81)	 (116.53)	 (219.46)
Less: Income Tax
- Current Tax	 345.55	 167.95 	 386.09	 180.84 
- Deferred Tax Charge	 (43.23)	 73.47 	 (41.54)	 74.29 
- Tax Pertaining to earlier years	 -	 3.36 	 2.15	 3.36  
Profit/(Loss) After Tax *	 (436.55)	 (812.59)	 (463.23)	 (477.95)
Add: Share of Profit / (Loss) in Associate	 0.00	 0.00 	 0.00	 18.08  
Profit/ (Loss) for the year	 (436.55)	 (812.59)	 (463.23)	 (459.87)
Add: Other Comprehensive Income	 (12.91)	 18.11 	 (12.20)	 22.55 
Total Comprehensive Income	 (449.46)	 (794.48)	 (475.43)	 (437.32)

DIRECTOR’S REPORT
To,
The Members,
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 17th Annual Report on the business and operations of the 
Company and the accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2019.

* During the year, the Company has entered into a securities subscription and purchase agreement along 
with General Atlantic Singapore KH Pte. Ltd (“new investors”), India Advantage Fund (“old investor”) 
and existing shareholders through which new investors have purchased few shares from the existing 
shareholders and entire shares from the old investors. However, during the current financial year, Profit 
and Loss account is impacted by Rs. 991.28 million due to the provisions as per the terms of the contract 
with certain shareholders. The terms of the contract with the new investors had resulted in de-recognition 
of the same. 
Excluding the above charge which has reversed during the financial year, company’s PAT for FY 2018-19 
stands at Rs. 554.73 million for standalone and Rs. 528.05 million for consolidated. 

2.	 Brief description of the Company’s working during the year/State of Company’s affair
	 a.	 KIMS Standalone: During the year under review, your Company achieved total revenue of Rs. 

7133.86 million. The total revenue grew by 13% as compared to the previous year. Loss for the year 
decreased from Rs. 794.48 million to Rs. 449.46 millions.  

	 b.	 KIMS Consolidated: During the year under review, your Company achieved total revenue of Rs. 
9237.37 million. The total revenue grew by 32.34% as compared to the previous year. Loss for the 
year increased from Rs.437.32 million to Rs.475.43 million.

	 c.	 Arunodaya Hospitals Pvt. Ltd (Subsidiary Company): has recorded the total revenue of Rs.364.46 
million during the financial year 2018-19.

	 d.	 KIMS Hospital Enterprises Pvt. Ltd (Subsidiary Company): has recorded the total revenue of 
Rs.1184.71 million during the financial year 2018-19.

	 e.	 Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited (Subsidiary Company): During the year your 
company has acquired 51% equity stake. The subsidiary company has recorded a total revenue of 
Rs. 360.80 million during the financial year 2018-19.
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	 f.	 Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited (Subsidiary Company): During the year your 
company has acquired 80% equity stake. The subsidiary company has recorded a total revenue of 
Rs. 229.36 million during the financial year 2018-19.

	 g.	 KIMS Hospitals Pvt. Ltd., KIMS Swastha Private Limited, KIMS Cuddles Pvt Ltd and KIMS Hospital 
(Bhubaneswar) Private Limited: are the subsidiaries of your Company, which are still under the 
process of setting up its infrastructure to run the hospital.

	 h.	 KIMS Sahariah Healthcare Private Limited (Subsidiary Company): As there was no business in the 
Company, the Board had decided to close the company in it meeting held on 18.01.2019 through 
Fast Track Exit Route. The subsidiary company has filed the application under the Fast Track Exit 
Route scheme with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and the said company has been struck off from 
the Registrar of Companies.

3. Change in the nature of business, if any
There was no change in the nature of Business during the year.
4. Dividend
Keeping in view the expansion plans of the Company and upgrading the available facilities at the Hospital, 
the Board has not recommended any dividend this year.
5. Transfer of Reserves
The Company has recorded a Net loss of Rs. 449.46 million (Standalone) for the period 2018-19 and the 
same was transferred to the head of Other Equity.
6. Share Capital

There was no change in Authorized Share Capital of the Company during the Financial Year 2018-19.

The paid up share capital as on 31st March 2019 is Rs. 74,48,95,520/-. During the period under review 
the company has made one allotment in the Financial Year 2018-19. The details of which are as follows:

Your Company has issued 28,64,956 equity shares on private placement basis u/s, 42 & 62 of Companies 
Act, 2013 on 20.06.2018. The company has not issued shares with differential voting rights or granted 
stock option nor sweat equity shares.
7. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
Composition of the Board: The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of the Company consists of an optimal 
combination of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors which represent a mix of 
professionalism, knowledge and experience. 
The Board brings in the guidance, leadership and an independent view to the Company’s management 
while discharging its fiduciary responsibilities, thereby ensuring that management adheres to the ethics, 
transparency and disclosure norms.
As on date of this report, the Board comprises of 7 (Seven) Directors, of whom, 3 (Three) are Executive 
Director and 4 (Four) are Non-Executive Directors. Amongst the Non-Executive Directors, 2 (Two) are 
Independent Directors and 2 (Two) are Investor Directors. The Non-Executive Directors bring an external 
and wider perspective in Board’s deliberations and decisions. The size and composition of the Board 
conforms to the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013.

Composition of the Board of Directors

Name of Director	 Designation
Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao	 Managing Director
Ms. D. Anitha	 Whole-time Director
Dr. Abhinay Bollineni	 Director & CEO
Mr. G. Rajeswara Rao	 Independent Director
Ms. Jyothi Prasad	 Independent Director
Mr. Sandeep Achyut Naik	 Investor Director
Mr. Shantanu Rastogi	 Investor Director
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Independent Directors 

Your Independent Directors fulfill all the conditions for being Independent to the Company, as stipulated 
under the Companies Act, 2013. All Independent Directors have given the declaration that they meet the 
criteria of Independence as laid down under section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Key Managerial Personnel

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act 2013, the Key Managerial Personnel 
of the Company are Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao, Managing Director, Dr. Abhinay Bollineni, Director & CEO, 
Mr. Vikas Maheshwari, Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Uma Shankar Mantha, Company Secretary.

Change in Directors during the year

During the year there were following Changes in Directors

8. Board Functioning & Meetings

Your Company’s Board plays a pivotal role in ensuring good governance. In accordance with Companies 
Act, 2013, the Board meets at least once in every quarter and if required, additional meetings are held. 

During the year ended March 31, 2019, Seven (7) Board Meetings were held:

(i) April 12, 2018 (ii) June 14, 2018 (iii) June 20, 2018 (iv) August 31, 2018 (v) December 20, 2018 (vi) 
January 18, 2019 (vii) March 28, 2019.

9. Committees of the Board 

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company has re-constituted the following 
Board level committees:
(a) Audit and Risk Management Committee; 
(b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee;
(c) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. 

Following is the composition of the committees as on the date of this Report:

Audit and Risk Management	 Nomination and Remuneration	 Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee	 Committee	 Committee

Ms. Jyothi Prasad	 Mr. G. Rajeswara Rao	 Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao

Mr. G. Rajeswara Rao	 Ms. Jyothi Prasad	 Dr. Abhinay Bollineni

Mr. Shantanu Rastogi	 Mr. Sandeep Achyut Naik	 Mr. G. Rajeswara Rao

S.No	 Name of Director	 Date of Appointment	 Type of Director

1	 Mr. Sandeep Achyut Naik	 20.06.2018	 Investor Director

2	 Mr. Shantanu Rastogi	 20.06.2018	 Investor Director

3	 Mr. Abhinay Bollineni	 18.01.2019	 Executive Director

S.No	 Name of Director	 Date of Resignation	 Type of Director

1	 Mr. Sanjeev Sehrawat	 20.06.2018	 Investor Director

2	 Mr. K. Padmanabhaiah	 20.06.2018	 Independent Director

3	 Mr. Krishnaiah Bollineni	 18.01.2019	 Non- Executive Chairman

S.No	 Name of Director	 Expiry of Term	 Type of Director

1	 Mr. Amitabha Guha	 24.01.2019	 Independent Director
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10. Nomination and Remuneration Policy
The Board on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee approved a policy for 
selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and for determining their remuneration.

11. Extract of Annual Return
As required pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of annual return in MGT 9 as a part of this 
Annual Report  is annexed herewith as ANNEXURE - I.

12. Details of Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies
The information on subsidiaries/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies pursuant to Section 129(3) of the 
Act read with rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is annexed herewith as ANNEXURE - II in 
Form AOC - 1.

13. Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties.
The particulars of every contract or arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties 
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 were on arm’s length basis. All the 
details regarding the contracts and arrangements entered with related parties is annexed herewith as 
ANNEXURE - III in Form AOC - 2

14. Auditors
The term of office of M/s. BSR & Associates LLP (having Registration Number: 116231W/W-100024), 
Chartered Accountants, shall expire upon the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting. Therefore your 
Directors are recommending S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP (having Registration Number: 101049W/ 
E300004) Chartered Accountants as Auditors of the Company for the term of 5 years i. e. from the 
conclusion of 17th AGM to the conclusion of 22nd AGM as mentioned in the Notice of 17th Annual General 
Meeting.

15. Disclosure about Cost Audit
As per the Cost Audit Orders, Cost Audit is applicable to your Company for the FY 2019-20. In view of the 
same and in terms of the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, M/s. Sagar & Associates, Cost 
Accountants have been appointed as Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of cost records of your company 
for the financial year 2019-20 and submitted their report for board approval. 
Your Company submits its Cost Audit Report with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs within the stipulated 
time period.

16. Internal Audit & Controls
The Company has appointed M/s. PKF Sridhar & Santhanam as its Internal Auditor for the Fy 2018-19. 
During the year, the Company continued to implement their suggestions and recommendations to improve 
the control environment. 
Their scope of work includes review of processes for safeguarding the assets of the Company, review of 
operational efficiency, effectiveness of systems and processes and assessing the internal control strengths 
in all areas. Internal Auditors findings are discussed with the operational departments and suitable 
corrective actions are taken as per their directions on an ongoing basis to improve efficiency in operations.

17. Statutory Auditors Report and Secretarial Auditors  Report
The Directors hereby confirm that there are no qualification, reservation or adverse remark made by the 
statutory auditors of the company or in the secretarial audit report by the practicing company secretary 
for the year ended 31st March, 2019.

18. Secretarial Audit Report 
In terms of Section 204 of the Act and Rules made there under, M/s IKR & Associates Practicing Company 
Secretary has been appointed as Secretarial Auditor of the Company. The report of the Secretarial 
Auditors is enclosed as ANNEXURE - IV to this report. The report is self-explanatory and do not call for any 
further comments.
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19. Vigil Mechanism
Pursuant to the provisions of section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, a Vigil Mechanism policy 
for directors and employees to report genuine concerns was proposed and approved by the Board of the 
Directors in the Board meeting held on February 22, 2017. The Audit and Risk Management committee will 
oversee the vigil mechanism established by the Company and the Chairman of Audit and Risk Management 
committee shall directly hear grievances of victimization of employees and directors, if any, who use vigil 
mechanism to report genuine concerns; and the policy is uploaded on the website of the Company at www.
kimshospitals.com

20. Risk Assessment and Minimization
The Board of Directors of the Company formed an Audit and Risk Management Committee with a defined 
roles and responsibilities, which includes evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management 
systems and report for approval of the Board thereon. 

21. Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the company which have 
occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the financial statements relate and 
the date of the report.
There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company between 
the end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

22. Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the 
going concern status and company’s operations in future
There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the 
going concern status and companies operations in future

23. Deposits
Your Company has not accepted any deposits from the public covered under Chapter V of the Act, during 
the year under review.

24. Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186
The details of loans, guarantees and investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the financial statements.

25. Particulars of Employees
There are no employees in the Company who falls under the purview of Section 197 read with Rule 5(2) of 
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

26. Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo
The details of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo are as 
follows:

a) Conservation of energy 
Particulars required under section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (accounts) 
Rules, 2014 is not applicable as the Company is not energy conservative; however your company is taking 
necessary steps to save the energy. 

b) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo
During the year, the total foreign exchange earned was Rs. 2,77,21,481 and Rs. 2,05,02,741 were the 
expenses.
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27. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
As per the Provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of Companies (Corporate 
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) committee has been 
formed by the company. The areas for CSR activities are promoting health care including preventive 
health care, promoting education and enhancing vocation skills to enhance employment opportunities. 
The Company is required to spend a minimum of Rs. 1,01,37,869 for the purpose of CSR for the year 
2018-19. Your Company has spent an amount of Rs. 1,01,40,000  towards CSR activity the details of which 
are mentioned in the notes to accounts in the Financial Statements. A report on CSR activity is annexed 
herewith as ANNEXURE – V to this report.

28. Human Resources 
Your Company treats its “human resources” as one of its most important assets. Your Company continuously 
invests in attracting, retention and development of talent on an ongoing basis. A number of programs that 
provide focused people attention are currently underway.

29. Obligation of company under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (prevention, prohibition 
and redressal) Act, 2013
In order to prevent sexual harassment of women at work place a new act The Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 has been notified on 9th December, 
2013. Under the said Act every company is required to set up an Internal Complaints Committee to look 
into complaints relating to sexual harassment at work place of any women employee.
Company has adopted a policy for prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace and has set 
up Committee for implementation of said policy. During the year Company has received Nil complaints

30. Directors’ Responsibility Statement
The Directors’ Responsibility Statement referred to in clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, shall state that —

(a)	 in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed 
along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b)	 the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs 
of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that 
period;

(c)	 the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and 
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d)	 the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e)	 the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
	 Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Ltd

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-

Place: Hyderabad	 Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao 	 D. Anitha	  
Date: 03.07.2019	 Managing Director	 Wholetime Director 
	 (DIN No.00008985)	 (DIN No. 00025480)

31. Transfer of Amounts to Investor Education and Protection Fund
Your Company did not have any funds lying unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years. Therefore 
there were no funds which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund 
(IEPF). 

32. Acknowledgment

Your Directors place on record their gratitude to the Central Government, State Governments and all 
other Government agencies for the assistance, co-operation and encouragement they have extended to 
the Company. 

Your Directors also take this opportunity to extend a special thanks to the medical fraternity and patients 
for their continued cooperation, patronage and trust reposed in the Company. Your Directors also greatly 
appreciate the commitment and dedication of all the employees at all levels, that has contributed to the 
growth and success of the Company. 

Your Directors also thank all the strategic partners, business associates, Banks, financial institutions and 
other stakeholders including the shareholders for their assistance, co-operation and encouragement to 
the Company during the year. 
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Annexure I

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2019
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company

(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1.	 CIN	 U55101TG1973PLC040558

2.	 Registration Date	 26/07/1973

3.	 Name of the Company	 Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

4.	 Category/Sub-category	 Company Limited by Shares/ Indian Non-Government Company. 
	 of the Company

5.	 Address of the	 D.No. 1-8-31/1,Minister’s Road, Secunderabad-3, 
	 Registered office &	 Telangana – 500003 
	 contact details	

6.	 Whether listed company	 No

7.	 Name, Address &	 Karvy Fintech Private Limited. 
	 contact details of the	 Karvy Selenium, Tower- B, Plot No 31 & 32, 
	 Registrar & Transfer Agent,	 Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally Mandal, 
	 if any.	 Hyderabad, Telangana 500032

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing 10 % or 
more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

S. No.	 Name and Description of	 NIC Code of the	 %  to total turnover of the company 
	 main products / services	 Product/service

1	 Health Care Services	 85	 100%
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III. Particulars of Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies

S.No	 Name and Address of the Company	 CIN/GIN	 Holding/	 % of	 Applicable 
			   Subsidiary/	 shares	 Section 
			   Associate	 held

1	 Arunodaya Hospitals Private Limited,	 U85110AP2008PTC058016	 Subsidiary	 57.83	 2(87) 
	 New Bridge Road, Near Datta Temple, 
	 PN Colony Junction, Srikakulam, 
	 Andhra Pradesh – 532001	

2	 KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited	 U85191TG2013PTC085793	 Subsidiary	 50.27	 2(87) 
	 Building No. 1-112/86, Survey No.55/EE, 
	 Kondapur Village,Serilingampally Mandal, 
	 Hyderabad-500084, Telangana, India	

3	 KIMS Hospitals Private Limited	 U85110AP2014PTC095812	 Subsidiary	 100	 2(87) 
	 # 78-7-15/1, SSR Plaza, Gandhipuram-3 
	 Near Sri Gowthami School, Danavaipet, 
	 Rajahmundry, Andhra Pradesh - 533103	

4	 KIMS Swastha Private Limited	 U85110MP2015PTC034786	 Subsidiary	 100	 2(87) 
	 Indore 153, Chhoti Khajrani, A.B.Road, 
	 Indore - 452011	

5	 KIMS Hospital (Bhubaneswar)	 U85300TG2017PTC115987	 Subsidiary	 100	 2(87) 
	 Private Limited 
	 Door No.1-111/55/E, Block-1, 1st Floor, 
	 Kondapur, Serilingampally, 
	 Hyderabad -500084, Telangana, India.	

6	 KIMS Cuddles Private Limited	 U85200TG2016PTC110600	 Subsidiary	 100	 2(87) 
	 Door No.1-111/55/E, Block-2, 1st floor, 
	 Kondapur Village, Serilingampally Mandal, 
	 Hyderabad – 500084, Telangana, India 	

7	 Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences	 U85110AP2018PTC108133	 Subsidiary	 51	 2(87) 
	 Private Limited	  
	 D.No. 32-11-02, Sheelanagar, BHPV Post 
	 Visakhapatnam – 530012, 
	 Andhra Pradesh, India.	

8	 Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences	 U85100AP2018PTC109004	 Subsidiary	 80	 2(87) 
	 Private Limited. 
	 D.No:1-1348, Srinagar Colony Extension 
	 Opposite to Sakshi Office, 
	 Anantapur – 515004, Andhra Pradesh, 
	 India.
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	 Secured Loans	 Unsecured	 Deposits	 Total 
	 excluding	 Loans		  Indebtedness 
	 deposits

Indebtedness at the beginning of the 
financial year	 	 	 	    
i) Principal Amount	 2,601,560,672.41	 4,055,716,399.15	 -	 6,657,277,071.56
ii) Interest due but not paid	 -	 -	 -	
iii) Interest accrued but not due	          2,630,174.00	 -	 -	      2,630,174.00
Total (i+ii+iii)	 2,604,190,846.41	 4,055,716,399.15	 -	 6,659,907,245.56
Change in Indebtedness during the 
financial year				  
* Addition	 642,931,811.00	 -	 -	 642,931,811.00
* Reduction	 1,398,354,028.49	 4,031,339,531.38	 -	 5,429,693,559.87
Net Change	 755,422,217.49	 4,031,339,531.38	 -	 4,876,761,748.87
Indebtedness at the end of the 
financial year				  
i) Principal Amount	 1,848,768,628.92	 24,376,867.77	 -	 1,871,854,106.69
ii) Interest due but not paid	 -	 -	 -	 -
iii) Interest accrued but not due	     1,291,390.00	 -	 -	       1,291,390.00
Total (i+ii+iii)	 1,848,768,628.92	 24,376,867.77	 -	 1,873,146,496.69

V. INDEBTEDNESS -Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for 
payment.
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

SN.	 Particulars of Remuneration	 Name of MD/WTD/ Manager	 Total 
			   Amount

1	 Gross salary	 Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao	 Ms. D. Anitha	 Dr. Abhinay 
				    Bollineni

	 (a) Salary as per provisions contained in 
	 section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961	 24.00	 3.00	 5.35	 32.35

	 (b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 
	 Income-tax Act, 1961	 -	 -	 -	 -

	 (c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 
	 Income- tax Act, 1961	 -	 -	 -	 -

2	 Stock Option	 -	 -	 -	 -

3	 Sweat Equity	 -	 -	 -	 -

4	 Commission	 -	 -	 -	 - 
	 -  as % of profit 
	 -  others, specify…

5	 Others, please specify	 -	 -	 -	 -

	 Total (A)	 24.00	 3.00	 5.35	 32.35 

	 Ceiling as per the Act	 -	 -	 -	 -

In Rs million per Annum

B. Remuneration to other Directors

SN.	 Particulars of Remuneration	 Name of Directors	 Total 
			   Amount

		  Ms. Jyothi	 Mr. Rajeswara 
		  Prasad	 Rao
1	 Independent Directors
	 Fee for attending board committee meetings	 0.38	 0.47			   0.85
	 Commission	 -	 -			 
	 Others, please specify	 -	 -			 
	 Total (1)	 0.38	 0.47 			   0.85 per
2	 Other Non-Executive Directors	 Mr. B. Krishnaiah	 -	 -	 -	
	 Fee for attending board committee meetings	 0.29 	 -	 -	 -	 0.29 
	 Commission					   
	 Others, please specify					   
 	 Total (2)	 0.29 				    0.29 
 	 Total (B)=(1+2)	 				    1.14
	 Total Managerial
	 Remuneration	 				  
 	 Overall Ceiling as per the Act	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -

In Rs million per Annum
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SN	 Particulars of Remuneration	 Key Managerial Personnel

		  CEO	 Uma Shankar Mantha	 Vikas Maheshwari	 Total 
			   CS	 CFO

1	 Gross salary	 -	 1.78	 6.57	 8.35

	 (a) Salary as per provisions contained 
	 in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 
	 1961	 -			 

	 (b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 
	 Income-tax Act, 1961	 -	 -	 -	 -

	 (c) Profits in lieu of salary under 
	 section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961	 -	 -	 -	 -
2	 Stock Option	 -	 -	 -	 -
3	 Sweat Equity	 -	 -	 -	 -
4	 Commission	 -	 -	 -	 -
 	 -  as % of profit	 -	 -	 -	 -
 	 others, specify…	 -	 -	 -	 -
5	 Others, please specify	 -	 -	 -	 -
 	 Total	 Nil	 1.78	 6.57	 8.35

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD In Rs million
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Annexure - II

Form No. AOC - 1

(Pursuant to the first provision to sub-section 3 of Section 129, read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014); Salient Features of Financial Statements of Subsidiary/associate companies/joint ventures 
as per Companies Act, 2013

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

Amount in Rs million

1.	 Name of Subsidiary	 Arunodaya	 KIMS	 Iconkrishi	 Saveera 
		  Hospitals	 Hospital	 Institute of	 Institute of 
		  Pvt. Ltd.	 Enterprises	 Medical	 Medical 
			   Pvt. Ltd.	 Sciences	 Sciences 
				    Pvt. Ltd.	 Pvt. Ltd.

2.	 Reporting period for the subsidiary	 Not 	 Not	 Not	 Not 
	 concerned, if different from the	 applicable	 applicable	 applicable	 applicable 
	 holding company’s reporting period	

3.	 Reporting currency and Exchange rate	 Not 	 Not	 Not	 Not 
	 as on the last date of the relevant	 applicable	 applicable	 applicable	 applicable 
	 Financial year in the case of foreign 
	 subsidiaries

4.	 Share Capital	 20.27	 245.45	 100.10	 290.10

5.	 Other Equity	 170.39	 120.85	 (67.62)	 (15.42)

6.	 Total Assets	 278.39	 841.93	 341.98	 987.75

7.	 Total Liabilities	 87.73	 475.63	 309.50	 713.07

8.	 Investments	 0.00	 0.00	 0.00	 0.00

9.	 Turnover	 364.46	 1184.71	 360.80	 229.36

10.	 Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation	 50.04	 123.86	 (98.10)	 (46.23)

11.	 Provision for Tax Expenses	 15.93	 68.07	 (27.10)	 (12.86)

12.	 Profit after Taxation	 34.11	 55.79	 (71.00)	 (33.37)

13.	 Proposed Dividend	 0.00	 0.00	 0.00	 0.00

14.	 % of Shareholding	 57.83%	 50.27%	 51.00%	 80.00%

1.	 Names of subsidiaries which are yet to	 1.KIMS Hospitals Pvt. Ltd. 
	 commence operations	 2.KIMS Swastha Pvt. Ltd 
		  3. KIMS Cuddles Private Limited 
		  4. KIMS Hospital (Bhubaneswar) Private Limited

2.	 Names of subsidiaries which have been 
	 liquidated or sold during the year.	 NIL

Additional Information:
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Part “B”: Associates/Joint Ventures - Nil

1.	 Name of Associates

2.	 Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

3.	 Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end

4.	 Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture

5.	 Extend of Holding %

6.	 Description of how there is significant influence

7.	 Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated

8.	 Net worth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited balance sheet

9.	 Loss for the year

	 i. Considered in Consolidation

	 ii. Not Considered in Consolidation

1.	 Names of associates or joint ventures which are	 Nil 
	 yet to commence operations	

2.	 Names of associates or joint ventures which have	 Nil 
	 been liquidated or sold during the year	

Additional Information:

	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
	 Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Ltd

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-

Place: Hyderabad	 Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao 	 D. Anitha	  
Date: 03.07.2019	 Managing Director	 Wholetime Director 
	 (DIN No.00008985)	 (DIN No. 00025480)
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Annexure - III

FORM NO. AOC -2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms 
length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.- NIL

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

S.No	 Related Parties	 Nature of  Transaction	 Amount in 
			   Rs. Millions

1	 Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao		  18.00

2	 Dr. Sweata Raavi		  1.80

2	 Vikas Maheswari	 Office or Place of Profit In The Company	 6.57

4	 Uma Shankar Mantha		  1.78

5	 Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao	 Leasing of property of any kind;	 0.10

6	 KIMS Hospitals Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.	 Sale, Purchase or supply of any goods	 10.90 

7	 Arunodaya Hospitals Pvt Ltd	 or material	 0.11
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ANNEXURE – IV

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To, 
The Members of, 
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 
CIN: U55101TG1973PLC040558
D.No.1-8-31/1,Minister’s Road,
Secunderabad – 500003, Telangana 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited (hereinafter called 
the ‘Company’) for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019 (the ‘Audit Period’). Secretarial Audit 
was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/
statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents 
and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit and based on the Management 
representations and undertakings, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the 
audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019 complied with the statutory provisions 
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in 
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

 We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company for the Audit year ended on 31st March, 2019, according to the provisions of: 

(i)	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under read with the  Companies 
	 (Amendment) Act, 2017;
(ii)	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 
(iii)	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to 
	 the extent of Foreign Direct Investment. 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of Secretarial Standards issued by The 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India related to Board Meetings and General Meetings.

During the audit period, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on 
examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof on test-check basis, the Company 
has complied with the following laws applicable specifically to the Company;

(a)	 The Indian Medical Council Act, 1956
(b)	 Clinical Establishments (Registration and Regulation) Act, 2010
(c)	 Drugs and Cosmetics Act, 1940
(d)	 Biomedical Waste Management Handling Rules, 2016
(e)	 The Medical Termination Of Pregnancy Act, 1971
(f)	 Pre-natal Diagnostic Techniques Act, 1994
(g)	 Transplantation of Human Organ Act, 1994
(h)	 The Pharmacy Act, 1961
(i)	 Atomic Energy Act, 1962
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(j)	 Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006
(k)	 Indian Boilers Act, 1923 

We further report that:

a.	 The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, 
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board 
of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the 
provisions of the Act.

b.	 Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes 
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and few meeting at short notice complying the 
Secretarial Standard (SS-1) and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

c.	 Decisions at the meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company and its committees thereof were 
carried through on the basis of majority. There were no dissenting views by any members of the Board 
of Directors during the audit period.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with 
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws such as direct and 
indirect tax laws and maintenance of financial records and books of accounts have been verified on limited 
review basis in this audit since the same have been subject to review by statutory financial audit and other 
designated professionals.

We further report that the compliance by the Company of applicable Medical laws which are applicable 
specifically to the hospital industry and maintenance its records have been verified on limited review basis 
in this audit since the same have been subject to review by other designated professionals engaged by the 
Company.

We further report that during the audit period there were following specific events/actions having a major 
bearing on company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, 
standards, etc.,

-	 The Company has entered into a securities subscription and purchase agreement along with General 
Atlantic Singapore KH Pte Ltd (“new investors”), India Investor Fund (“old investor”) and existing 
shareholders through which new investors have purchased few shares from the existing shareholders 
and entire shares from the old investors.

	 Further, the Company has issued and allotted 2,864,956 fully paid up Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 
at a premium of Rs. 297.16/- per share to General Atlantic Singapore KH Pte. Ltd (“new investor”) on 
20th June, 2018.

-	 The Company has withdrawn the Draft Red Herring Prospectus (“DRHP”) dated December 11, 2017 filed 
with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) considering the prevailing market conditions 
and in the interest of pursuing alternate strategies for its future plans.

-	 The Company has entered into a securities subscription and purchase agreement with Iconkrishi 
Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited (“Investee Company”) and its shareholders through which 
the Company has purchased 51% stake in the Investee Company and became a Holding Company of 
Investee Company.
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-	 The Company has entered into a securities subscription and purchase agreement with Saveera 
Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited (“Investee Company”) and its shareholders through which 
the Company has purchased 80% stake in the Investee Company and became a Holding Company of 
Investee Company.

For IKR & Associates
Company Secretaries
[Firm Regn. No. S2016TL372100]

Sd/-
Krishna Rao Inturi
Proprietor
ACS No.23071 , CP No.10486

Place: Hyderabad
Date:  03.07.2019
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To, 
The Members of, 
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 
CIN: U55101TG1973PLC040558
D.No.1-8-31/1,Minister’s Road,
Secunderabad – 500003, Telangana 

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter and further that:

1.	 The compliance of provisions of all laws, rules, regulations, standards applicable to Krishna Institute 
of Medical Sciences Limited (the ‘Company’) is the responsibility of the management of the Company. 
Our examination was limited to the verification of records and procedures on test check basis for the 
purpose of issue of the Secretarial Audit Report.

2.	 Maintenance of secretarial and other records of applicable laws is the responsibility of the management 
of the Company. Our responsibility is to issue Secretarial Audit Report, based on the audit of the 
relevant records maintained and furnished to us by the Company, along with explanations where so 
required.

3.	 We have followed the Audit Practices and Processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of contents of Secretarial Records and the verification was done on 
test check basis to ensure that correct facts as reflected in secretarial and other records produced 
to us. We believe that the processes and practices we followed, provides a reasonable basis for our 
opinion for the purpose of issue of the Secretarial Audit Report.

4.	 We have not verified correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of 
the Company.

5.	 Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, 
rules and regulations and major events during the audit period.

6.	 The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 
efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management of the Company has conducted affairs of the 
Company.

For IKR & Associates
Company Secretaries
[Firm Regn. No. S2016TL372100]

Sd/-
Krishna Rao Inturi
Proprietor
ACS No.23071 , CP No.10486

Place: Hyderabad
Date:  03.07.2019
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Annexure – VI

Report on CSR Activities

(1)	  (a) A Brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy: KIMS CSR policy intends to embrace responsibility 
for the company’s action and encourage a positive impact through its activities on education, clean 
environmental living, genetic research and new drug discovery initiatives, in primary and secondary 
health-care.

(b) Overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken: KIMS contributes its designated CSR 
funds primarily to the medical research and other government proposed programs such as Swach 
Bharath programs etc., 

(2)	 As on the date of this report, the Composition of the CSR Committee: 

	 Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao

	 Dr. Abhinay Bollineni

	 Mr. G. Rajeswara Rao

(3)	 Average net profits of the Company for the last three financial years: Rs. 50,68,93,471

(4)	 Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 3 above) is  Rs.1,01,37,869
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STANDALONE
FINANCIALS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the standalone financial statements of Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited (“the 
Company”), which comprise the standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2019, the standalone statement 
of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), standalone statement of changes in equity 
and standalone statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial 
statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 
(“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2019, and loss and other 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) 
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together 
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under 
the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information 
The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the 
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available 
to us after the date of this report.
Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true 
and fair view of the state of affairs, loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash 
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including 
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate  internal  financial  
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a 
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, Management and Board of Directors are responsible for 
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 

Government  in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

	 (A)	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

	 a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

	 b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 
as it appears from our examination of those books. 

	 c)	 The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other 
comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone 
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.
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	 d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified 
under Section 133 of the Act.

	 e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2019 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2019 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

	 f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure B”.

(B)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us:

	 i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2019 on its financial 
position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 2.25 (a) to the standalone financial 
statements;

	 ii.	 The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses – Refer Note 2.40 to the standalone financial statements;

	 iii.	 There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

	 iv.	 The disclosures in the standalone financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in 
specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not been 
made in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31 March 
2019.

(C)	 With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section 197(16): 
	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by 

the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 
of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 
197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) 
which are required to be commented upon by us.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants	
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 116231W/ W-100024

Sd/-	
Sulabh Kumar Kedia
Partner
Membership No.: 066380
UDIN: 19066380AAAAAO6513	

Place: Hyderabad	
Date: 03 July 2019
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Standalone Financial Statements of Krishna Institute 
of Medical Sciences Limited for the year ended 31 March 2019

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in paragraph 1 in Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements of Independent Auditors’ report to the Members of Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences 
Limited, (‘the Company’) on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019, we 
report that: 

(i)	 (a)		The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of fixed assets.

	 (b)	The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which all 
the fixed assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In our opinion, the 
periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature 
of its assets. In accordance with the aforesaid programme, Management has verified certain assets 
during the year. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

	 (c)	According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (Freehold Land, Leasehold Land 
and Buildings), as disclosed in the note 2.1 (a) to the standalone financial statements, are held in the 
name of the Company.  

(ii)	 The inventories have been physically verified by the Management during the year. In our opinion, the 
frequency of such verification is reasonable. The discrepancies noticed on verification between the 
physical stocks and the book records were not material. 

(iii)	 The Company has granted unsecured loans to four companies covered in the register maintained 
under Section 189 of the Act. 

	 (a)	In respect of the aforesaid loans, the terms and conditions under which such loans were granted 
are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

	 (b)	In respect of the aforesaid loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest 
has been stipulated, and the same is not due as on balance sheet date. 

	 (c)	In respect of the aforesaid loans, there are no amounts which are overdue for more than ninety 
days. 

	 The Company has not granted loans to firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in 
the register mentioned under Section 189 of the Act.

(iv)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,  the Company has complied 
with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loan given, investments made, 
securities and guarantees provided by it.

(v)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits 
from the public within the meaning of Section 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the rules framed there 
under. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3(v) of the said Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(vi)	We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company in respect of medical 
and healthcare services pursuant to the rules prescribed by the Central Government of India for the 
maintenance of cost records under Section 148 (1) of the Act, and are of the opinion that prima facie 
the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not made a 
detailed examination of the records. 
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(vii)	(a)	According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of 
undisputed statutory dues including, Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, 
Goods and Service tax, Duty of Customs, and other material statutory dues have been regularly 
deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities though there has been 
slight delays in few cases. As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of 
Cess.

		  According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income tax, Duty of customs, Goods and 
Service tax and any other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2019 for a period 
of more than six months from the date they became payable

	 (b)	According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income tax, 
Goods and Service tax and Duty of Customs which have not been deposited with the appropriate 
authorities on account of any dispute. However, the following dues of Value added tax, Luxury tax 
and Service tax have not been deposited by the Company on account of disputes: 

	 Name of the	 Nature of  Dues	 Amount	 Amount paid	 Period to which	 Forum where 
	 Statute		  disputed (INR)	 under protest (INR)	 the amount relates	 dispute is pending

	 The Andhra Pradesh tax	 Luxury tax*	 16,140,468	 7,993,480	 2004-07	 Honorable High Court 
	 on luxuries Act, 1987					     of Judicature at 
						      Hyderabad for 
						      the State of 
						      Telangana and the 
						      State of Andhra Pradesh

	 The Andhra Pradesh tax	 Luxury tax*	 25,877,242	 13,674,582	 2007-09	 Sales Tax  
	 on luxuries Act, 1987					     Appellate Tribunal, 		
						      Hyderabad

	 The Andhra Pradesh tax	 Penalty on Luxury	 14,101,865	 2,115,280	 2008-09	 Appellate Deputy  
	 Luxuries Act, 1987	 tax*				    Commissioner, 
						      Hyderabad

	 The Andhra Pradesh tax	 Luxury tax*	 26,145,631	 15,687,379	 2009-11	 Appellate Deputy  
	 Luxuries Act, 1987					     Commissioner, 
						      Hyderabad

	 AP VAT Act, 2005	 Value added tax	 1,758,116	 1,098,823	 November 2009 to	 Appellate Deputy 
					     February 2013 	 Commissioner, 
						      Hyderabad

	 Finance Act, 1994	 Service tax and penalty*	 31,628,610	 8,899,928	 July 2010 to	 CESTAT, Bangalore 
					     April 2011

* Interest will be levied separately as applicable.

As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of Duty of Excise and Sales tax

(viii)	In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any bank or financial institution. The Company did 
not have any dues to Government, nor has it issued any debentures as at the balance sheet date.

(ix)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instrument) during 
the year. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans 
taken by the Company and applied during the year were for the purpose for which they were raised. 

(x)	 During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in 
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud by the Company or 
on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been 
informed of any such case by the Management.
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(xi)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the 
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

(xii)	According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3(xii) 
of the said Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii)	According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the Company, transactions with related parties are in compliance with the provisions of Section 177 
and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the 
standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)	The Company has made a private placement of shares during the year under audit, in compliance with 
the requirements of Section 42 of the Act. The amounts raised have been used for the purpose for 
which funds were raised.

	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any preferential 
allotment of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under audit.

(xv)	According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or 
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3(xv) of the said Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

(ix)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instrument) during 
the year. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans 
taken by the Company and applied during the year were for the purpose for which they were raised. 

(x)	 During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in 
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud by the Company or 
on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been 
informed of any such case by the Management.

(xi)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the 
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.  

(xii)	According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3(xii) 
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii)	According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the Company, transactions with related parties are in compliance with the provisions of Section 177 
and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the 
standalone Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)	According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares 
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of 
paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xv)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors 
or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

(xvi)	In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company is not required to be registered under 
Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3 (xvi) 
of the said Order is not applicable to the Company.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants	
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 116231W/ W-100024

Sd/-	
Sulabh Kumar Kedia
Partner
Membership No.: 066380
UDIN: 19066380AAAAAO6513	

Place: Hyderabad	
Date: 03 July 2019
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Standalone Financial Statements of Krishna Institute 
of Medical Sciences Limited for the year ended 31 March 2019 

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial statements 
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

Referred to in paragraph 1(A) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 
Report of even date

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of 
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our 
audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference 
to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 
31 March 2019, based on the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting  issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial 
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference 
to standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls 
with reference to standalone financial statements were established and maintained and whether such 
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an 
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed 
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants	
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 116231W/ W-100024

Sd/-	
Sulabh Kumar Kedia
Partner
Membership No.: 066380
UDIN: 19066380AAAAAO6513	

Place: Hyderabad	
Date: 03 July 2019
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		  Note	  As at	 As at 
			   31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment		  2.1 (a)	  5,640.01 	  5,743.61 
Capital work-in-progress		  2.1 (a)	  2.32 	  -   
Intangible assets		  2.1 (b)	  27.93 	  13.33 
Financial assets		
(i) Investments		  2.2	  796.21 	  314.90 
(ii) Loans		  2.3 (a)	  21.45 	  20.28 
(iii) Other financial assets		  2.4 (a)	  7.32 	  11.26 
Non-current tax assets (net)		  2.9	  200.22 	  200.21 
Other non-current assets		  2.5	  278.28 	  88.80 

Total non-current assets			    6,973.74 	  6,392.39  
Current assets
Inventories		  2.6	  189.67 	  162.83 
Financial assets				  
(i) Trade receivables		  2.7	  1,000.30 	  960.10 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents		  2.8 (a)	  62.59 	  85.02 
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above		  2.8 (b)	  21.11 	  3.26 
(iv) Loans		  2.3 (b)	  215.46 	  139.55 
(v) Other financial assets		  2.4 (b)	  87.56 	  137.08 
Other current assets		  2.10	  17.66 	  13.81 

Total current assets			    1,594.35 	  1,501.65 

Total assets			    8,568.09 	  7,894.04  
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital		  2.11	  744.90 	  501.50 
Other equity 			    4,294.38 	  (2,492.08)
Total equity			    5,039.28 	  (1,990.58)
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities				  
(i) Borrowings		  2.12	  1,523.72 	  2,140.33 
(ii) Other financial liabilities		  2.13 (a)	  0.09 	  0.09 
Provisions		  2.14	  128.81 	  86.92 
Other liabilities		  2.18 (a)	  25.87 	  9.42 
Deferred tax liabilities (net)		  2.37	  420.91 	  471.08 

Total non-current liabilities		    	 2,099.40 	  2,707.84 
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities				  
(i) Borrowings		  2.15	  85.39 	  265.71 
(ii) Trade payables				  
     (a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and  
     small enterprises; and 		  2.16	  -   	  -   
     (b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 
     micro enterprises and small enterprises”		  2.16	  736.71 	  787.85 
(iii) Other financial liabilities		  2.13 (b)	  387.35 	  6,000.65 
Provisions		  2.17	  13.85 	  6.41 
Other current liabilities		  2.18 (b)	  110.84 	  116.16 
Current tax liability, net			    95.27 	  -   

Total current liabilities			    1,429.41 	  7,176.78  

Total equity and liabilities			    8,568.09 	  7,894.04

Standalone balance sheet	 INR in millions

Significant accounting policies	 1.3
Notes to the standalone financial statements	 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
As per our Report on standalone financial statements of even date attached

for B S R & Associates LLP	 for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants	 Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 116231W/W-100024	 CIN: U55101TG1973PLC040558

Sd/-	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
Sulabh Kumar Kedia	 Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao	 D Anitha 
Partner	 Managing Director	 Director 
Membership No.: 066380	 DIN:00008985	 DIN: 00025480 
UDIN: 19066380AAAAAO6513

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
	 Vikas Maheshwari	 Uma Shankar Mantha 
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary

Place: Hyderabad	 Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 03 July 2019	 Date: 03 July 2019
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	 Note	 For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March  2019	 31 March 2018

Revenue
Revenue from operations	 2.19	  7,069.13 	  6,282.39 
Other income	 2.20	  64.73 	  31.13  

Total revenue		   7,133.86 	  6,313.52  

Expenses
Medical consumables and pharmacy 
items consumed	 2.21	  1,643.78 	  1,521.02 
Employee benefits expense	 2.22	  1,269.10 	  1,149.55 
Finance costs	 2.23	  333.79 	  827.88 
Depreciation and amortisation expense	 2.1	  409.70 	  381.07 
Other expenses    	 2.24	  3,611.72 	  3,001.81 

Total expenses		   7,268.09 	  6,881.33 

Profit / (loss) before tax		   (134.23)	  (567.81)

Tax expense
 - Current tax 	 2.37	  345.55 	  167.95 
 - Deferred tax charge	 2.37	  (43.23)	  73.47 
 - Tax pertaining to earlier years	 2.37	  -   	  3.36 
 Total expense		   302.32 	  244.78  

Loss for the year (A)		    (436.55)	  (812.59)

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified 
subsequently to profit and loss
 - Remeasurement of defined benefit plans		   (19.85)	  27.84 
 - Income-tax relating to these items		   6.94 	  (9.73)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax (B)		  (12.91)	  18.11  

Total comprehensive income for the year  (A+B)		    (449.46)	  (794.48)

Earnings per share (face value of share INR 10 each)	 2.30 
 - Basic		   (6.31)	  (16.20)
 - Diluted		   (6.31)	  (16.20)

Standalone statement of profit and loss 	 INR in millions

Significant accounting policies	 1.3
Notes to the standalone financial statements	 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
As per our Report on standalone financial statements of even date attached

for B S R & Associates LLP	 for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants	 Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 116231W/W-100024	 CIN: U55101TG1973PLC040558

Sd/-	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
Sulabh Kumar Kedia	 Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao	 D Anitha 
Partner	 Managing Director	 Director 
Membership No.: 066380	 DIN:00008985	 DIN: 00025480 
UDIN: 19066380AAAAAO6513

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
	 Vikas Maheshwari	 Uma Shankar Mantha 
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary

Place: Hyderabad	 Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 03 July 2019	 Date: 03 July 2019
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		  For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March  2019	 31 March 2018

I. Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit / (loss) before tax		   (134.23)	  (567.81)
Adjustments for operating activities:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses		   409.70 	  381.07 
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment		   1.52 	  -   
Provision for impairment of receivables 		   155.84 	  (13.21)
Trade receivables written off		   41.56 	  -   
Guarantee commission income		   (2.91)	  (1.71)
Lease income		   (1.95)	  (2.42)
Interest income		   (25.27)	  (11.59)
Liabilities no longer required written back		   (16.62)	  -   
Interest on income tax refund		   -   	  (0.85)
Changes in fair value of financial instrument		   871.27 	  702.87 
Interest expense		   333.79 	  827.88 
Operating cash flows before working capital changes		   1,632.70 	  1,314.23 

Adjustments for:
Increase in trade receivables		   (237.60)	  (186.18)
Increase in inventories		   (26.84)	  (9.81)
Increase in loans and other assets		   (89.66)	  (64.50)
Increase / (decrease) in liabilities and provisions		   (12.30)	  103.86  
Cash provided by operations		   1,266.30 	  1,157.60  
Income taxes paid, net		   (250.29)	  (215.18)
Net cash provided by operating activities (A)		   1,016.01 	  942.42 

II. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets	  (460.99)	  (462.93)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment		   2.06 	  16.17 
Investment in subsidiaries		   (459.98)	  (80.00)
Redemption of bank deposits (having original maturity of  
more than three months)		   2.54 	  -   
Bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months)	  (17.84)	  (2.01)
Lease income received		   1.95 	  2.42 
Interest received		   15.46 	  6.01  
Net cash used in investing activities (B)		   (916.80)	  (520.34)

III. Cash flows from financing activities*
Repayment of long-term borrowings		   (1,250.32)	  (1,873.57)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings		   642.93 	  1,583.47 
Repayment of short-term borrowings (net)		   (180.32)	  161.22 
Payment of finance lease obligations		   (10.52)	  (3.63)
Proceeds from issue of shares		   880.00 	  -   
Proceeds from issue of share warrants		   3.10 	  -   
Interest paid		   (206.51)	  (284.59)
Net cash used in financing activities (C)		   (121.64)	  (417.10)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)		    (22.43)	  4.98 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year		  85.02 	  80.04  
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year [refer note 2.8 (a) ]	  62.59 	  85.02 
Note:
Components of cash and cash equivalants
Cash on hand		   8.83 	  7.11 
Balances with banks
 - On current accounts		   53.76 	  77.91 
Total		    62.59 	  85.02 

Standalone statement of cash flows	 INR in millions

Note 1: Includes INR 3,995.81 million towards conversion of financial liability into equity (fair value changes) and INR 8.61 million towards 
amortisation cost. The notes referred above form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

for B S R & Associates LLP	 for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants	 Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 116231W/W-100024	 CIN: U55101TG1973PLC040558

Sd/-	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
Sulabh Kumar Kedia	 Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao	 D Anitha 
Partner	 Managing Director	 Director 
Membership No.: 066380	 DIN:00008985	 DIN: 00025480 
UDIN: 19066380AAAAAO6513

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
	 Vikas Maheshwari	 Uma Shankar Mantha 
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary

Place: Hyderabad	 Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 03 July 2019	 Date: 03 July 2019

* Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities				  

Particulars	 As at 	 Cash flow changes	 Non-cash changes (net)	 As at 
	 01 April 2018		  (Refer note 1 below)	 31 March 2019

Long-term borrowings	  6,391.58 	  (617.91)	  (3,987.21)	  1,786.46 

Short-term borrowings	  265.71 	  (180.32)	  -   	  85.39 
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Standalone statement of changes in equity 	 INR in millions

Note:
1. Securities premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013.					   

2. Adjustment reserve
During the year ended 31 March 2014, pursuant to the Scheme of arrangement (Scheme) approved by Honourable High Court of Andhra Pradesh, the 
Company has allotted 306,069 equity shares of INR 10 each to the share holders of the transferor company against 4,455,000 equity shares of INR 
10 each outstanding in the transferor company in the ratio of 9 equity shares of INR 10 each for every 131 equity shares of INR 10 each of the transferor 
company. The difference of INR 41.49 millions on account of the above share swap has been added to the adjustment reserve of the Company as per 
the Scheme.
Pursuant to the Scheme of arrangement approved by the High Court, the Company allotted 969,231 equity shares of INR 10 each to the shareholders 
of the Demerged company against 2,100,000 equity shares of INR 10 each outstanding in the Demerged company in the ratio of 6 equity shares of INR 
10 each for every 13 equity shares of INR  10 each of the Demerged company. The difference between the consideration payable and the value of net 
assets taken over as per the Scheme amounting to INR 16.15 millions has been added to the adjustment reserve of the Company as per the Scheme.

3. Conversion of financial liability into Equity						   
“During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has entered into a securities subscription and purchase agreement (SSPA) along with General 
Atlantic Singapore KH Pte Ltd (“new investor”), India Advantage Fund S31 (“old investor”) and other existing shareholders through which new investor 
have purchased few shares from the existing shareholders and entire shares from the old investor. The terms of the contract with the new investor had 
resulted in de-recognition of the existing liability by INR 5,604.94 millions (as at 31 March 2018) and recognition of the same in equity share capital and 
securities premium.
Apart from the exit to the old investor, the new investor has also infused an amount of INR 880 millions in the form of 2,864,956 equity shares of face 
value of INR 10 each, fully paid up at the premium of INR 297.16 per share in the Company.”

4. Issue of share warrants
In accordance with the aforesaid securities, subscription and purchase agreement (SSPA), during the year the Company has issued 3,103,731 numbers 
of share warrants to Dr B Bhaskara Rao. Each of these share warrants are convertible into 1 equity share of INR 10 each at a future date as per the 
terms of SSPA. As at 31 March 2019, the Company has received INR 1 each against the share warrants issued aggregating to INR 3.10 million.

 Particulars 	  Equity 	  	 Other equity 		   Total of other 
	 share capital		  Reserve and surplus	 Share warrants	 equity
		  Securities	 Adjustment	 Retained 
		  premium	 reserve	 earnings
Balance as at 1 April 2018	  501.50 	  292.98 	  57.64 	  (2,842.70)	  -   	 (2,492.08)
Loss for the year	  -   	  -   	  -   	  (436.55)	  -   	  (436.55)
Issue of shares  	  28.65 	  851.35 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  851.35 
Issue of share warrants	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  3.10 	  3.10 
Conversion of financial liability into equity	  214.75 	  6,381.47 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  6,381.47 
Re-measurement of net defined benefit 
liability (net of tax)	  -   	  -   	  -   	  (12.91)	  -   	  (12.91)

Balance as at 31 March 2019	  744.90 	  7,525.80 	  57.64 	  (3,292.16)	  3.10 	  4,294.38 

 Particulars 	  Equity 	  	 Other equity 		   Total of other 
	 share capital		  Reserve and surplus	 Share warrants	 equity
		  Securities	 Adjustment	 Retained 
		  premium	 reserve	 earnings
Balance as at 1 April 2017	  501.50 	  292.98 	  57.64 	  (2,048.22)	  -   	 (1,697.60)
Loss for the year	  -   	  -   	  -   	  (812.59)	  -   	  (812.59)
Re-measurement of net defined benefit 
liability (net of tax)	  -   	  -   	  -   	  18.11 	  -   	  18.11 

Balance as at 31 March 2018	  501.50 	  292.98 	  57.64 	  (2,842.70)	  -   	 (2,492.08)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
As per our Report on standalone financial statements of even date attached

for B S R & Associates LLP	 for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants	 Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 116231W/W-100024	 CIN: U55101TG1973PLC040558

Sd/-	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
Sulabh Kumar Kedia	 Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao	 D Anitha 
Partner	 Managing Director	 Director 
Membership No.: 066380	 DIN:00008985	 DIN: 00025480 
UDIN: 19066380AAAAAO6513

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
	 Vikas Maheshwari	 Uma Shankar Mantha 
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary

Place: Hyderabad	 Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 03 July 2019	 Date: 03 July 2019
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Particulars		   Software 

Cost
Balance as at 1 April 2017 		   17.50
Additions 	  	 3.06 
Disposals 		   -   
Balance as at 31 March 2018 	  	 20.56 
	
 Balance as at 1 April 2018 		   20.56 
Additions 	  	 20.84 
Disposals 		   - 
Balance as at 31 March 2019 	  	 41.40 
	
Accumulated depreciation 	
Balance as at 1 April 2017 	  	 3.04 
Amortisation charge for the year 	  	 4.19 
Disposals 	  	 -      
Balance as at 31 March 2018 	  	 7.23 
	
Balance as at 1 April 2018 	  	 7.23 
Amortisation charge for the year 		   6.24 
Disposals 		   -   
Balance as at 31 March 2019 	  	 13.47 
	
Carrying amounts (net) 	

 At 31 March 2018 		   13.33 

 At 31 March 2019 		  27.93

2.1 (b) Intangible assets	 INR in millions
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			   	 As at	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 1 April 2018

Investment in subsidiaries - valued at cost 

1,172,281 (31 March 2018: 1,172,281) equity shares of INR 10 each 
fully paid up held in Arunodaya Hospitals Private Limited 		   	 63.34 	  63.34 

10,000 (31 March 2018: 10,000) equity shares of INR 10 each 
fully paid up held in KIMS Hospitals Private Limited 		   	 0.10 	  0.10 

10,000 (31 March 2018: 10,000) equity shares of INR 10 each 
fully paid up held in KIMS Swastha Private Limited 	 `	  	 0.10 	  0.10 

10,000 (31 March 2018: 10,000) equity shares of INR 10 each 
fully paid up held in KIMS Cuddles Private Limited 		   	 0.10 	  0.10 

Nil (31 March 2018 : 9,990) equity shares of INR 10 each 
fully paid up held in KIMS Sahariah Healthcare Private Limited **			  -   	  0.10 

10,000 (31 March 2018: 10,000) equity shares of INR 10 each 
fully paid up held in KIMS Hospital (Bhubaneswar) Private Limited 	  	 0.10 	  0.10 

12,338,155 (31 March 2018: 12,338,155) equity shares of INR 10 each 
fully paid up held in KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited  		   	 251.06 	  251.06 

5,100 (31 March 2018: Nil) equity shares of INR 10 each 
fully paid up held in Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 	  	 73.38 	  -   

8,000 (31 March 2018: Nil) equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up held in 
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited [Refer note 2.25 (c)(II)(ii)]		   18.03 	  -   

29,000,000 (31 March 2018: Nil) 0.001% optionally convertible redeemable 
preference shares of INR 10 each fully paid up held in 
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 		   	 290.00 	  -   

10,000,000 (31 March 2018: Nil) 12% cumulative optionally convertible 
redeemable preference shares of INR 10 each fully paid up held in 
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited		   	 100.00 	  -   

Total			    796.21 	  314.90 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments		   	 796.21 	  314.90 

Aggregate provision for impairment in value of investments		   	 -   	  -   

** Investment written off during the year as the entity is in the process of winding up.			 

INR in millions2.2 Non current investments (Unquoted, trade investment)

				    As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

(a) Non-current
Security deposits			    21.45 	  20.28 

Total		    	 21.45 	  20.28 

(b) Current

-To parties other than related parties

Security deposits		    	 9.08 	  4.64

-To related parties (refer note 2.29)

Loans to related parties 		    	 206.38 	  134.91

			    	 215.46 	  139.55

INR in millions2.3 Loans (Unsecured, considered good)
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INR in millions2.4 Other financial assets (Unsecured, considered good)

				    As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

(a) Non-current
Bank deposits (due to mature after 12 months of reporting date*)	  		   6.36 	  8.90  
Interest accrued on bank deposits		    	 0.96 	  2.36 

Total			    7.32 	  11.26 

* Bank deposits placed are restrictive in nature as it pertains 
to bank guarantee.

(b) Current
-To parties other than related parties
Contract assets (Unbilled revenue)			    56.54 	  54.06 
Other receivable			    -   
Other advances (refer note 2.39)			    -   	  61.78 
Interest accrued on bank deposits			    0.69 	  0.30 
-To related parties (refer note 2.29)			 
Advance to related parties			    10.01 	  11.43 
Interest accrued on loans 			    20.32 	  9.51 

Total		   	  87.56 	  137.08 

INR in millions2.6	 Inventories*

				    As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)
Medical consumables and pharmacy items		   	 189.67 	  162.83  

Total		   	 189.67 	  162.83

*Refer note  2.38 for details of assets pledged as security.	

INR in millions2.5 Other non-current assets (Unsecured, considered good)

				    As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Capital advances*		   	 166.90 	  46.87 
Advance for purchase of shares [Refer note 2.25 (c)(II)(i)]		   	 60.00 	  -   
Paid under protest		   	 49.47 	  39.49 
Prepaid expenses		   	 1.91 	  2.44  

Total		   	  278.28 	  88.80

* Includes a transaction entered between the Company and Dr. B Bhaskara Rao towards purchase of land for a total consideration INR 74.25 
million. Out of the total consideration, an amount of INR 70.00 million is paid as an capital advance. Refer note 2.29.	

INR in millions2.7 Trade receivables*

				    As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Considered good - Secured			    -   	  -   
Considered good - Unsecured			    1,298.34 	  1,102.30  

Total receivables			    1,298.34 	  1,102.30 

Less : Provision for impairment			    (298.04)	  (142.20)

Net trade receivables 			    1,000.30 	  960.10

*Includes amount receivables from related party amounting to INR 2.21 millions (31 March 2018: INR 2.21 millions). 
(Refer note 2.29). *Refer note  2.38 for details of assets pledged as security.
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INR in millions2.9 Non-current tax assets (net)

				    As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Advance tax (net of provision for taxation)			    200.22 	  200.21 

Total			     200.22 	  200.21 

INR in millions2.10 Other current assets (Unsecured, considered good)

				    As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Advance to suppliers	  		   6.65 	  3.11  

Prepaid expenses			    4.12 	  6.81 

Staff advances			    6.64 	  3.89 

Other advances			    0.25 	  -   

Total			    17.66 	  13.81 

INR in millions2.8 Cash and bank balances

				    As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

a) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand			    8.83 	  7.11 
Balances with banks				  
 - in current accounts			    53.76 	  77.91  

b) Other bank balances*			    21.11 	  3.26

				    21.11 	  3.26

 Total 		   	  83.70 	  88.28

* Includes INR 0.02 millions (31 March 2018: 3.26 millions) deposits placed which are restrictive in nature as it pertains to bank 
guarantee. These guarantees are maturing with in 12 months of the reporting date.
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INR in millions2.11	 Equity share capital

				    As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Authorised

95,000,000 (31 March 2018: 95,000,000) equity shares 
of INR 10 each 			   950.00 	  950.00  

				     950.00 	  950.00 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up*

74,489,552 (31 March 2018: 50,149,732) equity shares of 
INR 10 each fully paid-up			    744.90 	  501.50 

			    	 744.90 	  501.50

* As at 31 March 2018, issued equity shares excludes 21,474,864 equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up which were classified 
as financial liability.

Particulars	 As at 31 March 2019	 As at 31 March 2018

	 Number of	 Amount 	 Number of	 Amount  
	 shares		  shares

At the commencement of the year*	 50,149,732 	  501.50 	  50,149,732 	  501.50 
Add: Conversion of put options to equity shares	 21,474,864 	  214.75 	  -   	  -   
Add: Shares issued during the year	 2,864,956 	  28.65 	  -   	  -   

Shares outstanding at the end of the year*	 74,489,552 	  744.90 	  50,149,732 	  501.50 

* As at 31 March 2018, issued equity shares excludes 21,474,864 equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up which were classified 
as financial liability.

(a) Reconciliation of number of equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid up outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:	 INR in millions

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid up:
The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the 
Company’s residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of an 
equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands) are in proportion to its share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company. Voting 
rights cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any call or other sums presently payable have not been paid. Failure to pay 
any amount called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of the shares. On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will 
be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the 
number of equity shares held.

Name of shareholder 	 As at 31 March 2019	 As at 31 March 2018

	 Number of	 % of holding	 Number of	 % of holding 
	 shares		  shares

Dr. B Bhaskar Rao	   18,304,164 	 24.57%	  19,756,664 	 39.40%
General Atlantic Singapore KH Pte Ltd	 30,250,115 	 40.61%	  -   	  - 
B. Seenaiah	 4,972,308 	 6.68%	  5,330,408 	 10.63%
BRM Hospitals Private Limited	 4,800,632 	 6.44%	  4,800,632 	 9.57%

(c) Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid up	 INR in millions
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(d) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of 5 years immediately 
preceding the reporting date

Particulars	 31 March	 31 March	 31 March 	 31 March 	 31 March 
		  2019	 2018	 2017	 2016	 2015

Equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid up 
allotted as bonus shares by capitalisation 
of securities premium	  -   	  -   	  -   	  61,603,374 	  2,933,494

INR in millions

(e) The Company has not bought back any shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date. 		
							     
(f) “During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has entered into a securities subscription and purchase agreement 
along with General Atlantic Singapore KH Pte Ltd (“new investor”), India Advantage Fund S31 (“old investor”) and other existing 
shareholders through which new investor have purchased few shares from the existing shareholders and entire shares from the 
old investor. The terms of the contract with the new investor had resulted in de-recognition of the existing liability by INR 5,604.93 
millions (as at 31 March 2018) and recognition of the same in equity share capital and securities premium.  
 
Apart from the exit to the old investor, the new investor has also infused an amount of INR 880 millions in the form of 2,864,956 
equity shares of face value of INR 10 each, fully paid up at the premium of INR 297.16 per share in the Company.”				 
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Notes:

	 *Refer current maturities of long term borrowings under note 2.13 (b)

i	 Andhra Bank term loan - 1 was secured by pari passu first charge on entire movable and immovable assets (existing and 
future assets) of the Company by way of hypothecation excluding the assets specifically charged to the equipment financers 
and Rajahmundry unit property and Pari Passu second charge on entire fixed assets (existing and future) of the Company.  
Further, it was secured by pledge of Rs. 1.08 lakh shares of promoter directors of total FV of Rs. 10.80 lakhs and 20% of 
shares of the Company held by the Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao and/or directors of the Company. The loan was further secured 
by personal guarantee of B. Krishnaiah, Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao, B.Seenaiah and D.Anitha. Further, the loan was secured by 
property belonging to Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao.. This loan was repayable in 22 quarterly equal instalments from December 2014 
to March 2020 and carried interest rate of IY MCLR + 0.45% + 0.50% (TP) (31 March 2018 : 1Y MCLR + 0.45% (spread) + 0.50% 
(TP)). The loan was pre closed during the year.				  

ii	 Andhra Bank term loan - 2 was secured by pari passu first charge on entire movable and immovable assets (existing and 
future assets) of the Company by way of hypothecation excluding the assets specifically charged to the equipment financers 
and Rajahmundry unit property and Pari Passu second charge on entire fixed assets (existing and future) of the Company. 
Further, it was secured by pledge of Rs. 1.08 lakh shares of promoter directors of total FV of Rs. 10.80 lakhs and 20% of 
shares of the Company held by the Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao and/or directors of the Company. The loan was further secured 
by personal guarantee of B. Krishnaiah, Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao, B.Seenaiah and D.Anitha. Further, the loan was secured by 
property belonging to Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao. Loan was repayable in 29 monthly equal instalments from December 2015 to 
April 2018 and carried interest rate of 1Y MCLR + 1.20% (31 March 2018: 1Y MCLR + 0.45% (spread) + 0.50% (TP)). The loan 
was fully repaid during the year.				  

iii	 Andhra Bank term loan - 3 was secured by second pari passu charge on other unencumbered movable and immoveable fixed 
assets of the Company both present and future along with other term lenders except Rajahmundry unit fixed assets. Further, 
it was secured by personal guarantee of Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao, Mr. B. Krishnaiah, Mr. B. Seenaiah and D. Anitha and pledge of 
14.1 millions shares of promoter directors. The loan was also secured by second pari passu charge on the commercial land 
and building situated at Nellore belonging to the Company, second charge on land and building and all other fixed assets 
purchased for Ongole unit in slump sale and other assets purchased out of term loan. This loan is repayable in 20 quarterly 
equal instalments from December 2016 to September 2021 and carried interest rate of 1Y MCLR + 1.20%  (31 March 2018 : 1Y 
MCLR + 0.45% (spread) + 0.50% (TP)). The loan was pre closed during the year.				  

iv	 Andhra Bank term loan - 4 was secured by exclusive charge on land and building and all other assets purchased for Ongole 
unit in slump sale and other assets purchased out of term loan and second charge on the current assets (existing and future) 
pertaining to Ongole unit. Further, it was secured by personal guarantee of Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao, Mr. B. Krishnaiah, Mr. B. 
Seenaiah and D. Anitha and pledge of 14.1 millions shares of promoter directors. This loan was repayable in 40 quarterly 
unequal instalments from March 2019 to December 2028 and carried interest rate of 1Y MCLR + 0.45% (spread) + 0.50% (TP) 
( 31 March 2018 : 1Y MCLR + 0.45% (spread) + 0.50% (TP)). The loan was pre closed during the year.

2.12 Long-term borrowings INR in millions

		  As at 31 March 2019	 As at 31 March 2018

	 			   Non- current	 Current*	 Non- current	 Current*

Secured
Term loans from banks
  - Andhra Bank term loan - 1 (refer note i)	  		  -   	  -   	  78.88 	  79.36 
 - Andhra Bank term loan - 2 (refer note ii)	  		  -   	  -   	  -   	  6.38 
 - Andhra Bank term loan - 3 (refer note iii)	  		  -   	  -   	  73.18 	  29.52 
 - Andhra Bank term loan - 4 (refer note iv)	  		  -   	  -   	  479.70 	  12.13 
 - HDFC Bank equipment loan - 1 (refer note v)	  		  79.06 	  10.94 	  65.00 	  -   
 - HDFC Bank equipment loan - 2 (refer note vi)			    122.08 	  11.80 	  -   	  -   
 - HDFC Bank vehicle loans (refer note vii)	  		  -   	  -   	  0.24 	  0.52 
 - Federal bank term loan (refer note ix)	  		  494.07 	  66.24 	  182.00 	  -   

Total loans from banks (A)	  		   695.21 	  88.98 	  879.00 	  127.91 

Term loans from other parties
 - Siemens Financial Services Private Limited (refer note x)	  		  -   	  16.75 	  16.75 	  47.45 
 - IDFC Infrastructure Finance Limited (refer note viii)	  		  819.10 	  142.04 	  1,210.28 	  44.06 
 - De Lage London Finance Service (refer note xi)			    -   	  -   	  9.92 	  0.50

Total loans from other parties (B)	   		  819.10 	  158.79 	  1,236.95 	  92.01

Unsecured
Deferred payment liability (refer note xii)			    -   	  -   	  -   	  25.00 
Finance lease obligation (refer note xiii)			    9.41 	  14.97 	  24.38 	  10.52 
Liability component of financial instrument (refer note xiv)	  		  -   	  -   	  -   	  3,995.81    

Total unsecured loans (C) 			     9.41 	  14.97 	  24.38 	  4,031.33

Total (A) + (B) + (C) 			     1,523.72 	  262.74 	  2,140.33 	  4,251.25
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v	 Term loan - 1 from HDFC bank towards purchase of equipment is secured by way of first and exclusive charge on the medical 
equipment out of sanctioned facility, carrying an interest rate ranging from 9.5% p.a. fixed (31 March 2018: 9.5% p.a. fixed). 
This loan is repayable in 84 unequal monthly instalments starting from July 2017 to June 2024. Outstanding amount as on 
31 March 2019 is INR 90.00 millions (31 March 2018: INR 65.00 millions).				  

vi	 Term loan - 2 availed during the year from HDFC bank towards purchase of equipment is secured by way of first and exclusive 
charge on the medical equipment out of sanctioned facility, carrying an interest rate of 1Y MCLR + 0.65%. Also secured by 
personal guarantee of Dr B Bhaskara rao. This loan is repayable in 84 unequal monthly instalments starting from January 
2019 to December 2024. Outstanding amount as on 31 March 2019 is INR 133.88 millions (31 March 2018: Nil)

vii	 Term loan from HDFC bank consisted of vehicle loan secured by first exclusive hypothecation charge on the vehicle acquired 
from the said loan and carried interest rate ranging from 9.75%  to 12.51%  (31 March 2018: ranging from 9.75% to 12.51%). 
The This loans was repayable in equal monthly instalments starting from August 2016 to August 2019. The loan was pre 
closed during the year.				  

viii	 Term loan from IDFC Infrastructure Finance Limited is secured by a first pari-passu mortgage and charge of immovable 
properties of the Secunderabad hospital and Nellore hospital building. Also secured by a first pari-passu charge by way of 
hypothecation of Secunderabad hospital and Nellore Hospital movable properties including movable plant and machinery, 
machinery spares, tools and accessories, furniture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable properties of whatsoever nature 
excluding the equipment which are purchased by Company out of medical equipment loans and a second pari-passu 
mortgage and charge of immovable properties of the Ongole hospital. Also includes a second pari-passu charge by way of 
hypothecation of Ongole hospital movable properties including movable plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and 
accessories, furniture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable properties of whatsoever nature excluding the equipment’s 
which are purchased by Company out of medical equipment loans; a second charge on the entire cash flows, receivables, 
book debts and revenues of the Company, of whatsoever nature and wherever arising; subject to the prior charge of the 
working capital lenders. Also secured by personal guarantee of Dr. Bhaskara Rao. The loan is repayable in 72 equal monthly 
instalments and carries an interest rate of 9.10% p.a. (31 March 2018: 9.10% p.a.). Outstanding amount as on 31 March 2019 
is INR 961.14 millions (31 March 2018: INR 1,254.34 millions).				  

ix	 Federal Bank term loan consists of 2 loans (31 March 2018: 1 loan) is secured by exclusive charge on existing hospital at 
Rajahmundry and pledge of minimum 51% shareholding of the Company in KIMS Hospital Private Limited, a subsidiary of the 
Company. Also secured by personal guarantee of Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao. The loan is repayable in 66 equal monthly instalments 
starting from May 2019 to April 2025 and , carries an interest rate ranging from 9.50% to 9.80% p.a. (31 March 2018: 9.50%). 
Outstanding amount as on 31 March 2019 is INR 560.31 millions (31 March 2018: INR l82 millions).

x	 Term loan - Siemens Financial Services Private Limited consists of 1 loans (31 March 2018: 3 loans) secured by way of 
hypothecation of medical and surgical equipment procured from the said loan and personal guarantee of Dr. B Bhaskara 
Rao. The loans are repayable in unequal monthly instalments from January 2012 to July 2019 and carries interests rate 
ranging from 11% to 13.50% p.a. (31 March 2018 : interests rate ranging from 11 % to 13.50% p.a.). Outstanding amount as on 
31 March 2019 is INR 16.75 millions (31 March 2018: INR  64.20 millions).				  

xi	 Term loan - De Lage Landen Financial Services India Private Limited is repaid during the current year (31 March 2018: 3 
loans). It was secured by way of first and exclusive charge on all assets procured through the facility. Further, the loan was 
secured by collateral security of medical and surgical equipment procured from the said loans and personal guarantee of 
Dr. B Bhaskara Rao. The loans were repayable in 42 monthly unequal instalments, inclusive of 6 months moratorium, from 
September 2016 to February 2020 and carried fixed interest rate of 11.25% p.a. (31 March 2018: 11.25%). The loan was pre 
closed during the year.				  

xii	 Deferred payment liability relates to payable in respect of purchase of equipment from Vattikutti Technologies Private 
Limited. The liability is repaid in the current year. 				  

xiii	 Finance lease obligations pertain to medical equipment’s taken on finance lease. The lease term of such medical equipment 
is 5 to 6 years with equated monthly payments. The same carries an interest rate ranging from 17.18% to 44.44% per annum 
(31 March 2018: 17.18% to 44.44% per annum). Outstanding amount as on 31 March 2019 INR 24.38 million (31 March 2018: 
INR 34.90 million)



17th Annual Report 2018-19 70

 2
.1

2
  L

on
g-

te
rm

 b
or

ro
w

in
gs

 (c
on

ti
nu

ed
) 

	
3

1 M
ar

ch
 2

0
19

	
3

1 M
ar

ch
 2

0
18

	
Fu

tu
re

 m
in

im
um

 le
as

e	
In

te
re

st
 e

le
m

en
t	

P
re

se
nt

 v
al

ue
 o

f	
Fu

tu
re

 m
in

im
um

 le
as

e	
In

te
re

st
 e

le
m

en
t	

P
re

se
nt

 v
al

ue
 o

f 
	

p
ay

m
en

ts
 (M

LP
)	

of
 M

LP
	

m
in

im
um

 le
as

e	
p

ay
m

en
ts

 (M
LP

)	
of

 M
LP

	
m

in
im

um
 le

as
e 

			



p

ay
m

en
ts

			



p

ay
m

en
ts

W
it

hi
n 

le
ss

 t
ha

n 
on

e 
ye

a
r 

	
 2

3
.5

5
 	

 8
.5

8
 	

 1
4

.9
7	

2
2

.6
5

 	
 1

2
.1

3
 	

 1
0

.5
2

 

B
et

w
ee

n 
on

e 
a

nd
 fi

ve
 y

ea
rs

 	
 1

5
.3

1 
	

 5
.9

0
 	

 9
.4

1	
3

8
.4

8
 	

 1
4

.3
8

 	
 2

4
.1

0
 

A
ft

er
 m

or
e 

th
a

n 
fiv

e 
ye

a
rs

 	
 -

   
	

 -
   

	
 -

	
0

.3
9

 	
 0

.1
1 

	
 0

.2
8

To
ta

l 	
 3

8
.8

6
 	

 1
4

.4
8

 	
 2

4
.3

8
	

6
1.

5
2

 	
 2

6
.6

2
 	

 3
4

.9
0

xi
ii	

Fi
na

nc
e 

le
as

e 
ob

lig
at

io
ns

	
IN

R
 in

 m
ill

io
ns

C
er

ta
in

 it
em

s 
of

 m
ed

ic
a

l 
eq

ui
p

m
en

t 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

ob
ta

in
ed

 o
n 

fin
a

nc
e 

le
a

se
 b

a
si

s.
 T

he
 l

eg
a

l t
it

le
 t

o 
th

es
e 

it
em

s 
ve

st
s 

w
it

h 
th

ei
r 

le
ss

or
. T

he
 l

ea
se

 t
er

m
 o

f 
su

ch
 m

ed
ic

a
l 

eq
ui

p
m

en
t  

ra
ng

es
 fr

om
 5

 y
ea

rs
 to

 6
 y

ea
rs

 w
it

h 
eq

ua
te

d
 m

on
th

ly
 p

a
ym

en
ts

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 fr

om
 th

e 
m

on
th

 s
ub

se
q

ue
nt

 to
 th

e 
co

m
m

en
ce

m
en

t o
f l

ea
se

. T
he

 le
ga

l t
it

le
 o

f m
ed

ic
a

l 
eq

ui
p

m
en

t 
w

ill
 b

e 
tr

a
ns

fe
rr

ed
 t

o 
th

e 
C

om
p

a
ny

 a
t 

th
e 

en
d

 o
f t

he
 le

a
se

 t
er

m
 o

f t
he

 r
es

p
ec

ti
ve

 a
gr

ee
m

en
ts

 a
t 

no
m

in
a

l v
a

lu
es

. T
he

 s
a

id
 le

a
se

 a
rr

a
ng

em
en

t 
d

oe
s 

no
t 

co
nt

a
in

 
a

ny
 c

on
ti

ng
en

t 
re

nt
.							










xi
v	

Li
a

b
ili

ty
 c

om
p

on
en

t 
of

 fi
na

nc
ia

l i
ns

tr
um

en
t 

is
 c

on
ve

rt
ed

 in
to

 e
q

ui
ty

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

ye
a

r 
w

hi
ch

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 IR

R
 a

t 
15

%
 p

er
 a

nn
um

.

xv
	

A
gg

re
ga

te
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f 
se

cu
re

d
 lo

a
ns

 (i
nc

lu
d

in
g 

cu
rr

en
t 

m
a

tu
ri

ti
es

 o
f 

lo
ng

 t
er

m
 b

or
ro

w
in

gs
) g

ua
ra

nt
ee

d
 b

y 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

 a
nd

 o
th

er
s 

: I
N

R
 1

,6
72

.0
9

 m
ill

io
ns

  (
3

1 
M

a
rc

h 
2

0
18

: I
N

R
 2

,2
70

.1
0

 m
ill

io
ns

)

xv
i	

In
fo

rm
a

ti
on

 a
b

ou
t 

th
e 

C
om

p
a

ny
’s

 e
xp

os
ur

e 
to

 in
te

re
st

 r
a

te
, f

or
ei

gn
 c

ur
re

nc
y 

a
nd

 li
q

ui
d

it
y 

ri
sk

s 
is

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 n

ot
e 

2
.3

6



17th Annual Report 2018-19 71

INR in millions2.13	 Other financial liabilities

				    As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

(a) Non-current

Security deposits			    0.09 	  0.09 

Total		    	 0.09 	  0.09 

(b) Current

Current maturity of long term debts (refer note 2.12)			    262.74 	  4,251.25 

Capital creditors			    6.93 	  21.27 

Employee benefits payable*			    108.90 	  108.34 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings			    1.29 	  2.63 

Security and caution deposit			    7.49 	  8.04 

Derivatives			    -   	  1,609.12  

Total			    387.35 	  6,000.65 

The Company’s exposure to currency and liquidity risks is 
disclosed in note 2.36

*Includes payables to related parties. For details refer note 2.29.

INR in millions2.14	Long-term provisions

				    As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity (refer note 2.28)			    91.63 	  57.18 

Compensated absences			    37.18 	  29.74 

Total			    128.81 	  86.92 

INR in millions2.15	 Short-term borrowings

				    As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Secured

Working capital loans from banks [refer note i]			     85.39 	  265.71

Total			    85.39 	  265.71 
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Notes:

i	 “Working capital loans consists of  loans from :

	 a) Andhra bank - Loan  is secured by pari passu first charge on entire movable and immovable assets (existing and future 
assets) of the Company by way of hypothecation excluding the assets specifically charged to the equipment financers and 
Rajahmundry unit property and pari passu second charge on entire fixed assets (existing and future) of the Company. Further, 
it is secured by personal guarantee of Dr B Bhaskara Rao, Sri B. Krishnaiah, Sri B.Seenaiah and D. Anitha. Loan is repayable 
on demand and carries interest rate of 1Y MCLR+1.20% (31 March 2018: 1Y MCLR+0.95%)”				  

	 b) Federal bank - Loan  is secured by primary exclusive charge on current assets of Rajahmundry hospital, both current 
and future and collateral security by exclusive charge on existing hospital at Rajahmundry and pledge of minimum 51% 
shareholding of the Company in KIMS Hospital Private Limited, a subsidiary of the Company. Also secured by personal 
guarantee of Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao. Loan is repayable on demand and carries interest rate of 9.40% p.a. (31 March 2018: Nil)

ii	 Amount of secured loans guaranteed by directors and others aggregates to INR 85.39 millions (31 March 2018: INR 265.71 
millions).

iii	 Information about the Company’s exposure to interest rate, foreign currency and liquidity risks is included in note 2.36

INR in millions2.16 Trade payables

				    As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 
small enterprises (refer note 2.32)			   -   	  -   

- total outstanding dues of  creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises			    736.71 	  787.85 

Total			     736.71 	  787.85  

The above includes payable to related party. 
For details refer note 2.29

All trade payables are ‘current’. The Company’s exposure to 
currency and liquidity risks related to trade payable is disclosed 
in note 2.36

INR in millions2.17 Short term provisions

				    As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Provision for employee benefits

Compensated absences			    13.85 	  6.41 

Total	  		   13.85 	  6.41 

INR in millions2.18	Other liabilities

				    As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

(a) Non-current

Financial guarantee liability  (refer note 2.36)			    25.87 	  9.42 

Total			    25.87 	  9.42

(b) Current

Statutory dues payable			    44.47 	  50.64 

Contract liabilities*			    35.70 	  42.24 

Financial guarantee liability (refer note 2.36)			    3.98 	  2.00 

Other liabilities			    26.69 	  21.28 

Total			    110.84 	  116.16

* Represents advance recevied from patients
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		  For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Interest income on:

- fixed deposits	  3.33 	  1.56 

- income tax refunds	  -   	  0.85 

- loans to related parties 	  21.94 	  10.03 

Lease income 	  1.95 	  2.42 

Liabilities no longer required written back	  16.62 	  -   

Guarantee commission income	  2.91 	  1.71 

Miscellaneous income	  17.98 	  14.56 

Total	  64.73 	  31.13 

INR in millions2.20 Other income

		  For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Opening stock	  162.83 	  153.02  

Add: Purchases during the year	  1,670.62 	  1,530.83 

Less: Closing stock	  189.67 	  162.83 

Total 	   1,643.78 	  1,521.02 

INR in millions2.21 Medical consumables and pharmacy items consumed

		  For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March 2018	 31 March 2017

Salaries, wages and bonus 	  1,173.66 	  1,054.97  

Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note no 2.28) 	  84.43 	  83.14 

Staff welfare expenses 	  11.01 	  11.44 

Total 	  1,269.10 	  1,149.55 

 *Net of amount capitalised (refer note 2.26) 

INR in millions2.22 Employee benefit expenses*

		  For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

A. Income from medical and healthcare services

Income from hospital services	 4,465.50 	  3,994.31 

Income from pharmacy	  2,440.87 	  2,146.69 

Total	  6,906.37 	  6,141.00

B. Other operating income
Income from academic courses	 58.26 	  46.09 
Income from sale of food and beverages	  101.70 	  89.69 
Other hospital income	  2.80 	  5.61 

Total	   162.76 	  141.39 

Total revenue from operations (A+B)	   7,069.13 	  6,282.39

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contracted price is as follows:
Contract price	  7,511.97 
Adjustments for:
Discounts and disallowances	  (522.95)
Others	  (82.65)

Income from medical and healthcare services	  6,906.37 

INR in millions2.19	 Revenue from operations
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INR in millions2.23 Finance cost

		  For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Interest expense on 		

- term loans 	  181.32 	  255.39 

- other loans 	  11.72 	  16.55 

- finance lease obligations 	  12.13 	  14.52 

- liability component of financial instruments 	  120.01 	  521.19 

Others 	  8.61 	  20.23 

Total 	   333.79 	  827.88 

		  For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

 Consultancy charges 	  1,448.30 	  1,276.83  
 House keeping expenses 	  231.38 	  212.46 
 Power and fuel 	  144.22 	  157.50 
 Catering and patient welfare expenses 	  97.05 	  91.59 
 Rent (refer note 2.27) 	  48.07 	  51.10 
 Tests and investigations 	  10.66 	  15.08 
 Academic courses expenses 	  0.83 	  1.30 
 Repairs and maintenance: 		
 - Medical equipment  	  133.28 	  150.49 
 - Hospital building and others 	  81.21 	  72.81 
 Printing and stationery 	  24.76 	  24.54 
 Legal and professional charges  	  114.05 	  23.88 
 Rates and taxes 	  49.51 	  60.50 
 Loss on fair value changes in financial instrument 	  871.27 	  702.87 
 Travelling and conveyance 	  26.06 	  23.15 
 Advertisement and publicity 	  54.29 	  58.93 
 Communication expenses 	  8.93 	  8.56 
 Trade receivable written off 	  41.56 	  -   
 Provision for impairment of trade receivables 	  155.84 	  (13.21)
 Insurance 	  4.40 	  2.96 
 Subscriptions and membership fees 	  3.66 	  4.91 
 Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 	  1.52 	  -   
 Investment written off 	  0.10 	
 Donations 	  1.65 	  0.61 
 Bank charges 	  26.10 	  49.43 
 Contributions towards Corporate Social Responsibility (refer note 2.34) 	  10.14 	  6.71 
 Directors sitting fee 	  1.84 	  1.37 
 Miscellaneous expenses         	  21.04 	  17.44  

Total 	   3,611.72 	  3,001.81  

 * Net of amount capitalised (refer note 2.26) 

Payment to auditors (excluding applicable taxes) 
included in legal and professional charges above		

Statutory audit fee	  3.30 	  2.80  

Other services (Refer note 2.39)	  9.82 	  -   

Out of pocket expenses	  0.20 	  0.13 

INR in millions2.24 Other expenses* 
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2.25 Contingent liabilities and commitments	

INR in millions

Particulars			   As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

i)	 Guarantee issued by the Company on behalf of related entities		   1,120.00 	  400.00 
	 (Value of loan availed outstanding as at period end against aforesaid guarantee 
	 is INR 1,004.36 millions (31 March 2018: INR 392.16 millions)

ii)	 Luxury tax matters in dispute, pending appeals filed by the Company		  82.27 	  82.27 
	 [paid in protest and disclosed under other non-current assets INR 39.47 millions 
	 (31 March 2018: INR 28.44 millions)]			    

iii)	 Service tax matters in dispute, pending appeals filed by the Company		  31.63 	  31.60 
	 [paid in protest and disclosed under other non-current assets INR 8.90 millions; 
	 (31 March 2018: INR 9.95 millions)]			 

iv)	 VAT matters in dispute, pending appeals filed by the Company		  1.76 	  1.76 
	 [paid in protest and disclosed under other non-current assets INR 1.10 millions 
	 (31 March 2018: INR 1.10 millions)]			    

v)	 Medical claims (gross, excluding interest/costs)			   82.68 	  75.53 

vi)	 Other claims			    23.76 	  23.76 

vii)	 The Company has obtained a stay from High Court for the state of 
	 Andhra Pradesh, dated 11 November 2014, directing the local authorities not to 
	 proceed with the acquisition of part of the building in Nellore for the purpose of 
	 road widening. No provision thereof has been made in the standalone 
	 financials statements.

viii)	 An individual has filed a consumer case at National Consumer Disputes 
	 Redressal Commission against the Company along with 3 other hospitals 
	 demanding a total compensation of Rs 235.01 million along with interest @ 18% p.a 
	 towards medical negligence. The Company has replied for the allegations 
	 made and believes that it has a strong case in this regard and there shall not be 
	 any outflow of resources. No provision thereof has been made in the 
	 standalone financial statement.

(a) Contingent liabilities

(b) The Hon’ble Supreme Court of India (“SC”) by their order dated 28 February, 2019, in the case of Surya Roshani Limited & 
others v/s Employee Provident Fund Organisation (EPFO), set out the principles based on which allowances paid to the employees 
should be identified for inclusion in basic wages for the purposes of computation of Provident Fund contribution. Subsequently, 
a review petition against this decision has been filed and is pending before the SC for disposal. Pending decision on the subject 
review petition and directions from the EPFO, the Management based on a legal opinion has a view that the applicability of the 
decision is prospective and accordingly provided the liability for March 2019. The impact for the past period, will depend upon 
the outcome of subject review petition and directions from the EPFO and hence disclosed as a Contingent liability in the financial 
statements. The impact of the same is not ascertainable.

Notes:

i. Pending resolution of the respective proceedings, it is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of the cash flow, if 
any, in respect of the above as it is determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending with various forums/authorities.

ii. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are 
required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable in its standalone financial statements. The Company does not 
expect the outcome of these proceeding to have a materially adverse effect on its financial position.



17th Annual Report 2018-19 76

INR in millions

Particulars			   As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

I) Capital commitment

i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on			   52.62 	  169.63 
   capital account and not provided for (net of advances)

II) Other commitments					   
i)  The Company vide its Board meeting dated 18 January 2019 has approved for an 
investment in Kurnool Rainbow Hospitals Private Limited (Kurnool Rainbow). 
Accordingly, as at 31 March 2019 the Company has paid an advance amounting to 
INR 60.00 millions towards purchase of 55% shareholding in Kurnool Rainbow 
out of the total consideration payable of INR 81.68 million accordingly as at 
31 March 2019 balance of INR 21.68 millions is disclosed as commitment. 
Subsequent to the year end, the Company has entered into a share purchase 
agreement dated 1 April 2019 with the shareholders of Kurnool Rainbow and 
acquired 55% shareholding.

ii) During the year, the Company has acquired 80% shareholding in 
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited (‘Saveera’). 
As per the shareholder’s agreement, the Company agreed to transfer 3.5% 
of the equity shares of Saveera to the minority shareholders of 
Saveera subject to fulfillment of certain conditions.		

(c) Commitments

2.26 Incidental expenditure during the construction period

The Company has capitalised the following expenses of revenue nature to the cost of property, plant and equipment, as they 
are attributable expenses. Consequently amounts disclosed under the respective notes as mentioned below are net of amounts  
capitalised by the Company.					   

INR in millions

Particulars	 For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Other expenses (refer note 2.24)

Rates and taxes	  -   	  1.33 

Travelling and other expenses	  -   	  3.27 

Power and fuel	  -   	  0.12  

Total (A)	  -   	  4.72 

Employee benefit expenses (B ) (refer note 2.22)	  -   	  15.22  

Grand total (A+B)	  -   	  19.94
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2.27 Lease

Operating leases in the capacity of lessee					   

The Company has taken offices, residential premises and medical equipment under cancellable operating leases. The Company 
intends to renew such lease in the normal course of business. Total rental expenses under cancellable operating lease amounted to 
INR 48.07 millions (31 March 2018: INR 51.10 millions). The same are grouped under other expenses in the standalone statement of 
profit and loss.

Finance lease in capacity of lessee

Medical equipment includes the following amounts where the Company is a lessee under a finance lease:
INR in millions

Particulars			   As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Cost				    48.00 	  48.00  

Accumulated depreciation			    (34.90)	  (26.10)

Net carrying amount			    13.10 	  21.90 

The lease term in respect of assets acquired  under finance leases generally expire within 5 years to 6 years. Under the term of 
leases, the Company has the option to acquire the leased assets at nominal value at the expiry of the leases.			 
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2.28 Employee benefits	

(i) Defined benefit plan

The Company operate post-employment defined benefit plan that provides for gratuity. The gratuity plan entitles an employee, 
who has rendered at least five years of continuous services, to receive one-half month’s salary for each year of completed services 
at the time of retirement/exit. The gratuity fund is administered by trust formed for this purpose and is managed by Life Insurance 
Corporation of India. The Company’s obligation in respect of gratuity plan, which is a defined benefit plan is provided for based 
on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The Company accrues 
gratuity as per the provisions of the payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 as applicable as at the balance sheet date and accordingly the 
maximum payment is restricted to INR 2 million per employee.

A. Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts 
recognised in the Company’s standalone financial statements as at the balance sheet date:				 

INR in millions

Particulars			   As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Defined benefit obligations 			    111.40 	  75.06  

Fair value of plan assets			    19.77 	  17.88 

Net defined benefit obligations			    91.63 	  57.18 

Total employee benefit liability			    91.63 	  57.18  

Non-current			    91.63 	  57.18 

Current			    -   	  -   

INR in millions

Particulars	 As at	 As at 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Defined benefit obligation as at 1 April	 75.06 	  85.30 

Benefits paid	  (2.92)	  (3.28)

Current service cost	  14.57 	  13.54 

Past service cost	  -   	  1.51 

Interest cost	  5.47 	  6.25 

Actuarial losses/(gains) recognised in other comprehensive income

- Changes in demographic assumptions	  12.03 	  (0.68)

- Changes in financial assumptions	  4.72 	  (2.72)

- experience adjustments	  2.47 	  (24.86)

Defined benefit obligation as at 31 March 	  111.40 	  75.06 

B. Reconciliation of net defined benefit obligation

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit obligation and 
its components.

i) Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

INR in millions

Particulars	 As at	 As at 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Plan assets at beginning of the year	  17.88 	  16.69  

Contributions paid into the plan	  4.10 	  3.63 

Interest income	  1.34 	  1.26 

Benefits paid	  (2.92)	  (3.28)

Return on plan assets	  (0.63)	  (0.42)

Plan assets at end of the year	  19.77 	  17.88 

Net defined benefit liability	  91.63 	  57.18

ii) Reconciliation to fair value of plan assets
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INR in millions

Particulars	 For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Current service cost	  14.57 	  13.54  

Past service cost	  -   	  1.51 

Interest on net defined benefit obligation	  4.13 	  4.99 

Net gratuity cost, included in ‘employee benefits expense’	  18.70 	  20.04 

C. i) Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss

INR in millions

Particulars	 For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Actuarial (gain) / loss on net defined benefit obligation	  (19.85)	  27.84 

C.  ii) Re-measurements recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI)

INR in millions

Particulars			   As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Fund managed by Insurer			    19.77 	  17.88 

D. Plan assets (Plan assets comprises of the following:)

INR in millions

Principal actuarial assumptions			   As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Discount rate			   7.50%	 7.55%

Salary escalation rate			   8.00%	 6.00%

E. Defined benefit obligation
i) Actuarial assumptions
The following are the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):

Discount rate: The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the balance sheet 
date for the estimated term of the obligations.
Salary escalation rate: The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into accounts the inflation, seniority, promotion 
and other relevant factors.					   
	

INR in millions

Particulars			   As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

1st following year			    19.25 	  5.20 

Year 2 to 5			    56.36 	  20.79 

Year 6 to 9			    41.52 	  17.94 

Year 10 and above			    73.95 	  173.53 

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
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Particulars	 For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss towards

i) Provident fund	  37.54 	  40.65 

ii) Employee state insurance	  28.19 	  22.45 

F. Defined contribution plan

ii) Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions would have affected the defined 
benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

Particulars	 For the year ended 31 March 2019	 For the year ended 31 March 2018

		  Increase	 Decrease	 Increase	 Decrease

Discount rate (1% movement)	  (6.19)	  6.90 	  (7.80)	  9.26  

Salary escalation rate (1% movement)	  6.62 	  (6.11)	  9.09 	  (7.93)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does not provide an 
approximation of the sensitivity of the assumption shown.	
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Nature of relationship	 Name of related parties			 

Subsidiaries	 Arunodaya Hospitals Private Limited
	 KIMS Hospitals Private Limited		
	 KIMS Swastha Private Limited 		
	 KIMS Cuddles Private Limited 		
	 KIMS Sahariah Healthcare Private Limited 
	 (closed on 30 March 2019)		
	 KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited 
	 (w.e.f. 30 March 2018)		
	 KIMS Hospital (Bhubaneswar) Private Limited 	
	 Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences 
	 Private Limited (w.e.f. 05 May 2018)		
	 Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences 
	 Private Limited (w.e.f. 05 September 2018)

Associates	 KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited 
	 (until 29 March 2018)		

Key Management personnel (KMP)	 Dr. B Bhaskara Rao - Managing Director and 
	 Chief Executive Officer (CEO)		
	 Uma Shanker Mantha - Company secretary
	 Vikas Maheshwari - Chief Financial Officer
	 Mrs. Dandamudi Anitha -Whole-time Director

Directors	 Mr. B Abhinay (appointed w.e.f. 18 January 2019)
	 B Krishnaiah - Chairman 
	 (resigned on 18 January 2019)		
	 Mr G Rajeswara Rao		
	 Mrs Jyothi Prasad		
	 Mr K Padmanaabhaiah (resigned w.e.f. 20 June 2018)	
	 Mr Amitabha Guha (resigned w.e.f. 18 January 2019)

Relative of KMP	 Dr. Raavi Sweata - 
	 Daughter in law of Managing Director and CEO

Enterprises under control or joint control of 	 Sri Viswa Medicare Limited (Formerly known as 
	 Reliance Medicare Limited)			 

KMP and other relative	 KIMS Foundation and Research Centre
	 Bollineni Krishnaiah Charitable Trust

Enterprise having significant influence	 India Advantage Fund S31 (until 20 June 2018) 
over the company	 General Atlantic Singapore KH Pte. Ltd 
	 (w.e.f. 20 June 2018)		

2.29 Related party disclosures	  
(a) Parties where control exists or where significant influence exists and with whom transactions have 
taken place during the current year or previous year
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Particulars	 For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

i.	 Loans and advances given
	 KIMS Hospitals Private Limited	  5.10 	  89.04 
	 KIMS Swastha Private Limited	  0.07 	  0.28 
	 KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited	  -   	  6.00 
	 KIMS Foundation and Research Centre	  3.58 	  0.60 
	 Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited	  195.80 	  -   
	 Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited	  37.00 	  -    

ii.	 Refund of loans and advances
	 KIMS Cuddles Private Limited	  -   	  3.18 
	 KIMS Foundation and Research Centre	  5.00 	  3.00 
	 KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited	  -   	  10.96 
	 Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited	  166.50 	  -

iii.	 Interest income earned on loans given			 
	 KIMS Hospitals Private Limited 	  10.55 	  9.02 
	 KIMS Cuddles Private Limited	  -   	  0.25 
	 KIMS Swastha Private Limited	  0.51 	  0.49 
	 KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited	  -   	  0.27 
	 Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited	  8.91 	  -   
	 Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited	  1.97 	  - 

iv.	 Interest income received
	 KIMS Hospitals Private Limited 	  -   	  3.18 
	 KIMS Cuddles Private Limited	  -   	  0.10 
	 KIMS Swastha Private Limited	  -   	  0.25 
	 KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited	  -   	  0.71 
	 Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited	  8.91 	  -

v.	 Advance for purchase of land			 
	 Dr. B Bhaskara Rao	  70.00 	  -

vi.	 Professional fee to KMP
	 Dr. B Bhaskara Rao	  18.00 	  18.00

vii.	 Professional fee to relative of KMP
	 Dr. Raavi Sweata	  1.80 	  0.36

viii.	 Rent to KMP
	 Dr. B Bhaskara Rao	  0.10 	  0.10 

ix.	 Managerial remuneration **
	 Dr. B Bhaskara Rao	  24.00 	  24.00 
	 Mrs. Dandamudi Anitha	  3.00 	  3.00 
	 Mr B Abhinay	  5.35 	  2.10 
	 Vikas Maheshwari	  6.57 	  5.74 
	 Uma Shanker Mantha	  1.78 	  1.68

x.	 Directors sitting fee
	 Mr B Krishnaiah	  0.29 	  0.15 
	 Mr G Rajeswara Rao	  0.47 	  0.31 
	 Mrs Jyothi Prasad	  0.38 	  0.36 
	 Mr K Padmanaabhaiah	  0.23 	  0.22 
	 Mr Amitabha Guha	  0.47 	  0.33 

xi.	 Expenditure towards CSR			 
	 KIMS Foundation and Research Centre	  10.14 	  6.51 

xii	 Purchase of pharmacy items 			 
	 KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited	  0.95 	  1.76

xiii	 Revenue from sale of pharmacy and sale of services
	 KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited	  9.95 	  11.16 
	 Arunodaya Hospitals private Limited	  0.11 	  -

(b) Transactions with related parties INR in millions
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INR in millions

	 Particulars	 For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

xiv	 Investment in Associate
	 KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited	  -   	  80.00

xv	 Investment in subsidiaries
	 Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 
	 (equity shares)	  73.38 	  -   
	 Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 
	 (preference shares)	  100.00 	  -   
	 Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 
	 (equity shares)	  18.03 	  -   
	 Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 
	 (preference shares)	  290.00 	  -

xvi	 Write off of investment
	 KIMS Sahariah Healthcare Private Limited	  0.10 	  -

xvii	 Reimbursement of claims
	 Bollineni Krishnaiah Charitable Trust	  -   	  0.38 
	 KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited	  9.00 	  9.40 
	 Sri Viswa Medicare Limited *	  0.00 	  -   
	 Arunodaya Hospitals private Limited	  0.11 	  -

xviii	 Guarantee closed 
	 KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited	  -   	  310.00

xix	 Guarantee given on behalf of
	 KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited	  -   	  400.00 
	 Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited	  170.00 	  -   
	 Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited	  550.00 	  - 

xx	 Commission income on guarantees given to
	 KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited	  2.00 	  1.71 
	 Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited	  0.18 	  -   
	 Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited	  0.71 	  - 

xxi	 Intercorporate deposit taken from
	 Arunodaya Hospitals Private Limited	  -   	  15.00

xxii	 Repayment of intercorporate deposit 		
	 Arunodaya Hospitals Private Limited	  -   	  15.00

xxiii	 Interest expenses on intercorporate deposit
	 Arunodaya Hospitals Private Limited	  -   	  0.36

xxiv	 Repayment of unsecured loan
	 Dr. B Bhaskara Rao	  -   	  2.74 

xxv	 Sale of medical equipment
	 KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited	  -   	  16.17

xxvi	 Interest expense
	 India Advantage Fund	  120.01 	  521.19

xxvii	 Fair value changes in financial instrument
	 India Advantage Fund	  871.27 	  702.87

xxviii	 Derecognition of financial liability	
	 India Advantage Fund	  6,596.22 	  -

xxix	 Issue of equity shares including share premium
	 General Atlantic Singapore KH Pte. Ltd	  880.00 	  -

xxx	 Cash received for issue of share warrants
	 Dr B Bhaskara Rao	  3.10 	  -
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Particulars	  As at 	  As at  
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Receivable from related parties

i.	 Trade receivables
	 Sri Viswa Medicare Limited	  2.21 	  2.21     

ii.	 Loans 			 
	 KIMS Hospitals Private Limited 	  133.74 	  128.63 
	 KIMS Swastha Private Limited	  6.34 	  6.28 
	 Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited	  29.30 	  -   
	 Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited	  37.00 	  -

iii	 Other advances			 
	 KIMS Foundation and Research Centre	  10.01 	  11.43

iv.	 Interest accrued on loans
	 KIMS Hospitals Private Limited 	  17.60 	  9.02 
	 KIMS Swastha Private Limited	  0.95 	  0.49 
	 Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited	  1.77 	  -

v	 Capital advance
	 Dr. B Bhaskara Rao (refer note 2.5)	  70.00 	  -
	 Payable to related parties

vi.	 Trade payables			 
	 Dr. B Bhaskara Rao	  1.36 	  1.40 
	 Dr. Raavi Sweata	  0.14 	  -

vii.	 Employee benefits payable
	 Dr. B Bhaskara Rao	  1.16 	  -   
	 Mr. B Abhinay	  0.47 	  0.16 
	 Vikas Maheshwari *	  0.00 	  0.42 
	 Uma Shanker Mantha	  0.11 	  0.10 
	 Mrs Dandamudi Anitha	  0.14 	  0.14

viii.	 Guarantee given on behalf of
	 KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited	  400.00 	  400.00 
	 Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited	  170.00 	  -   
	 Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited	  550.00 	  - 

ix.	 Financial guarantee liability
	 KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited	  9.42 	  11.42 
	 Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited	  3.19 	  -   
	 Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited	  17.24 	  -

x.	 Liability for financial instrument
	 India Advantage Fund	  -   	  5,604.93 

(c) The balances receivables from and payable to related parties	 INR in millions

(d) For certain loan availed by the Company, Directors of the Company have given personal guarantee. Refer note 2.12 and 2.15 for details.	

* Amount is below the rounding off norms adopted by the Company. Below is the particulars in full value:				  
S.No.	 Particulars	 Amount in INR	

(i)	 Reimbursement of claims to Sri Viswa Medicare Limited	 1,500 

(ii)	 Employee benefits payable to Vikas Maheshwari	  1,108 		

** The managerial personnel are covered by the Company’s gratuity policy and are eligible for leave encashment along with other 
employees of the Company. The proportionate amount of gratuity and leave encashment pertaining to the managerial personnel has not 
been included in the aforementioned disclosures as these are determined on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole.

(e) Refer note 2.2 for the investments as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018

Terms and conditions: 
All transactions with these related parties are priced on an arm’s length basis and resulting outstanding receivables and payables including 
financial assets and financial liabilities balances are settled in cash as per terms of agreement. None of the balances are secured.

All transactions with those related parties are priced on an arm’s length basis and resulting outstanding receivables and payables including 
financial assets and financial liabilities balances are settled in cash within a range of 30-120 days of the transaction date. None of balances 
are secured.
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INR in millions

Particulars	 For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Earnings
Loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders	  (436.55)	  (812.59)

Shares
Number of shares at the beginning of the year	  50,149,732 	  50,149,732 
Add: Equity shares issued during the year*	  24,339,820 	  -
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year	  74,489,552 	  50,149,732
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the year - Basic	  69,154,797 	  50,149,732
Weighted average number of equity shares arising out of issue of 
share warrant that have dilutive effect on EPS	  548,813 	  - 
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the year - Diluted	  69,703,610 	  50,149,732
Earnings per share of par value INR 10-Basic (INR)	 (6.31)	  (16.20)
Earnings per share of par value INR 10-Diluted (INR) **	 (6.31)	  (16.20)

* Number of equity shares issued during the year 31 March 2019 includes 21,474,864 equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid up 
which were classified as financial liability as at 31 March 2018.
** For the year ended 31 March 2019, the share warrants are anti dilutive in nature and hence basic and dilutive EPS are the same.

2.30 Earnings per share (EPS)

2.31 Segment information

“Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment” (“Ind AS 108”) establishes standards for the way that public business enterprises report information 
about operating segments and related disclosures about products and services, geographic areas, and major customers. Based 
on the “management approach” as defined in Ind AS 108, Operating segments are to be reported in a manner consistent with 
the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM evaluates the Company’s performance 
and allocates resources on overall basis. The Company’s sole operating segment is therefore ‘Medical and Healthcare Services’. 
Accordingly, there are no additional disclosure to be provided under Ind AS 108, other than those already provided in the standalone 
financial statements

Further the business operation of the Company are concentrated in India, and hence, the Company is considered to operate only in 
one geographical segment.”

2.32 Due to Micro and Small Enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends 
that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum 
Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amount payable to such enterprises 
as at 31 March 2019 has been made in the standalone financial statements based on information received and available with the 
Company. Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions 
of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“The MSMED Act’) is not expected to be material. The Company 
has not received any claim for interest from any supplier.				  

Particulars	 As at	 As at 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small supplies as at 
end of the year

- Principal	 -	 -

- Interest	 -	 -

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 
of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 
2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to 
the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;	 -	 -

“The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay 
in making payment (whic h has been paid but beyond the appointed 
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified 
under the MSMED Act;”	 -	 -

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end 
of each accounting year; and 	 -	 -

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above 
are actually paid to the small enterprises for the purpose of 
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of 
the MSMED Act.	 -	 -
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2.33 Investments, loans, guarantees and security:

Entity	 As at	 Allotted / 	 Sold during the	 Investment	 As at 
		  31 March 2018	 purchased	 year	 written off	 31 March 2019 
			   during the year

Investment in securities

KKIMS Hospital Private Limited 	  0.10 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  0.10 

KIMS Cuddles Private Limited	  0.10 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  0.10 

KIMS Swastha Private Limited	  0.10 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  0.10 

Arunodaya Hospitals Private Limited	  63.34 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  63.34 

KIMS Hospitals Enterprises Private Limited	  251.06 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  251.06 

KIMS Sahariah Healthcare Private Limited	  0.10 	  - 	  - 	  0.10 	  -   

KIMS Hospital (Bhubaneswar) Private Limited	  0.10 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  0.10 

Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited	  -   	  173.38 	  - 	  - 	  173.38 

Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited	  -   	  308.03 	  - 	  - 	  308.03

INR in millions(a) The Company has made investment in the following Companies:

Entity	 Purpose of	 As at 	 Given during	 Repaid during	 As at 
		  loans	 31 March 2018	 the year	 the year	 31 March 2019

KIMS Hospital Private Limited 	 Financial assistance	  128.64 	  5.10 	  -   	  133.74  

KIMS Swastha Private Limited	 Financial assistance	  6.27 	  0.07 	  -   	  6.34 

Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences 
Private Limited	 Financial assistance	 -	 195.80	 166.50	 29.30

Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences 
Private Limited	 Financial assistance	  -   	  37.00 	  -   	  37.00 

INR in millions(b) The Company has given unsecured loans to its following subsidiaries/associate:

INR in millions

(c) Details of guarantee provided

The Company has provided guarantees to the following subsidiaries:

For the year ended 31 March 2019

Particulars	 KIMS Hospital	 Iconkrishi Institute	 Saveera Institute of	 Total for the 
		  Enterprises	 of Medical Sciences	 Medical Sciences	 year ended 
		  Private Limited	 Private Limited	 Private Limited	 31 March 2019

Guarantee provided outstanding as at the 
beginning of the financial year	  400.00 	  -   	  -   	  400.00 

Guarantee provided during the financial year	  -   	  170.00 	  550.00 	  720.00 

Guarantee provided settled/expired during 
the financial year	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   

Guarantee provided outstanding as at the 
end of the financial year	  400.00 	  170.00 	  550.00 	  1,120.00

INR in millionsFor the year ended 31 March 2018

Particulars	 KIMS Hospital	 Iconkrishi Institute	 Saveera Institute of	 Total for the 
		  Enterprises	 of Medical Sciences	 Medical Sciences	 year ended 
		  Private Limited	 Private Limited	 Private Limited	 31 March 2018

Guarantee provided outstanding as at the 
beginning of the financial year	  310.00 	  -   	  -   	  310.00

Guarantee provided during the financial year	  400.00 	  -   	  -   	  400.00 

Guarantee provided settled/expired during 
the financial year	  (310.00)	  -   	  -   	  (310.00)

Guarantee provided outstanding as at the 
end of the financial year	  400.00 	  -   	  -   	  400.00 
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2.34 Consequent to the requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the Company has made contributions as stated 
below.  The same is in line with activities specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 and activities approved by the CSR 
committee:

Particulars	 For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year	  13.72 	  6.71  

b) Amount spent during the year	  -   	  -   

    (i) Construction/acquisition of any assets	  -   	  -   

    (ii) On purpose other than (i) above:	  -   	  -   

    Promoting preventive healthcare*	  13.72 	  6.71  

Total	  13.72 	  6.71 

* The above amounts include INR 13.72 millions (31 March 2018: INR 6.51 millions) Spent by way of contribution to KIMS Foundation 
and Research Centre, a registered trust where KMP have significant influence.		

2.35 Capital management	

The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable capital base so as to maintain investor and creditor confidence and to sustain future 
development of the business. Management monitors capital on the basis of return on capital employed as well as the ‘adjusted net 
debt’ to ‘adjusted equity’ ratio.				  

For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total liabilities, including interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash 
equivalents. Adjusted equity comprises all components of equity.				  

The Company’s adjusted net debt to equity ratio as of 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 was as follows:			 

INR in millions

Particulars	 For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Total liabilities	  3,528.81 	  9,884.61   

Less: Cash and cash equivalents	  62.59 	  85.02 

Adjusted net debt	  3,466.22 	  9,799.59 

Total equity	  5,039.28 	  (1,990.58)

Adjusted net debt to equity ratio	  0.69 	  (4.92)
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As at 31 March 2019	 Financial	 Financial	 Financial	 Total carrying	 Fair value level 
		  assets –	 liabilities -	 liabilities - 	 amount 
		  amortised cost	 FVTPL	 amortised cost

Financial assets measured at fair value	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  -

Financial liabilities measured at fair value		

Other financial liabilities	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  Level 3

Financial assets not measured at fair value

 Trade receivables	  1,000.30 	  -   	  -   	  1,000.30 	  -   

Investments	  796.21 	  -   	  -   	  796.21 	

Cash and cash equivalents	  62.59 	  -   	  -   	  62.59 	  -   

Bank balances other than above	  21.11 	  -   	  -   	  21.11 	  -   

Loans	  236.91 	  -   	  -   	  236.91 	

Other financial assets	  94.88 	  -   	  -   	  94.88 	  - 

Total	   2,212.00 	  -   	  -   	  2,212.00 	  -

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 
(Refer note below)

Long-term borrowings 
(excluding current maturities) 	  -   	  -   	  1,523.72 	  1,523.72 	  -   

Short-term borrowings	  -   	  -   	  85.39 	  85.39 	  -   

Trade payables	  -   	  -   	  736.71 	  736.71 	  -   

Other financial liabilities	  -   	  -   	  387.44 	  387.44 	  - 

Total	  -   	  -   	  2,733.26 	  2,733.26 	  -

2.36 Financial instruments : Fair value and risk management		

INR in millionsA. Accounting classification and fair values

As at 31 March 2018	 Financial	 Financial	 Financial	 Total carrying	 Fair value level 
		  assets –	 liabilities -	 liabilities - 	 amount 
		  amortised cost	 FVTPL	 amortised cost

Financial assets measured at fair value	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  -

Financial liabilities measured at fair value		

Other financial liabilities	  -   	  1,609.12 	  -   	  1,609.12 	  Level 3 

Financial assets not measured at fair value 
(Refer note below)

Trade receivables	  960.10 	  -   	  -   	  960.10 	  -   

Investments	  314.90 	  -   	  -   	  314.90 	

Cash and cash equivalents	  85.02 	  -   	  -   	  85.02 	  -   

Bank balances other than above	  3.26 	  -   	  -   	  3.26 	  -   

Loans	  159.83 	  -   	  -   	  159.83 	

Other financial assets	  148.34 	  -   	  -   	  148.34 	  - 

Total	   1,671.45 	  -   	  -   	  1,671.45 	  - 

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 
(Refer note below)

Long-term borrowings 
(excluding current maturities) 	  -   	  -   	  2,140.33 	  2,140.33 	  -   

Short-term borrowings	  -   	  -   	  265.71 	  265.71 	  -   

Trade payables	  -   	  -   	  787.85 	  787.85 	  -   

Other financial liabilities	  -   	  -   	  6,000.74 	  6,000.74 	  -

Total	  -   	  -   	  9,194.63 	  9,194.63 	  -

INR in millions

Note: The Company has not disclosed the fair values for financial instruments such as short-term trade receivables or short-term 
trade payables because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair values.
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B. Measurement of fair values

i. Valuation technique and significant unobservable inputs						    

Financial instrument: The fair value is determined based on the value arrived as per discounted cash flows approach as on the 
reporting date. Significant unobservable input includes forecast annual revenue growth rate for income from hospital services 
ranges from 20% p.a to 25% p.a. (31 March 2018: 25% p.a.), forecast annual revenue growth rate for income from pharmacy and 
others ranges from 10% p.a. to 15% p.a. (31 March 2018: 15% p.a.) and Weighted average cost of capital 31 March 2019: Nil (31 March 
2018: 11.77% p.a.).

ii. Transfer between Level 1 and 2

There have been no transfers from Level 2 to Level 1 or vice-versa in 2018-19 and no transfers in either direction in 2017-18.

INR in millions

			   FVTPL Financial instruments

Balance at 01 April 2017	  906.25 

Net change in fair value (unrealised)	  702.87 

Balance at 31 March 2018	  1,609.12

Balance at 01 April 2018	  1,609.12 

Net change in fair value (unrealised)	  (1,609.12)

Balance at 31 March 2019	 -

iii. Level 3 fair values

Sensitivity analysis

For the fair values of  FVTPL financial instrument, reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the significant 
unobservable inputs, holding other inputs constant, would have the following effects:		

			  Profit and loss, net of tax
		  Increase	 Decrease

2018-19

Annual revenue growth rate (1% movement)

Risk adjusted discount rate (1% movement)

2017-18

Annual revenue growth rate (1% movement)	 (167.65)	  167.65

Risk adjusted discount rate (1% movement)	 419.12 	  (502.94)

INR in millions
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C. Financial risk management					   
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk.

(i) Risk management framework

The Company’s Board of Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management 
framework. The Board of Directors has established the risk management committee, which is responsible for developing and 
monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The committee reports regularly to the Board of Directors on its activities.

“The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate 
risk limits and controls to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to 
reflect changes in market conditions and Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and 
procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all the employees understand their roles 
and obligations.“

The Company’s audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk  management policies 
and procedures and reviews the adequacy of risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit 
committee is assisted in its oversight role by the internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk 
management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

(ii) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading 
to financial loss. The credit risk arises principally from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its investing 
activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions and other financial instruments. The carrying amounts of financial 
assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits to whom credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for credit. The 
collection from the trade receivables are monitored on a continuous basis by the receivables team.

The Company establishes an allowance for credit loss that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade and other 
receivables based on the past and the recent collection trend. The maximum exposure to credit risk as at reporting date is primarily 
from trade receivables amounting to INR 1,337.52 millions as on 31 March 2019 (31 March 2018 : INR 1,102.30 millions). The movement 
in allowance for credit loss in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows:

INR in millions

Allowance for credit losses			   As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Opening balance			    142.20 	  155.41 

Credit loss added / (reversed)			    155.84 	  (13.21)

Closing Balance			    298.04 	  142.20

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent is limited as the Company generally transacts with banks and financial institutions with high 
credit ratings assigned by international and domestic credit rating agencies.

(iii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities 
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far 
as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, 
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. 					   
	

INR in millions

Particulars	 Carrying value	 Less than 1 year	 1 - 5 years	 More than	 Total 
					     5 years

Long-term borrowings 
(excluding current maturities)	  1,523.72 	  -   	  1,148.72 	  378.56 	  1,527.28 

Short-term borrowings	  85.39 	  85.39 	  -   	  -   	  85.39 

Interest accrued on long-term borrowings	  -   	  153.99 	  349.49 	  27.05 	  530.53 

Trade payables	  736.71 	  736.71 	  -   	  -   	  736.71 

Other financial liabilities	  387.44 	  387.35 	  -   	  0.09 	  387.44 

Total	   2,733.26 	  1,363.44 	  1,498.21 	  405.70 	  3,267.35 

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 
31 March 2019:
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INR in millions

Particulars	 Carrying value	 Less than 1 year	 1 - 5 years	 More than	 Total 
					     5 years

Long-term borrowings 
(excluding current maturities)	  2,140.33 	  -   	  1,020.70 	  1,126.66 	  2,147.36 

Short-term borrowings	  265.71 	  265.71 	  -   	  -   	  265.71 

Interest on long-term borrowings	  -   	  211.01 	  516.22 	  121.92 	  849.15 

Trade payables	  787.85 	  787.85 	  -   	  -   	  787.85 

Other financial liabilities	  6,000.74 	  6,000.65 	  -   	  0.09 	  6,000.74 

Total	   9,194.63 	  7,265.22 	  1,536.92 	  1,248.67 	  10,050.81 

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 
31 March 2018:

The Company has secured loans from bank that contain loan covenants. A future breach of covenant may require the Company to 
repay the loan earlier than indicated in the above table.					   
	

Particulars	 As at 	 As at  
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Variable rate long term borrowings (including current maturities) 
and short term borrowings	 1,740.73 	  2,472.44 

Total	   1,740.73 	  2,472.44

D. Market risk 

(i) Interest rate risk exposure

The exposure of the Company’s borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Particulars	 Impact on profit or loss	 Impact on equity, net of tax

		  As at	 As at 	 As at	 As at 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018	 31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Sensitivity

1% increase in MCLR	  (17.41)	  (24.72)	  (11.32)	  (16.17)

1% decrease in MCLR	  17.41 	  24.72 	  11.32 	  16.17

(i) Sensitivity

The interest rate sensitivity is based on the closing balance of secured term loans and working capital loans from banks.

INR in millions

D. Currency risk

The Company is not exposed to currency risk.

	 	 For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Current tax	  345.55 	  167.95 

Taxes for earlier years	  -   	  3.36 

Deferred tax attributable to temporary differences	  (43.23)	  73.47 

Tax expenses for the year	  302.32 	  244.78

2.37	Income-tax

a. Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss
INR in millions
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b. Amount recognised in other comprehensive income INR in millions

	 For the year ended 31 March 2019	 For the year ended 31 March 2018

		  Before tax	 Tax (expense)/	 Net of tax	 Before tax	 Tax (expense)/	 Net of tax 
			   benefit			   benefit

Re-measurement on defined benefit plans	  (19.85)	  6.94 	  (12.91)	  27.84 	  (9.73)	  18.11

	 	 For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Loss before tax	  (134.23)	  (567.81)

Enacted tax rates 	 34.944%	 34.608%

Tax expense at enacted rates 	  (46.91)	  (196.51)

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible/ (taxable) 
in calculating taxable income 
Non-deductible expenses	  349.44 	  426.78 

Taxes not routed through PL	  - 	  (0.23)

Impact of change in rate of tax	  - 	  4.45 

Adjustment in respect of income-tax for earlier years	  - 	  3.36 

Others	  (0.22)	  6.93

Total	  302.32 	  244.78 

c. Reconciliation of effective tax rate INR in millions

	 	 As at	 As at 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Deferred tax asset

Provision for doubtful receivables	  104.15 	  49.69 

Provision for employee benefits 	  59.22 	  42.37 

Others	  6.34 	  6.73 

Total deferred tax asset	  169.71 	  98.79 

Deferred tax liability

Expenses of depreciation on the fixed assets under income-tax, 
1961 over depreciation under Companies Act.	  588.93 	  564.56 

Others	  1.69 	  5.31 

Total deferred tax liability	  590.62 	  569.87 

Deferred tax liability (net)	  (420.91)	  (471.08)

d. Recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities

(i) Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following INR in millions

(ii) Movement in temporary differences INR in millions

Particulars	 Balance	 Recognised	 Recognised	 Balance	 Balance	 Recognised	 Recognised	 Balance 
	 as at 	 in profit	 in OCI	 as at	 as at 	 in profit	 in OCI	 as at 
	 1 April 2017	 or loss	 during	 31 March	 1 April 2018	 or loss	 during	 31 March 
		  during	 2017-18	 2018		  during	 2018-19	 2019 
		  2017-18				    2018-19

Provision for doubtful receivables	  53.79 	  (4.10)	  -   	  49.69 	  49.69 	  54.46 	  -   	  104.15 

Provision for employee benefits	  38.24 	  13.86 	  (9.73)	  42.37 	  42.37 	  9.91 	  6.94 	  59.22 

Others items - assets	  40.37 	  (33.64)	  -   	  6.73 	  6.73 	  (0.39)	  -   	  6.34 

Expenses of depreciation on the 
fixed assets under income tax, 
1961 over depreciation under 
Companies Act.	  (511.48)	  (53.08)	  -   	 (564.56)	  (564.56)	  (24.37)	  -   	 (588.93)

Others items - liability	  (8.80)	  3.49 	  -   	  (5.31)	  (5.31)	  3.62 	  -   	  (1.69)

	   (387.88)	  (73.47)	  (9.73)	  (471.08)	  (471.08)	  43.23 	  6.94 	  (420.91)
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	 	 As at	 As at	
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Charge on property, plant and equipment

Freehold land 	  83.42 	  83.42 

Leasehold land	  151.82 	  151.82 

Buildings	  3,303.30 	  3,324.87 

Medical and surgical equipment	  1,650.17 	  1,657.72 

Plant and equipment	  93.58 	  101.73 

Office equipment	  8.81 	  13.56 

Electrical equipment	  175.86 	  213.12 

Computers 	  20.64 	  22.54 

Furniture and fixtures	  133.82 	  151.52 

Vehicles	  18.59 	  23.31 

Total property, plant and equipment pledged as security	  5,640.01 	  5,743.61

Charge on current assets

Trade receivables	  110.92 	  1,102.30 

Inventories	  11.04 	  162.83 

Total current assets pledged as security	  121.96 	  1,265.13 

2.38 Assets pledged as security INR in millions
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2.39	 “During the previous year, the Company has paid amount aggregating INR 61.78 millions towards various services received 
for Initial Public Offering (IPO). These payments were classified as ”Other advances” under “”Other current financial assets”” as it 
was recoverable from shareholders in proportionate of shares offered.  During the year, the Company has decided not to proceed 
with the IPO and accordingly the advances paid could not be recovered from the shareholders and charged off as expenses in the 
respective head of profit and loss account.”

2.40 	The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable 
losses. The Company does not have any unhedged foreign currency exposure as at 31 March 2019.

As per our Report on standalone financial statements of even date attached

for B S R & Associates LLP	 for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants	 Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 116231W/W-100024	 CIN: U55101TG1973PLC040558

Sd/-	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
Sulabh Kumar Kedia	 Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao	 D Anitha 
Partner	 Managing Director	 Director 
Membership No.: 066380	 DIN:00008985	 DIN: 00025480 
UDIN: 19066380AAAAAO6513

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
	 Vikas Maheshwari	 Uma Shankar Mantha 
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary

Place: Hyderabad	 Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 03 July 2019	 Date: 03 July 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited  
(hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its 
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 
March 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), 
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial 
statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based 
on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries as 
was audited by the other auditors, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information 
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs 
of the Group, as at 31 March 2019, of its consolidated loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated 
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) 
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group 
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Act. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information 

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. 
The other information comprises the information included in the holding Company’s annual report, but 
does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The annual report is expected 
to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements 

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and 
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a 
true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated loss and other comprehensive income, 
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the 
Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company; and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
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estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the 
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective management and Board of Directors of 
the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or 
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group is responsible for overseeing the 
financial reporting process of each company. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in 
preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Group (company and its subsidiaries) to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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•	 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such entities or 
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements, 
of which we are the independent auditors. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and 
performance of the audit of financial information of such entities. For the other entities included in the 
consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors 
remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. 
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are further 
described in para (a) of the section titled ‘Other Matters’ in this audit report. 

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of audit reports of the 
other auditors referred to in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities 
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, 
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.

Other Matters
(a)	 We did not audit the financial statements of 6 subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect 

total assets of INR 1,119.95 million as at 31 March 2019, total revenues of INR 229.39 million and 
net cash flows amounting to INR 2.90 million for the year ended on that date, as considered in the 
consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors 
whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these 
subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates 
to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the audit reports of the other auditors.

	 Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the 
work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
A.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of 

the other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries as were audited by other 
auditors, as noted in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

	 a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements.

	 b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of 
those books and the reports of the other auditors.

	 c)	 The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other 
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated 
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of 
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements. 

	 d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified 
under section 133 of the Act.
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	 e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company 
as on 31 March 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the 
reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, none of the 
directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2019 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

	 f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”.

B.	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other 
auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures and joint 
operations, as noted in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph:

i.	 The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2019 
on the consolidated financial position of the Group. Refer Note 2.24 to the consolidated financial 
statements.

ii.	 The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts during the year ended 31 March 2019. Refer Note 2.36 to the consolidated financial 
statements.

iii.	 There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies incorporated in India during the year ended 
31 March 2019.

iv.	 The disclosures in the consolidated financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in 
specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not been 
made in the financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31 March 2019. 

C.	 With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s report under section 197(16):
	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the reports 

of the statutory auditors of such subsidiary companies incorporated in India which were not audited by 
us, the remuneration paid during the current year by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies 
to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid 
to any director by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies is not in excess of the limit laid 
down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details 
under Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants	
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 116231W/ W-100024

Sd/-	
Sulabh Kumar Kedia
Partner
Membership No.: 066380
UDIN: 19066380AAAAAP9471	

Place: Hyderabad	
Date: 03 July 2019
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ report on the consolidated financial statements of Krishna Institute 
of Medical Sciences Limited for the year ended 31 March 2019 

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated financial statements 
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 

(Referred to in paragraph A(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 
report of even date) 

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the 
year ended 31 March 2019, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 
financial statements of Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the 
Holding Company”) and such companies incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 2013 which are 
its subsidiary companies as of that date. 

In our opinion, the Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India which are its subsidiary 
companies, have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 
March 2019, based on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements 
criteria established by such companies considering the essential components of such internal controls 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”). 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The respective Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on the 
criteria established by the respective Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of 
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”). 

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note 
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an 
audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements. Those Standards 
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference 
to consolidated financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of the internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other 
auditors of the relevant subsidiary companies in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters 
paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal 
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements 

A Company’s internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation 
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
A Company’s internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of Management and directors of the 
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements 
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Other Matter

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of 
the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates to 6 
subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports 
of the auditors of such Companies incorporated in India.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants	
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 116231W/ W-100024

Sd/-	
Sulabh Kumar Kedia
Partner
Membership No.: 066380
UDIN: 19066380AAAAAP9471	

Place: Hyderabad	
Date: 03 July 2019
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		  Note	  As at	 As at 
			   31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment		  2.1 (a)	  7,216.95 	  6,666.24 
Capital work-in-progress		  2.1 (a)	  2.32 	  -   
Other intangible assets		  2.1 (b)	  578.28 	  13.48 
Goodwill on consolidation			    437.72 	  430.16 
Financial assets				  
(i) Loans		  2.2 (a)	  39.81 	  33.73 
(ii) Other financial assets		  2.3 (a)	  24.37 	  12.27 
Deferred tax assets (net)		  2.41	  37.97 	  40.39 
Non-current tax assets (net)		  2.8	  328.01 	  283.97 
Other non-current assets		  2.4	  374.14 	  102.44  

Total non-current assets			    9,039.57 	  7,582.68   
Current assets
Inventories		  2.5	  268.61 	  201.42 
Financial assets				  
(i) Trade receivables		  2.6	  1,232.69 	  1,075.28 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents		  2.7 (a)	  80.63 	  109.62 
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above		  2.7 (b)	  21.36 	  3.83 
(iv) Loans		  2.2 (b)	  15.19 	  22.23 
(v) Other financial assets		  2.3 (b)	  87.59 	  124.68 
Other current assets		  2.9	  32.43 	  22.66 

Total current assets			     1,738.50 	  1,559.72  

Total assets			     10,778.07 	  9,142.40 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital		  2.10	  744.90 	  501.50 
Other equity 			    4,675.26 	  (2,084.02)
Total equity attributable to owners of the Company			    5,420.16 	  (1,582.52)

Non-controlling interests			    273.79 	  212.58 
Total Equity			    5,693.95 	  (1,369.94)

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities				  
(i) Borrowings		  2.11	  2,437.81 	  2,488.36 
(ii) Other financial liabilities		  2.12 (a)	  5.81 	  1.32 
Provisions		  2.13	  144.79 	  96.56 
Other non-current liabilities		  2.17 (a)	  13.48 	  0.42 
Deferred tax liabilities (net)		  2.41	  528.09 	  472.33 

Total non-current liabilities		    	  3,129.98 	  3,058.99  
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities				  
(i) Borrowings		  2.14	  175.53 	  305.14 
(ii) Trade payables				  
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and 	 2.15	  1.36 	  0.73 
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises  
and small enterprises”		  2.15	  1,039.23 	  948.83 
(iii) Other financial liabilities		  2.12 (b)	  493.25 	  6,059.05 
Provisions		  2.16	  17.61 	  10.95 
Other current liabilities		  2.17 (b)	  131.89 	  128.65 
Current tax liability, net			    95.27 	  -      
Total current liabilities			     1,954.14 	  7,453.35   
Total equity and liabilities			     10,778.07 	  9,142.40

Consolidated balance sheet	 INR in millions

Significant accounting policies
Notes to the standalone financial statements
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
As per our Report on consolidated financial statements of even date attached.

for B S R & Associates LLP	 for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants	 Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 116231W/W-100024	 CIN: U55101TG1973PLC040558

Sd/-	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
Sulabh Kumar Kedia	 Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao	 D Anitha 
Partner	 Managing Director	 Director 
Membership No.: 066380	 DIN:00008985	 DIN: 00025480 
UDIN: 19066380AAAAAP9471

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
	 Vikas Maheshwari	 Uma Shankar Mantha 
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary

Place: Hyderabad	 Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 03 July 2019	 Date: 03 July 2019
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	 Note	 For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March  2019	 31 March 2018

Revenue
Revenue from operations	 2.18	 9,180.05 	 6,636.71 
Other income	 2.19	 57.32 	 25.00 
Gain on fair value of investment in equity 
accounted investee	 2.38	  -   	 318.52 

Total revenue		   9,237.37 	 6,980.23 

Expenses
Medical consumables and pharmacy items consumed 	 2.20	 2,102.07 	 1,615.50 
Employee benefits expense	 2.21	 1,630.28 	 1,217.11 
Finance costs	 2.22	 407.96 	 830.80 
Depreciation and amortisation expense	 2.1	 521.38 	 396.54 
Other expenses    	 2.23	 4,692.21 	 3,139.74 

Total expenses		   9,353.90 	 7,199.69 

Loss before share of loss of equity accounted 
investees and tax expense		  (116.53)	 (219.46)

Share of profit / (loss) of equity accounted investees	  	 -   	 18.08 

Tax expense
 - Current tax 	 2.41	 386.09 	 180.84 
 - Deferred tax (benefit) / charge	 2.41	 (41.54)	 74.29 
 - Tax pertaining to earlier years	 2.41	 2.15 	 3.36 

Total tax expense		  346.70 	 258.49 

Loss for the year		  (463.23)	 (459.87)

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified 
subsequently to profit and loss 
 - Re-measurement of defined benefit plans		  (18.84)	 33.68 
 - Income-tax effect 		  6.64 	 (11.35)
- Share of other comprehensive income in 
equity accounted investee		   -   	 0.22 

Other comprehensive income, net of tax		   (12.20)	 22.55 

Total comprehensive income for the year 		   (475.43)	 (437.32)

Loss attributable to:
Owners of the Company		  (464.13)	 (471.67)
Non-controlling interests		  0.90 	 11.80 

Loss for the year		  (463.23)	 (459.87)

Other comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Company		  (12.51)	 20.77 
Non-controlling interests		  0.31 	 1.78 

Other comprehensive income for the year		   (12.20)	 22.55 

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Company		  (476.64)	 (450.89)
Non-controlling interests		  1.21 	 13.58  

Total comprehensive income for the year		   (475.43)	 (437.31)
Earnings per share (face value of share INR 10 each)
- Basic	 2.29	 (6.71)	 (9.41)
- Diluted	 2.29	 (6.71)	 (9.41)

Consolidated statement of profit and loss 	 INR in millions

Significant accounting policies
Notes to the standalone financial statements
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
As per our Report on consolidated financial statements of even date attached.

for B S R & Associates LLP	 for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants	 Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 116231W/W-100024	 CIN: U55101TG1973PLC040558

Sd/-	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
Sulabh Kumar Kedia	 Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao	 D Anitha 
Partner	 Managing Director	 Director 
Membership No.: 066380	 DIN:00008985	 DIN: 00025480 
UDIN: 19066380AAAAAP9471

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
	 Vikas Maheshwari	 Uma Shankar Mantha 
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary

Place: Hyderabad	 Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 03 July 2019	 Date: 03 July 2019
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity 	 INR in millions

Securities premium
Securities Premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Adjustment reserve
During the year ended 31 March 2014, pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement approved by Honourable High Court of Andhra Pradesh, the Company 
has allotted 306,069 Equity Shares of INR 10 each to the Share holders of the transferor Company against 4,455,000 equity shares of INR 10 each 
outstanding in the transferor Company in the ratio of 9 equity shares of INR 10 each for every 131 equity shares of INR 10 each of the Transferor 
Company. The difference of INR 41.49 millions on account of the above share swap has been added to the Adjustment Reserve of the Company as per 
the Scheme.    							    
Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement approved by the High Court, the Company allotted 969,231 equity shares of INR 10 each to the shareholders 
of the Demerged Company against 2,100,000 equity shares of INR 10 each outstanding in the Demerged Company in the ratio of 6 equity shares of INR 
10 each for every 13 equity shares of INR 10 each of the Demerged Company. The difference between the consideration payable and the value of net 
assets taken over as per the Scheme amounting to INR 16.15 millions has been added to the Adjustment Reserve of the Company as per the Scheme.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
As per our Report on consolidated financial statements of even date attached

for B S R & Associates LLP	 for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants	 Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 116231W/W-100024	 CIN: U55101TG1973PLC040558

Sd/-	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
Sulabh Kumar Kedia	 Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao	 D Anitha 
Partner	 Managing Director	 Director 
Membership No.: 066380	 DIN:00008985	 DIN: 00025480 
UDIN: 19066380AAAAAP9471

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
	 Vikas Maheshwari	 Uma Shankar Mantha 
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary

Place: Hyderabad	 Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 03 July 2019	 Date: 03 July 2019

 Particulars 	  Equity 	                                Other equity 	  	 Total of other	 Non- 
	 share capital	 Reserve and surplus	 Share warrants	 equity	 controlling
		  Securities	 Adjustment	 Retained			   interest 
		  premium account	 reserve	 earnings
Balance as at 1 April 2018	 501.50	 292.98 	  57.64 	  (2,434.64)	  -   	  (2,084.02)	  212.58 
Loss for the year	  -   	  -   	  -   	  (464.13)	  -   	  (464.13)	  0.90 
Issue of shares	  28.65 	  851.35 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  851.35 	  -   
Issue of share warrants 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  3.10 	  3.10 	  -   
Conversion of financial liability into equity	  214.75 	  6,381.47 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  6,381.47 	  -   
Non controlling interest on new subsidiary	 -	 -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  60.00 
Re-measurement of net defined benefit 
liability (net of tax)	  -   	  -   	  -   	  (12.51)	  -   	  (12.51)	  0.31 

Balance as at 31 March 2019	  744.90 	  7,525.80 	  57.64 	  (2,911.28)	  3.10 	  4,675.26 	  273.79

 Particulars 	  Equity 	                                Other equity 	  	 Total of other	 Non- 
	 share capital	 Reserve and surplus	 Share warrants	 equity	 controlling
		  Securities	 Adjustment	 Retained			   interest 
		  premium account	 reserve	 earnings
Balance as at 1 April 2017	  501.50 	  292.98 	  57.64 	  (1,983.74)	  -   	  (1,633.12)	  52.29 
Loss for the year	  -   	  -   	  -   	  (471.67)	  -   	  (471.67)	  11.80 
Non-controlling interest on new subsidiary	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  146.71 
Re-measurement of net defined benefit 
liability (net of tax)	  -   	  -   	  -   	  20.77 	  -   	  20.77 	  1.78  

Balance as at 31 March 2018	   501.50 	  292.98 	  57.64 	  (2,434.64)	  -   	  (2,084.02)	  212.58 
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		  For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March  2019	 31 March 2018

A. Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss before tax		   (116.53)	  (219.46)
Adjustments for:			 
Depreciation and amortisation expenses		   521.38 	  396.54 
Finance costs		   407.96 	  830.80 
Provision for impairment of receivables and advances		   179.67 	  (9.62)
Interest income		   (5.68)	  (3.60)
Net loss on sale of property, plant and equipment		   1.52 	  0.15 
Gain on fair value of investment in equity accounted investee		   -   	  (318.52)
Loss on changes in fair value of financial instruments		   871.27 	  702.87 
Liabilities no longer required written back		   (20.29)	  -   
Operating profit before working capital changes		   1,839.30 	  1,379.16 
Charge in assets and liabilities:			 
Increase in inventories		   (57.36)	  (37.33)
Increase in trade receivables		   (267.33)	  (264.00)
Decrease in other financial assets and other assets		   67.74 	  34.39 
Increase in trade payables, other financial liabilities and provisions	  23.56 	  243.11 
Cash provided by operations		   1,605.91 	  1,355.33 
Income taxes paid, net		   (314.58)	  (294.67)
Net cash provided by operating activities (A)		   1,291.33 	  1,060.66

B. Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets	  (773.49)	  (585.13)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 		   2.13 	  16.39 
Purchase of investment (net)		   (70.00)	  (80.00)
Payment of purchase consideration for slump sale		   (197.27)	  -   
Advance for purchase of shares		   (60.00)	  -   
Loans to related parties		   -   	  7.36 
Interest received		   5.54 	  2.35 
Bank balances not considered as cash and cash equivalents (net)	  (15.53)	  (3.03)  
Net cash used in investing activities (B)		   (1,108.62)	  (642.06)

C. Cash flows from financing activities*
Repayment of long-term borrowings		   (1,863.78)	  (2,233.43)
Receipts of long-term borrowings		   1,302.70 	 1964.32
(Repayment)/ proceeds of short-term borrowings (net)		   (250.91)	  188.38 
Payment of finance lease obligations		   (11.51)	  -   
Proceeds from issue of shares		   880.00 	  -   
Proceeds from issue of share warrants		   3.10 	  -   
Finance costs		   (274.58)	  (311.05)  
Net cash used in financing activities (C)		   (214.98)	  (391.78)
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)		   (32.27)	  26.82 
Cash and cash equivalents acquired through business combination	  3.28 	  -   
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year		   109.62 	  82.80 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year		   80.63 	  109.62
* The changes in liabilities arising from financing activities are only due 
to changes arising from cash flows during the current as well as previous year.

Consolidated statement of cash flows	 INR in millions

Consolidated cash flow statement
a) The consolidated statement of cash flows has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Indian accounting Stanadard (Ind AS 
7)- Statement of cash flows:			 
b) Cash and cash equivalents comprises of:

		  As at	 As at 
		  31 March  2019	 31 March 2018
Balances with banks			 
 - On current accounts		   68.07 	  100.65 
Cash on hand		   12.56 	  8.97
Total		   80.63 	  109.62 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
As per our Report on consolidated financial statements of even date attached

for B S R & Associates LLP	 for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants	 Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 116231W/W-100024	 CIN: U55101TG1973PLC040558

Sd/-	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
Sulabh Kumar Kedia	 Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao	 D Anitha 
Partner	 Managing Director	 Director 
Membership No.: 066380	 DIN:00008985	 DIN: 00025480 
UDIN: 19066380AAAAAP9471

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
	 Vikas Maheshwari	 Uma Shankar Mantha 
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary

Place: Hyderabad	 Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 03 July 2019	 Date: 03 July 2019
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2.1 (b) Other intangible assets	 INR in millions

Description	  Software 	  Brand 	  Non compete 	  Goodwill 	  Customer 	  Total  
					     contract

Cost
Balance as at 1 April 2017 	  17.88 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  17.88 
Additions 	  3.06 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  3.06 
Disposals 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   

Balance as at 31 March 2018 	  20.94 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  20.94

Balance as at 1 April 2018 	  20.94 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  20.94 
Acquisition through business 
combinations (refer note 2.37) 	  1.36 	  13.10 	  28.30 	  314.17 	  188.02 	  544.95 
Additions 	  34.20 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  34.20 
Disposals 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   

Balance as at 31 March 2019 	  56.50 	  13.10 	  28.30 	  314.17 	  188.02 	  600.09

Accumulated amortisation 						    
Balance as at 1 April 2017 	  3.22 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  3.22 
Amortisation charge for the year 	  4.24 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  4.24 
Disposals 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   

Balance as at 31 March 2018 	  7.46 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  7.46

Balance as at 1 April 2018 	  7.46 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  7.46 
Amortisation charge for the year 	  7.37 	  1.30 	  2.81 	  -   	  2.87 	  14.35 
Disposals 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   

Balance as at 31 March 2019 	  14.83 	  1.30 	  2.81 	  -   	  2.87 	  21.81

Carrying amounts (net) 						    

At 31 March 2018 	  13.48 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  13.48 

At 31 March 2019 	  41.67 	  11.80 	  25.49 	  314.17 	  185.15 	  578.28 
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INR in millions2.2 Loans (Unsecured, considered good)

				    As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

(a) Non-current
Security deposits			    39.81 	  33.73  

Total		   	 39.81 	  33.73  

(b) Current

-To parties other than related parties

Security deposits			    15.19 	  10.80

-To related parties (refer note 2.28)			 

Advances to related parties 			    -   	  11.43  

Total			      15.19 	  22.23

INR in millions2.3 Other financial assets (Unsecured, considered good)

				    As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

(a) Non-current

Bank deposits (due to mature after 12 months of reporting date)*			    7.90 	  9.91 

Interest accrued on bank deposits			    1.12 	  2.36 

Other receivable			    15.35 	  -   

Total			    24.37 	  12.27  

* Bank deposits placed are restrictive in nature as it pertains 
to bank guarantee.

(b) Current

-To parties other than related parties			 

Contract assets (Unbilled revenue)			    74.46 	  62.51 

Other receivables			    2.43 	  -   

Other advances (refer note 2.35)			    -   	  61.78 

Interest accrued on bank deposits			    0.69 	  0.30 

-To related parties (refer note 2.28)			 

Advance to related parties			    10.01 	  -   

Interest accrued on loans 			    -   	  0.09

(Unsecured, considered doubtful)			 

Other advances		   	 0.32 	  1.50 

Less : Provision for other advances		   	 (0.32)	  (1.50)

Total			    87.59 	  124.68
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INR in millions2.4 Other non-current assets (Unsecured, considered good)

INR in millions2.5 Inventories (Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)

INR in millions2.7 Trade receivables*

				    As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Considered good - Secured		   	 -   	  -   
Considered good - Unsecured		   	 1,559.17 	  1,220.80 

Total receivables		    	 1,559.17 	  1,220.80 

Less : Provision for impairment			    (326.48)	  (145.52)

 Net trade receivables 		   	 1,232.69 	  1,075.28  

“ * Includes amount receivables from related party amounting to INR 2.21 millions 
(31 March 2018: INR 2.21 millions). (Refer note 2.28). 
 * Refer note 2.34 for details of assets pledged as security. 				  
The Group’s exposure to credit and currency risks, and loss allowances related to trade 
receivables are disclosed in Note 2.33

				    As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Medical consumables and pharmacy items			    268.61 	  201.42 

Total			      268.61 	  201.42  

* Refer note  2.34 for details of assets pledged as security.

				    As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

a) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand			    12.56 	  8.97 

Balances with banks			 

 - in current accounts			    68.07 	  100.65  

 				    80.63 	  109.62  

b) Other bank balances		    	 21.36 	  3.83   

			    	   21.36 	  3.83   

 Total 			    101.99 	  113.45  

*The above deposits are restrictive in nature as it pertains to bank guarantee. 
These guarantees are maturing within 12 months of the reporting date.

2.7 Cash and bank balances INR in millions

				    As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Capital advances*			    249.22 	  47.67 

Advance for purchase of shares [Refer note 2.24 (c)(II)(i)]		   	 60.00 	  -   

Paid under protest		   	 49.47 	  39.49 

Prepaid expenses		   	 15.45 	  15.28 

Total		    	  374.14 	  102.44 

* Includes a transaction entered between the Company and Dr. B Bhaskara Rao towards purchase of land for a total consideration 
INR 74.25 million. Out of the total consideration, an amount of INR 70.00 million is paid as an capital advance. Refer note 2.28.	
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INR in millions2.8 Non-current tax assets (net)

				    As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Advance tax (net of provision for taxation)			    328.01 	  283.97     

Total		    	  328.01 	  283.97 

INR in millions2.9 Other current assets (Unsecured, considered good)

				    As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2019

Advance to suppliers			    10.87 	  4.55   

Prepaid expenses			    9.43 	  11.82 

Staff advances			    9.19 	  6.21 

Other advances 			    2.92 	  -   

Other receivables			    0.02 	  0.08   

Total			     32.43 	  22.66

INR in millions2.10	Equity share capital

				    As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Authorised 
Equity shares

95,000,000 (31 March 2018: 95,000,000 ) 
equity shares of INR 10 each 			    950.00 	  950.00   

			    	 950.00 	  950.00  

Issued, subscribed and paid-up*

74,489,552 (31 March 2018: 50,149,732) equity shares of 
INR 10 each fully paid-up			    744.90 	  501.50  

			    	 744.90 	  501.50

* As at 31 March 2018, issued equity shares excludes 21,474,864 equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up which were classified 
as financial liability.

(a) Reconciliation of number of equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid up outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:		
				    INR in millions

Particulars	 As at 31 March 2019	 As at 31 March 2018

	 Number of	 Amount 	 Number of	 Amount  
	 shares		  shares

At the commencement of the year*	  50,149,732 	  501.50 	  50,149,732 	  501.50 
Add: Conversion of put options to equity shares	  21,474,864 	  214.75 	  -   	  -   
Add: Shares issued during the year	  2,864,956 	  28.65 	  -   	  -    

Shares outstanding at the end of the year*	  74,489,552 	  744.90 	  50,149,732 	  501.50 

* As at 31 March 2018, issued equity shares excludes 21,474,864 equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up which were classified 
as financial liability.
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(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid up:					   

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the 
Company’s residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of an 
equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands) are in proportion to its share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company. Voting 
rights cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any call or other sums presently payable have not been paid. Failure to pay 
any amount called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of the shares. On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will 
be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the 
number of equity shares held.							     

Name of shareholder 	 As at 31 March 2019	 As at 31 March 2018

	 Number of	 % of holding	 Number of	 % of holding 
	 shares		  shares

Dr. B Bhaskar Rao	  18,304,164 	 24.57%	  19,756,664 	 39.40%

General Atlantic Singapore KH Pte Ltd	  30,250,115 	 40.61%	  -   	  -   

B. Seenaiah	  4,972,308 	 6.68%	  5,330,408 	 10.63%

BRM Hospitals Private Limited	  4,800,632 	 6.44%	  4,800,632 	 9.57%

(c) Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid up	 INR in millions

(d) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of 5 years immediately 
preceding the reporting date

Particulars	 31 March	 31 March	 31 March 	 31 March 	 31 March 
		  2019	 2018	 2017	 2016	 2015

Equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid up 
allotted as bonus shares by capitalisation 
of securities premium	  -   	  -   	  -   	  61,603,374 	  2,933,494

INR in millions

(e) The Company has not bought back any shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date. 

(f) “During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has entered into a securities subscription and purchase agreement 
along with General Atlantic Singapore KH Pte Ltd (“new investor”), India Advantage Fund S31 (“old investor”) and other existing 
shareholders through which new investor have purchased few shares from the existing shareholders and entire shares from the 
old investor. The terms of the contract with the new investor had resulted in de-recognition of the existing liability by INR 5,604.93 
millions (as at 31 March 2018) and recognition of the same in equity share capital and securities premium. 

Apart from the exit to the old investor, the new investor has also infused an amount of INR 880 millions in the form of 2,864,956 
equity shares of face value of INR 10 each, fully paid up at the premium of INR 297.16 per share in the Company.”	
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Notes:

	 Refer current maturities of long-term borrowings under note 2.12 Other financial liabilities

i	 Andhra Bank term loan - 1 was secured by pari passu first charge on entire movable and immovable assets (existing and 
future assets) of the Company by way of hypothecation excluding the assets specifically charged to the equipment financers 
and Rajahmundry unit property and Pari Passu second charge on entire fixed assets (existing and future) of the Company.  
Further, it was secured by pledge of Rs. 1.08 lakh shares of promoter directors of total FV of Rs. 10.80 lakhs and 20% of 
shares of the Company held by the Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao and/or directors of the Company. The loan was further secured 
by personal guarantee of B. Krishnaiah, Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao, B.Seenaiah and D.Anitha. Further, the loan was secured by 
property belonging to Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao.. This loan was repayable in 22 quarterly equal instalments from December 2014 
to March 2020 and carried interest rate of IY MCLR + 0.45% + 0.50% (TP) (31 March 2018 : 1Y MCLR + 0.45% (spread) + 0.50% 
(TP)). The loan was pre closed during the year.					   

ii	 Andhra Bank term loan - 2 was secured by pari passu first charge on entire movable and immovable assets (existing and 
future assets) of the Company by way of hypothecation excluding the assets specifically charged to the equipment financers 
and Rajahmundry unit property and Pari Passu second charge on entire fixed assets (existing and future) of the Company. 
Further, it was secured by pledge of Rs. 1.08 lakh shares of promoter directors of total FV of Rs. 10.80 lakhs and 20% of 
shares of the Company held by the Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao and/or directors of the Company. The loan was further secured 
by personal guarantee of B. Krishnaiah, Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao, B.Seenaiah and D.Anitha. Further, the loan was secured by 
property belonging to Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao. Loan was repayable in 29 monthly equal instalments from December 2015 to 
April 2018 and carried interest rate of 1Y MCLR + 1.20% (31 March 2018: 1Y MCLR + 0.45% (spread) + 0.50% (TP)). The loan 
was fully repaid during the year.					   

iii	 Andhra Bank term loan - 3 was secured by second pari passu charge on other unencumbered movable and immoveable fixed 
assets of the Company both present and future along with other term lenders except Rajahmundry unit fixed assets. Further, 
it was secured by personal guarantee of Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao, Mr. B. Krishnaiah, Mr. B. Seenaiah and D. Anitha and pledge of 
14.1 millions shares of promoter directors. The loan was also secured by second pari passu charge on the commercial land 
and building situated at Nellore belonging to the Company, second charge on land and building and all other fixed assets 
purchased for Ongole unit in slump sale and other assets purchased out of term loan. This loan is repayable in 20 quarterly 
equal instalments from December 2016 to September 2021 and carried interest rate of 1Y MCLR + 1.20%  (31 March 2018 : 1Y 
MCLR + 0.45% (spread) + 0.50% (TP)). The loan was pre closed during the year.					   

2.11 Long-term borrowings INR in millions

		  As at 31 March 2019	 As at 31 March 2018

	 			   Non- current	 Current*	 Non- current	 Current*

Secured
Term loans from banks
  - Andhra Bank term loan - 1 (refer note i)			    -   	  -   	  78.88 	  79.36 
 - Andhra Bank term loan - 2 (refer note ii)			    -   	  -   	  -   	  6.38 
 - Andhra Bank term loan - 3 (refer note iii)			    -   	  -   	  73.18 	  29.52 
 - Andhra Bank term loan - 4 (refer note iv)			    -   	  -   	  479.70 	  12.13 
 - HDFC Bank equipment loan - 1 (refer note v)			    79.06 	  10.94 	  79.19 	  3.38 
 - HDFC Bank equipment loan - 2 (refer note vi)			    122.08 	  11.80 	  -   	  -   
 - HDFC Bank vehicle loan - 1 (refer note vii)			    -   	  -   	  0.24 	  0.52 
 - HDFC Bank vehicle loan - 2 (refer note viii)			    3.70 	  0.62 	  -   	  -   
 - Federal bank term loan (refer note ix)			    494.07 	  66.24 	  182.00 	  -   
 - Federal bank term loans (refer note x and xi)			    122.80 	  7.67 		
 - HDFC Bank term loan (refer note xii)			    495.14 	  2.29 	  -   	  -   
 - Yes bank term loan (refer note xiii)			    291.32 	  19.81 	  331.13 	  21.60   

Total loans from banks (A)	  		   1,608.17 	  119.37 	  1,224.32 	  152.89  

Term loans from other parties
  - Siemens Financial Services Private Limited (refer note xiv)			    -   	  16.75 	  16.75 	  47.45 
 - IDFC Infrastructure Finance Limited (refer note xv)			    819.10 	  142.05 	  1,210.28 	  44.05 
 - De Lage London Finance Service (refer note xvi)			    -   	  -   	  9.92 	  0.50 

Total loans from other parties (B)	   		   819.10 	  158.80 	  1,236.95 	  92.00 

Unsecured
Deferred payment liability (refer note xvii)			    -   	  -   	  -   	  25.00 
Finance lease obligation (refer note xviii)			    10.54 	  16.55 	  27.09 	  11.51 
Liability component of financial instrument (refer note xix)			    -   	  -   	  -   	  3,995.81    

Total unsecured loans (C) 			     10.54 	  16.55 	  27.09 	  4,032.32 

Total (A) + (B) + (C) 			    2,437.81 	  294.72 	  2,488.36 	  4,277.21 
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iv	 Andhra Bank term loan - 4 was secured by exclusive charge on land and building and all other assets purchased for Ongole 
unit in slump sale and other assets purchased out of term loan and second charge on the current assets (existing and future) 
pertaining to Ongole unit. Further, it was secured by personal guarantee of Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao, Mr. B. Krishnaiah, Mr. B. 
Seenaiah and D. Anitha and pledge of 14.1 millions shares of promoter directors. This loan was repayable in 40 quarterly 
unequal instalments from March 2019 to December 2028 and carried interest rate of 1Y MCLR + 0.45% (spread) + 0.50% (TP) 
( 31 March 2018 : 1Y MCLR + 0.45% (spread) + 0.50% (TP)). The loan was pre closed during the year.

v	 Term loan - 1 from HDFC bank towards purchase of equipment is secured by way of first and exclusive charge on the medical 
equipment out of sanctioned facility, carrying an interest rate ranging from 9.5% p.a. fixed (31 March 2018: 9.5% p.a. fixed). 
This loan is repayable in 84 unequal monthly instalments starting from July 2017 to June 2024. Outstanding amount as on 
31 March 2019 is INR 90.00 millions (31 March 2018: INR 65.00 millions).					   

vi	 Term loan - 2 availed during the year from HDFC bank towards purchase of equipment is secured by way of first and exclusive 
charge on the medical equipment out of sanctioned facility, carrying an interest rate of 1Y MCLR + 0.65%. Also secured by 
personal guarantee of Dr B Bhaskara rao. This loan is repayable in 84 unequal monthly instalments starting from January 
2019 to December 2024. Outstanding amount as on 31 March 2019 is INR 133.88 millions (31 March 2018: Nil)

vii	 Term loan from HDFC bank consisted of vehicle loan secured by first exclusive hypothecation charge on the vehicle acquired 
from the said loan and carried interest rate ranging from 9.75%  to 12.51%  (31 March 2018: ranging from 9.75% to 12.51%). 
The This loans was repayable in equal monthly instalments starting from August 2016 to August 2019. The loan was pre 
closed during the year.					   

viii	 Term loan from HDFC Bank of INR 5.03 millions is secured by first exclusive hypothecation charge on the vehicle acquired 
from the said loans. The loan carries interest rate of 8.01% per annum. These loans are repayable in 84 equated monthly 
instalments starting from January 2018 to December 2024. Outstanding amount as on 31 March 2019 is INR 4.32 millions 
(31 March 2018: INR 4.89 millions).					   

ix	 Federal Bank term loan consists of 2 loans (31 March 2018: 1 loan) is secured by exclusive charge on existing hospital at 
Rajahmundry and pledge of minimum 51% shareholding of the Company in KIMS Hospital Private Limited, a subsidiary of the 
Company. Also secured by personal guarantee of Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao. The loan is repayable in 66 equal monthly instalments 
starting from May 2019 to April 2025 and carries an interest rate ranging from 9.50% to 9.80% p.a. (31 March 2018: 9.50%). 
Outstanding amount as on 31 March 2019 is INR 560.31 millions (31 March 2018: INR l82.00 millions).

x	 Federal bank term loan is secured by way of first charge on the medical equipment, other movable assets, building 
improvements and fixtures of ICIMSPL and second charge on entire current assets of ICIMSPL. Further, it is secured by 
personal guarantee of  Dr. Abhinay Bollineni, Dr. Bhaskara Rao, Dr. Sai (Director of ICIMSPL) and Dr. P. Satish Kumar (Director 
of ICIMSPL). The loan is also secured by corporate guarantee given by the Company. The loan is repayable in 72 equated 
monthly instalments starting September 2019 and carries an interest rate of 9.50% per annum with annual reset (linked to 1 
year MCLR).					   

xi	 Federal bank term loan is secured by way of first charge on medical equipment (minimum 1.19x cover), with 15% margin, of 
ICIMSPL and second charge on entire current assets of ICIMSPL. Further, it is secured by personal guarantee of  Dr. Abhinay 
Bollineni, Dr. Bhaskara Rao, Dr. Sai (Director of ICIMSPL) and Dr. P. Satish Kumar (Director of ICIMSPL). The loan is also 
secured by corporate guarantee given by the Company. The loan is repayable in 72 equated monthly instalments starting 
April 2020 and carries an interest rate of 9.80% per annum with annual reset (linked to 1 year MCLR).

xii	 Term loans from HDFC Bank Limited are repayable in equated monthly instalments covering principle and interest for term 
loans. These loans are for a term of 12 years, with a structured EMI payments for the first 1.5 years and uniform EMI payables 
for the balance 10.5 years and carries a interest rate of 9.75% floating rate linked to bank’s 1 year MCLR for term loans. The 
loans are secured by first and exclusive charge on movable and immovable assets, current assets of SIMSPL and equitable 
mortgage on the property owned by Veera Kishore Reddy (Director of SIMSPL) situated at Sy no.155, D.No.1-1348, NH 44, 
Rudrampet Panchayat, Sri Nagar Colony extension, Near Ayyappa Swamy Temple, Anantapur-515004. Further, the loan is 
secured by way of Corporate guarantee given by the Company and personal guarantee given by Mr. Veera Kishore Reddy 
and Mr. Yelakala Surendra Reddy (Directors of SIMSPL).					   

xiii	 Yes Bank term loan of INR 360 millions is secured by first exclusive charge on entire movable fixed assets including leasehold 
improvements, present and future, by way deed of hypothecation and first exclusive charge on all current assets of KHEPL. 
Further, the loan is secured by unconditional and irrevocable personal guarantees of Dr. B. Abhinay, Mrs. CH. Harini (Director 
of KHEPL) and Mr. S. Sunand (Director of KHEPL) and Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao. The amount is repayable in 72 monthly instalments 
starting from January 2018 to December 2023. The loan carries an interest rate of  1Y MCLR + 1.15% (spread) per annum. The 
loan is also secured by corporate guarantee given by the Company. Further, the loan is secured by a charge on the escrow 
account. Outstanding amount as on 31 March 2019 is INR 311.13 millions (31 March 2018: INR 352.73 millions).
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xiv	 Term loan - Siemens Financial Services Private Limited consists of 1 loans (31 March 2018: 3 loans) secured by way of 
hypothecation of medical and surgical equipment procured from the said loan and personal guarantee of Dr. B Bhaskara 
Rao. The loans are repayable in unequal monthly instalments from January 2012 to July 2019 and carries interests rate 
ranging from 11% to 13.50% p.a. (31 March 2018 : interests rate ranging from 11 % to 13.50% p.a.). Outstanding amount as on 
31 March 2019 is INR 16.75 millions (31 March 2018: INR  64.20 millions).

xv	 Term loan from IDFC Infrastructure Finance Limited is secured by a first pari-passu mortgage and charge of immovable 
properties of the Secunderabad hospital and Nellore hospital building. Also secured by a first pari-passu charge by way of 
hypothecation of Secunderabad hospital and Nellore Hospital movable properties including movable plant and machinery, 
machinery spares, tools and accessories, furniture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable properties of whatsoever nature 
excluding the equipment which are purchased by Company out of medical equipment loans and a second pari-passu 
mortgage and charge of immovable properties of the Ongole hospital. Also includes a second pari-passu charge by way of 
hypothecation of Ongole hospital movable properties including movable plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and 
accessories, furniture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable properties of whatsoever nature excluding the equipment 
which are purchased by Company out of medical equipment loans; a second charge on the entire cash flows, receivables, 
book debts and revenues of the Company, of whatsoever nature and wherever arising; subject to the prior charge of the 
working capital lenders. Also secured by personal guarantee of Dr. Bhaskara Rao. The loan is repayable in 72 equal monthly 
instalments and carries an interest rate of 9.10% p.a. (31 March 2018: 9.10% p.a.). Outstanding amount as on 31 March 2019 
is INR 961.14 millions (31 March 2018: INR 1,254.34 millions).							     

xvi	 Term loan - De Lage Landen Financial Services India Private Limited is repaid during the current year (31 March 2018: 3 
loans). It was secured by way of first and exclusive charge on all assets procured through the facility. Further, the loan was 
secured by collateral security of medical and surgical equipment procured from the said loans and personal guarantee of 
Dr. B Bhaskara Rao. The loans were repayable in 42 monthly unequal instalments, inclusive of 6 months moratorium, from 
September 2016 to February 2020 and carried fixed interest rate of 11.25% p.a. (31 March 2018: 11.25%). The loan was pre-
closed during the year.							     

xvii	 Deferred payment liability relates to payable in respect of purchase of equipment from Vattikutti Technologies Private 
Limited. The liability is repaid in the current year. 							     
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INR in millions2.13	 Long-term provisions

				    As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity [refer note 2.27]			    101.89 	  64.11 

Compensated absences			    42.90 	  32.45  

Total			    144.79 	  96.56  

INR in millions2.14	Short-term borrowings

				    As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Secured

Working capital loans from banks [refer note i]			    175.53 	  305.14

Total			     175.53 	  305.14 

INR in millions2.12	 Other financial liabilities

				    As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

(a) Non-current

Security deposits			    2.55 	  1.32 

Capital creditors			    3.26 	  -    

Total		    	  5.81 	  1.32  

(b) Current

Current maturity of long term debts (refer note 2.11)			    294.72 	  4,277.21 

Capital creditors			    33.49 	  28.48 

Employee benefits payable*			    147.28 	  128.40 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings			    8.57 	  5.64 

Security and caution deposit			    7.59 	  10.20 

Derivatives			    -   	  1,609.12 

Other deposits			    1.60 	  -     

Total			    493.25 	  6,059.05  

The Group’s exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to other 
financial liabilities is disclosed in note 2.33

*Includes payables to related parties. For details refer note 2.28
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Notes:
i	 “Working capital loans consists of  loans from :

	 a) Andhra bank - Loan  is secured by pari passu first charge on entire movable and immovable assets (existing and future 
assets) of the Company by way of hypothecation excluding the assets specifically charged to the equipment financers and 
Rajahmundry unit property and pari passu second charge on entire fixed assets (existing and future) of the Company. Further, 
it is secured by personal guarantee of Dr B Bhaskara Rao, Sri B. Krishnaiah, Sri B.Seenaiah and D. Anitha. Loan is repayable 
on demand and carries interest rate of 1Y MCLR+1.20% (31 March 2018: 1Y MCLR+0.95%)”

	 b) Federal bank - Loan  is secured by primary exclusive charge on current assets of Rajahmundry hospital, both current 
and future and collateral security by exclusive charge on existing hospital at Rajahmundry and pledge of minimum 51% 
shareholding of the Company in KIMS Hospital Private Limited, a subsidiary of the Company. Also secured by personal 
guarantee of Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao. Loan is repayable on demand and carries interest rate of 9.40% p.a. (31 March 2018: Nil)	

	 c) Yes Bank - Working capital loan from Yes Bank of INR 40.00 millions secured by first exclusive charge on entire movable 
fixed assets including leasehold improvements, present and future, by way deed of hypothecation and first exclusive charge 
on all current assets of KHEPL. Further, the loan is secured by unconditional and irrevocable personal guarantees of Dr. B. 
Abhinay, Mrs. CH. Harini (Director of KHEPL) and Mr. S. Sunand (Director of KHEPL) and Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao. The loan is also 
secured by corporate guarantee given by the Company aggregating to INR 400 millions. Further, the loan is secured by a 
charge on the escrow account.  The loan carries an interest rate of quarterly MCLR + 2% (spread). Outstanding amount as on 
31 March 2019 is INR 12.52 millions (31 March 2018: INR 39.43 millions).				  

	 d) HDFC Bank - Working capital loan is secured by first and exclusive charge on fixed and current assets of AHPL other than 
assets exclusively charged to other equipment financers. It is also secured by personal guarantee of Dr. G. Someswara Rao 
(Director of AHPL). Loan is repayable on demand and carries interest rate of 1 Yr MCLR + 1.85% per annum (31 March 2018: 
Base rate + 2.75%). Outstanding amount as on 31 March 2019 is INR 10.01 millions (31 March 2018: Nil).

	 e) Federal Bank - Working capital loan is secured by first charge on entire current assets of ICIMSPL with a margin of 25% on 
stock and receivables and second charge on medical equipment, other movable assets, building improvements and fixtures of 
ICIMSPL. Further, it is secured by personal guarantee of Dr. Abhinay Bollineni, Dr. Bhaskara Rao, Dr. Sai (Director of ICIMSPL) 
and Dr. P Satish Kumar (Director of ICIMSPL). The loan is further secured by corporate guarantee given by the Company. Loan 
is repayable on demand and carries an interest rate of 9.50% per annum (linked to 1 year MCLR).

	 f) HDFC Bank - Working capital loan carries interest rate of 9.95% per annum, linked to 1 year MCLR. The loan is secured by 
first and exclusive charge on moveable and immoveable assets, current assets of the SIMSPL and equitable mortgage on 
the property owned by Veera Kishore Reddy (Director of SIMSPL) situated at Sy no.155, D.No.1-1348, NH 44, Rudrampet 
Panchayat, Sri Nagar Colony extension, Near Ayyappa Swamy Temple, Anantapur-515004. Further, the loan is secured by 
way of Corporate guarantee given by the Company and personal guarantee given by Mr. Veera Kishore Reddy and Mr. 
Yelakala Surendra Reddy (Directors of SIMSPL). 	

ii	 Amount of secured loans guaranteed by directors and others aggregates to INR 175.53 millions (31 March 2018: INR 305.14 
millions).

iii	 Information about the Group’s exposure to interest rate, foreign currency and liquidity risks is included in note 2.33
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INR in millions2.15 Trade payables

				    As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 
small enterprises (refer note 2.31)			    1.36 	  0.73    

- total outstanding dues of  creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises			    1,039.23 	  948.83  

Total			    1,040.59 	  949.56 

The above includes payable to related party. For details refer note 2.28

All trade payables are ‘current’. The Group’s exposure to currency and 
liquidity risks related to trade payable is disclosed in note 2.33

INR in millions2.17	 Other liabilities

				    As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

(a) Non-current

Deferred income			    13.48 	  0.42  

Total			     13.48 	  0.42 

(b) Current

Statutory dues payable			    63.98 	  61.50 

Contract liabilities*			    40.66 	  45.65 

Deferred income			    0.64 	  0.18 

Other liabilities			    26.61 	  21.32  

Total			    131.89 	  128.65 

* Represents advance recevied from patients

INR in millions2.16 Short term provisions

				    As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Provision for employee benefits				  

Gratuity [refer note 2.27]			    -   	  0.18 

Compensated absences			    17.61 	  10.77  

Total	  		   17.61 	  10.95 
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		  For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Opening stock	 201.42 	  164.09   

Add: Purchases during the year	  2,169.26 	  1,652.83 

Less: Closing stock	  (268.61)	  (201.42 

Total 	   2,102.07 	  1,615.50 

INR in millions2.20 Medical consumables and pharmacy items consumed

		  For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

A. Income from medical and healthcare services

Income from hospital services	  6,036.98 	  4,222.09 

Income from pharmacy and others	  2,970.99 	  2,269.85  

Total	   9,007.97 	  6,491.94 

B. Other operating income
Income from academic courses	  58.26 	  46.09 
Income from sale of food and beverages	  105.07 	  89.70 
Other hospital income	  8.75 	  8.98  

Total	  172.08 	  144.77  

Total revenue from operations (A+B)	  9,180.05 	  6,636.71 

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contracted price is as follows:
Contract price	  9,744.65  
Adjustments for:
Discounts and disallowances	 (645.65)
Others	  (91.03)

Income from medical and healthcare services	  9,007.97  

INR in millions2.18	 Revenue from operations

INR in millions2.19 Other income

		  For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Interest income on:
- fixed deposits	  3.55 	  1.72 
- security deposits	  1.13 	  -   
- income tax refunds	  1.00 	  1.61 
- loans to related parties	  -   	  0.27 
- Others	  0.16 	  0.11 
Lease income 	  7.70 	  4.74 
Liabilities no longer required written back	  20.29 	  -   
Guarantee commission income	  -   	  1.70 
Sponsorship income	  1.96 	
Miscellaneous income	  21.53 	  14.85  

Total	   57.32 	  25.00  

		  For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Salaries, wages and bonus	  1,504.27 	  1,115.14   

Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note no 2.27)	  109.31 	  89.78 

Staff welfare expenses	  16.70 	  12.19  

Total 	  1,630.28 	  1,217.11  

 *Net of amount capitalised (refer note 2.25) 

INR in millions2.21 Employee benefit expenses*
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INR in millions2.22 Finance cost

		  For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Interest expense on

- term loans	  246.41 	  257.49 

- other loans	  17.38 	  17.00 

- on security deposit	  0.08 	  0.14 

- finance lease obligations	  13.63 	  14.53 

- liability component of financial instruments	  120.01 	  521.19 

Other borrowing costs	  10.45 	  20.45

Total 	    407.96 	  830.80  

		  For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

 Consultancy charges	  2,009.92 	  1,349.92   
 House keeping expenses	  321.13 	  219.08 
Power and fuel	  206.35 	  166.46 
Catering and patient welfare expenses	  131.46 	  94.70 
Rent (refer note 2.26)	  120.87 	  53.80 
Tests and investigations	  21.15 	  15.46 
Academic courses expenses	  0.83 	  1.30 
Repairs and maintenance:		
- Medical equipment 	  175.27 	  158.73 
- Hospital building and others	  110.74 	  74.60 
Printing and stationery	  45.49 	  26.62 
Legal and professional charges 	  134.88 	  26.40 
Rates and taxes	  62.55 	  71.24 
Loss on fair value changes in financial instrument	  871.27 	  702.87 
Travelling and conveyance	  36.84 	  25.46 
Advertisement and publicity	  106.62 	  65.94 
Communication expenses	  13.98 	  9.33 
Provision for doubtful advances	  (1.18)	  1.50 
Trade receivable written off	  47.83 	  -   
Provision for impairment of trade receivables	  180.85 	  (11.12)
Insurance	  5.37 	  3.11 
Subscriptions and membership fees	  4.27 	  4.91 
Donations	  1.65 	  0.61 
Bank charges	  36.55 	  50.02 
Contributions towards Corporate Social Responsibility  	  10.14 	  6.71 
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment	  1.52 	  0.15 
Investment written off	  0.10 	  -   
Directors sitting fee	  1.84 	  -   
Miscellaneous expenses        	  33.92 	  21.94 
Total 	  4,692.21 	  3,139.74   

* Net of amount capitalised (refer note 2.25)

INR in millions2.23 Other expenses* 
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2.24 Contingent liabilities and commitments	

INR in millions

Particulars			   As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

i)	 Luxury tax matters in dispute, pending appeals filed by the Company 
	 [paid in protest and disclosed under other non-current assets 
	 INR 39.47 millions (31 March 2018: INR 28.44 millions)]			    82.27 	  82.27 

ii)	 Service tax matters in dispute, pending appeals filed by the Group 
	 [paid in protest and disclosed under other non-current assets 
	 INR 8.90 millions; (31 March 2018: INR 9.95 millions)]			    31.72 	  31.60 

iii)	 VAT matters in dispute, pending appeals filed by the Company 
	 [paid in protest and disclosed under other non-current assets 
	 INR 1.10 millions (31 March 2018: INR 1.10 millions)]			    1.76 	  1.76 

iv)	 Medical claims (gross, excluding interest/costs)			    88.38 	  81.23 

v)	 Other claims			    23.76 	  23.76 

vi)	 The Company has obtained a stay from High Court for the state of Andhra Pradesh, 
	 dated 11 November 2014, directing the local authorities not to proceed with the 
	 acquisition of part of the building in Nellore for the purpose of road widening. 
	 No provision thereof has been made in the consolidated financials statements.

vii)	 An individual has filed a consumer case at National Consumer Disputes 
	 Redressal Commission against the Company along with 3 other hospitals 
	 demanding a total compensation of Rs 235.01 million along with interest @ 18% p.a 
	 towards medical negligence. The Company has replied for the allegations made 
	 and believes that it has a strong case in this regard and there shall not be any 
	 outflow of resources. No provision thereof has been made in the 
	 consolidated financial statement.

(a) Contingent liabilities

(b) The Hon’ble Supreme Court of India (“SC”) by their order dated 28 February, 2019, in the case of Surya Roshani Limited & 
others v/s Employee Provident Fund Organisation (EPFO), set out the principles based on which allowances paid to the employees 
should be identified for inclusion in basic wages for the purposes of computation of Provident Fund contribution. Subsequently, a 
review petition against this decision has been filed and is pending before the SC for disposal. Pending decision on the subject review 
petition and directions from the EPFO, the Management based on a legal opinion has a view that the applicability of the decision 
is prospective and accordingly provided the liability for March 2019. The impact for the past period, will depend upon the outcome 
of subject review petition and directions from the EPFO and hence disclosed as a Contingent liability in the consolidated financial 
statements. The impact of the same is not ascertainable.

Notes:

i. Pending resolution of the respective proceedings, it is not practicable for the Group to estimate the timings of the cash flow, if any, 
in respect of the above as it is determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending with various forums/authorities.

ii. The Group has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required 
and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable in its consolidated financial statements. The Group does not expect the 
outcome of these proceeding to have a materially adverse effect on its financial position.
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INR in millions

Particulars			   As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

I) Capital commitment

i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on			    201.70 	  169.63  
   capital account and not provided for (net of advances)

II) Other commitments					   
i)  The Company vide its Board meeting dated 18 January 2019 has approved for an 
investment in Kurnool Rainbow Hospitals Private Limited (Kurnool Rainbow). 
Accordingly, as at 31 March 2019 the Company has paid an advance amounting to 
INR 60.00 millions towards purchase of 55% shareholding in Kurnool Rainbow 
out of the total consideration payable of INR 81.68 million accordingly as at 
31 March 2019 balance of INR 21.68 millions is disclosed as commitment. 
Subsequent to the year end, the Company has entered into a share purchase 
agreement dated 1 April 2019 with the shareholders of Kurnool Rainbow and 
acquired 55% shareholding.

ii) During the year, the Group has acquired 80% shareholding in 
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited (‘Saveera’). 
As per the shareholder’s agreement, the Group agreed to transfer 3.5% 
of the equity shares of Saveera to the minority shareholders of 
Saveera subject to fulfillment of certain conditions.

(c) Commitments

2.25 Incidental expenditure during the construction period

During the year, the Group has capitalised the following expenses of revenue nature to the cost of property, plant and equipment, 
as they are attributable expenses. Consequently amounts disclosed under the respective notes as mentioned below are net of 
amounts  capitalised by the Group.					   

INR in millions

Particulars	 For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Other expenses (refer note 2.23)

Rates and taxes	  -   	  1.33 

Travelling and other expenses	  -   	  3.28 

Power and fuel	  -   	  0.12 

Consultancy technical fee	  -   	  0.68   

Total (A)	  -   	  5.41  

Employee benefit expenses (B ) (refer note 2.21)	  -   	  16.95  

Grand total (A+B)	  -   	  22.36 
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2.26 Lease

Operating lease in the capacity of lessee					   

a) The Group has taken offices and residential premises under cancellable and non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The 
Group intends to renew such lease in the normal course of its business. Total rental expenses under non-cancellable operating 
leases amounts to INR 63.16 millions (31 March 2018: 0.35 millions) and cancellable amounts to INR 57.71 millions (31 March 2018: 
INR 53.45 millions). The same are grouped under other expenses in the statement of profit and loss.

b) The subsidiaries has non-cancellable operating leases. The total of minimum lease payment (MLP) under non-cancellable 
operating leases is as follows:

c) A part of the leased property of a subsidiary, KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited has been sublet by the Group. The lease 
expires in May 2073 and the sub-lease expires in March 2023. An amount of INR 1.58 millions (31 March 2018: INR 1.08 millions) is 
recognised under ‘Other income’ in respect of sublease.

d) A part of the leased property has been sublet by the subsidiary, Arunodaya Hospitals Private Limited. The lease expires in June 
2022 and the sublease expires in April 2022. An amount of INR 2.46 millions  (31 March 2018: INR 2.33 millions) is recognised under 
‘Other income ‘ in respect of sublease.

Operating lease in the capacity of lessor					   
e) The Group has given certain part of property, plant and equipment on cancellable leases to various parties. The rental income 
earned from such leases recognised in other income is INR 7.70 million (31 March 2018: INR 4.74 million).

Finance lease in the capacity of lessee

f) Medical equipment includes the following amounts where the Group is a lessee under a finance lease:

INR in millions

Particulars			    As at 	  As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Cost				    52.15 	  52.15   

Accumulated depreciation			    (37.22)	  (27.62)

Net carrying amount			    14.93 	  24.53

The lease term in respect of assets acquired  under finance leases generally expire within 5 years to 6 years. Under the term of 
leases, the Group has the option to acquire the leased assets at nominal value at the expiry of the leases.

INR in millions

Particulars	 Total MLP outstanding	 Total MLP outstanding 
		  as at 31 March 2019	 as at 31 March 2018

Due within one year	  36.82 	  53.44  

Due later than one year and not later than one five years	  63.76 	  95.96

Due after five years	  -   	  -      

Total	 100.58 	  149.40 
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2.27 Employee benefits		

(i) Defined benefit plan

The Group operates post-employment defined benefit plan that provide gratuity. The gratuity plan entitles an employee, who 
has rendered at least five years of continuous services, to receive one-half month’s salary for each year of completed services at 
the time of retirement/exit. The gratuity fund is administered by trust formed for this purpose and is managed by Life Insurance 
Corporation of India. The Group’s obligation in respect of gratuity plan, which is a defined benefit plan, is provided for based on 
actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The Group accrues gratuity as 
per the provisions of the payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 as applicable as at the balance sheet date and accordingly the maximum 
payment is restricted to INR 2 million per employee.

A. Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts 
recognised in the Group’s Consolidated balance sheet as at reporting date:			 

INR in millions

Particulars			   As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Present value of defined benefit obligation 			    124.76 	  83.14   

Fair value of plan assets			    22.87 	  18.85 

Net funded obligation			    101.89 	  64.29  

Total employee benefit liability			     101.89 	  64.29   

Non-current			    101.89 	  64.11 

Current			    -   	  0.18

INR in millions

Particulars	 As at	 As at 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Defined benefit obligation as at 1 April	  84.58 	  94.99  

Benefits paid	  (2.95)	  (3.28)

Current service cost	 18.63 	  15.04 

Past service cost	  -   	  1.51 

Interest cost	  6.20 	  6.98 

Actuarial losses/(gains) recognised in other comprehensive income due to:	

- Changes in financial assumptions	  12.05 	  (0.68)

- Changes in demographic assumptions	  6.43 	  (2.72)

-	 experience changes	  (0.18)	  (28.70)

Defined benefit obligation as at 31 March 	   124.76 	  83.14 

B. Reconciliation of net defined benefit obligation

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit obligation and 
its components.

i) Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

INR in millions

Particulars	 As at	 As at 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Plan assets at beginning of the year	 20.29 	  16.69 

Contributions paid into the plan	 4.78 	  4.63 

Interest income	  1.55 	  1.21 

Benefits paid	 (3.20)	  (3.28)

Return on plan assets	 (0.54)	  (0.40)

Plan assets at end of the year	  22.87 	  18.85

Net defined benefit liability	  101.89 	  64.29

ii) Reconciliation to fair value of plan assets
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INR in millions

Particulars	 For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Current service cost	  18.63 	  15.04   

Past service cost	 -   	  1.51 

Interest on net defined benefit obligation	 4.65 	  5.72

Net gratuity cost, included in ‘employee benefits expense’	  23.28 	  22.27

C. i) Expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss

INR in millions

Particulars	 For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Actuarial (gain) / loss on net defined benefit obligation	 18.30 	  (34.08)

Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets	 0.54 	  0.40 

ii) Re-measurements recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI)

INR in millions

Particulars			   As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Fund managed by Insurer			     22.87 	  18.85 

D. Plan assets (Plan assets comprises of the following:)

INR in millions

Principal actuarial assumptions			   As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Discount rate			   7.50%	 7.55%

Salary escalation rate			   8.00%	 6.00%

E. Defined benefit obligation
i) Actuarial assumptions
The following are the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):

Discount rate: The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the balance sheet 
date for the estimated term of the obligations.
Salary escalation rate: The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into accounts the inflation, seniority, promotion 
and other relevant factors.					   
	

INR in millions

Particulars			   As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

1st following year			   21.59 	  5.20  

Year 2 to 5			   62.86 	  20.79 

Year 6 to 9			    45.50 	  17.94 

Year 10 and above			    88.75 	  173.53

F) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
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ii) Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions would have affected the defined 
benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

Particulars	 For the year ended 31 March 2019	 For the year ended 31 March 2018

		  Increase	 Decrease	 Increase	 Decrease

Discount rate (1% movement)	  (7.08)	  7.90 	  (8.82)	  10.49   

Salary escalation rate (1% movement)	  7.61 	  (7.00)	  11.52 	  (9.85)

Particulars	 For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Amount recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss towards

i) Provident fund	  50.68 	  43.31 

ii) Employee state insurance	  36.57 	  24.10 

(ii) Defined contribution plan

Although, the analysis does not take account the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does not provide an 
approximation of the sensitivity of the assumption shown
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Nature of relationship	 Name of related parties	 		

Subsidiaries	 Arunodaya Hospitals Private Limited		
	 KIMS Hospitals Private Limited		
	 KIMS Swastha Private Limited 		
	 KIMS Cuddles Private Limited 		
	 KIMS Sahariah Healthcare Private Limited 
	 (closed on 30 March 2019)		
	 KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited 
	 (w.e.f. 30 March 2018)		
	 KIMS Hospital (Bhubaneswar) Private Limited 
	 Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences 
	 Private Limited (w.e.f. 05 May 2018)		
	 Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private 
	 Limited (w.e.f. 05 September 2018)		

Associates	 KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited 
	 (until 29 March 2018)		

Key Management personnel (KMP)	 B Krishnaiah - Chairman 
	 (resigned on 18 January 2019)		

	 Dr. B Bhaskara Rao - Managing Director and 
	 Chief Executive Officer (CEO)		

	 Uma Shanker Mantha - Company secretary

	 Vikas Maheshwari - Chief Financial Officer

	 Mrs. Dandamudi Anitha -Whole-time Director

Directors	 Mr. B Abhinay (appointed w.e.f. 18 January 2019)

	 Mr G Rajeswara Rao

	 Mrs Jyothi Prasad

	 Mr K Padmanaabhaiah 
	 (resigned w.e.f. 20 June 2018)

	 Mr Amitabha Guha 
	 (resigned w.e.f. 18 January 2019 )

Relative of KMP	 Dr. Raavi Swetha- Daughter in law of 
	 Managing Director and CEO

Enterprises under control or joint control of KMP	 Sri Viswa Medicare Limited 
	 (Formerly known as Reliance Medicare Limited)

	 KIMS Foundation and Research Centre

	 Bollineni Krishnaiah Charitable Trust		

Enterprises having significant influence 
over the Group	 India Advantage Fund S31 (until 20 June 2018)

	 General Atlantic Singapore KH Pte. Ltd 
	 (w.e.f. 20 June 2018)		

2.28 Related party disclosures	  
(a) Parties where control exists or where significant influence exists and with whom transactions have 
taken place during the year
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Particulars	 For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

i.	 Loans and advances given
	 KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited	  -   	  6.00 
	 KIMS Foundation and Research Centre	  3.58 	  0.60

ii.	 Refund of loans and advances
	 KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited	  -   	  10.96 
	 KIMS Foundation and Research Centre	  5.00 	  3.00

iii.	 Interest income on advances given
	 KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited	  -   	  0.27

iv.	 Interest income earned on loans given
	 KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited	  -   	  0.71 

v.	 Interest income received		
	 KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited	  -   	  3.18 

vi.	 Advance for land
	 Dr. B Bhaskara Rao	  70.00 	  - 

vii.	 Professional fee to KMP
	 Dr. B Bhaskara Rao	  18.00 	  18.00 
	 Mr. B Abhinay	  -   	  0.90 
	 Dr. Raavi Swetha	  2.31 	  2.66

viii.	 Professional fee to relative of KMP
	 Dr. Raavi Swetha	  1.80 	  - 

ix.	 Rent expenses
	 Dr. B Bhaskara Rao	  0.10 	  0.10

x.	 Managerial remuneration to KMP**
	 Dr. B Bhaskara Rao	  24.00 	  24.00 
	 Mr. B Abhinay	  5.35 	  2.10 
	 Mrs. Dandamudi Anitha	  3.00 	  3.00 
	 Vikas Maheshwari	  6.57 	  5.74 
	 Uma Shanker Mantha	  1.78 	  1.68

xi.	 Directors sitting fee
	 Mr B Krishnaiah	  0.29 	  0.15 
	 Mr G Rajeswara Rao	  0.47 	  0.31 
	 Mrs Jyothi Prasad	  0.38 	  0.36 
	 Mr K Padmanaabhaiah	  0.23 	  0.22 
	 Mr Amitabha Guha	  0.47 	  0.33

xii.	 Expenditure towards CSR
	 KIMS Foundation and Research Centre	  10.14 	  6.51

xiii.	 Purchase of pharmacy items
	 KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited	  -   	  1.76

xiv.	 Revenue from sale of pharmacy and sale of services
	 KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited	  -   	  11.16

xv.	 Investment in associates
	 KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited	  -   	  80

xvi.	 Reimbursement of claims
	 Sri Viswa Medicare Limited *	  0.00 	  - 
	 Bollineni Krishnaiah Chartable trust	  -   	  0.38 
	 KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited	  -   	  9.40

xvii.	 Guarantee given on behalf of
	 KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited	  -   	  400.00 

xviii.	 Guarantee closed during the year
	 KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited	  -   	  310.00

(b) Transactions with related parties INR in millions
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Particulars	 For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

xix.	 Commission income on guarantee commission
	 KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited	  -   	  1.71

xx.	 Repayment of unsecured loan
	 Dr. B Bhaskar Rao	  -   	  2.74

xxi.	 Sale of medical equipment (excluding taxes)
	 KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited	  -	  16.17

xxii.	 Interest expense
	 India Advantage Fund	  120.01 	  512.19

xxiii.	 Fair value changes in financial instrument
	 India Advantage Fund	  871.27 	  702.87

xxiv.	 Derecognition of financial liability
	 India Advantage Fund	  6,596.22 	  - 

xxv.	 Issue of equity shares including share premium
	 General Atlantic Singapore KH Pte. Ltd	  880.00 	  - 

xxvi.	 Cash received for issue of share warrants
	 Dr B Bhaskara Rao	 3.10 	  -

INR in millions
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(c) The balances receivables from and payable to related parties

Particulars	 As at	 As at 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

i.	 Trade receivables
	 Sri Viswa Medicare Limited	  2.21 	  2.21 

ii.	 Other advances
	 KIMS Foundation and Research Centre	  10.01 	  11.43

iii	 Capital advance 
	 Dr. B Bhaskara Rao (refer note 2.5)	  70.00 	  -
	 Payable to related parties

iv.	 Trade payables
	 Dr. B Bhaskara Rao	  1.36 	  1.40 
	 Dr. Raavi Swetha	  0.14 	  0.23

v.	 Employee benefits payable
	 Dr. B Bhaskara Rao	  1.16 	  -   
	 Mr. B Abhinay	  0.47 	  0.16 
	 Vikas Maheshwari*	  0.00 	  0.42 
	 Uma Shanker Mantha	  0.11 	  0.10 
	 Mrs. Dandamudi Anitha	  0.14 	  0.14

vi.	 Liability for financial instrument
	 India Advantage Fund	  -   	  5,604.93

INR in millions

(d) For certain loan availed by the Group, Directors of the Group have given personal guarantee. Refer note 2.11 and 2.14 for details.

* Amount is below the rounding off norms adopted by the Group. Below is the particulars in full value:

S.No.	 Particulars	 Amount in INR

(i)	 Reimbursement of claims to Sri Viswa Medicare Limited	  1,500 

(ii)	 Employee benefits payable to Vikas Maheshwari	 1,108

** The managerial personnel are covered by the Groups’s gratuity policy and are eligible for leave encashment along with other employees 
of the Group. The proportionate amount of gratuity and leave encashment pertaining to the managerial personnel has not been included in 
the aforementioned disclosures as these are determined on an actuarial basis for the Group as a whole.

Terms and conditions: 
All transactions with those related parties are priced on an arm’s length basis and resulting outstanding receivables and payables including 
financial assets and financial liabilities balances are settled in cash within a range of 30-120 days of the transaction date. None of balances 
are secured.
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INR in millions

Particulars	 For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Earnings

Loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders	  (464.13)	  (471.67)

Shares

Number of shares at the beginning of the year			 
		   50,149,732 	  50,149,732 

Add: Equity shares issued during the year*	  24,339,820 	  - 

Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year	  74,489,552 	  50,149,732

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the year - Basic	  69,154,797 	  50,149,732 

Weighted average number of equity shares arising out of 
issue of share warrant that have dilutive effect on EPS	  548,813 	  -   

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the year - Diluted	  69,703,610 	  50,149,732 

Earnings per share of par value INR 10-Basic (INR)	  (6.71)	  (9.41)

Earnings per share of par value INR 10-Diluted (INR) **	  (6.71)	  (9.41)

2.29 Earnings per share (EPS)

* Number of equity shares issued during the year 31 March 2019 includes 21,474,864 equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid up 
which were classified as financial liability as at 31 March 2018.		

** For the year ended 31 March 2019, the share warrants are anti dilutive in nature and hence basic and dilutive EPS are the same.	
		

2.30 Segment information

“Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment” (“Ind AS 108”) establishes standards for the way that public business enterprises report information 
about operating segments and related disclosures about products and services, geographic areas, and major customers. Based on 
the “management approach” as defined in Ind AS 108, Operating segments are to be reported in a manner consistent with the 
internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM evaluates the Group’s performance and 
allocates resources on overall basis. The Group’s sole operating segment is therefore ‘Medical and Healthcare Services’. Accordingly, 
there are no additional disclosure to be provided under Ind AS 108, other than those already provided in the consolidated financial 
statements.

Further the business operation of the Group are concentrated in India, and hence, the Group is considered to operate only in one 
geographical segment.”
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INR in millions

Particulars	 As at	 As at 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small supplies as at 
end of the year

-	 Principal	  1.36 	  0.73 

-	 Interest	  -   	  -   

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 
(27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the 
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;

“The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in 
making payment (whic h has been paid but beyond the appointed 
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified 
under the MSMED Act;”	  -   	  -   

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the 
end of each accounting year; and 	  -   	  -   

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are 
actually paid to the small enterprises for the purpose of disallowance 
as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act.	 -   	  -

2.31 Due to Micro and Small Enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends 
that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum 
Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amount payable to such enterprises 
as at 31 March 2019 has been made in the consolidated financial statements based on information received and available with the 
Group. Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of 
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“The MSMED Act’) is not expected to be material. The Group has 
not received any claim for interest from any supplier.						    

2.32 Capital management	

The Group’s policy is to maintain a stable capital base so as to maintain investor and creditor confidence and to sustain future 
development of the business. Management monitors capital on the basis of return on capital employed as well as the ‘adjusted net 
debt’ to ‘adjusted equity’ ratio.				  

For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total liabilities, including interest bearing borrowings and obligations under finance 
lease, less cash and cash equivalents. Total equity comprises of issued share capital and all other equity reserves.

The capital structure as of 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 was as follows: INR in millions

Particulars			   As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Total liabilities			    5,084.12 	  10,512.34 

Less: Cash and cash equivalents			    (80.63)	  (109.62)

Adjusted net debt			    5,003.49 	  10,402.72 

Total equity			    5,693.95 	  (1,369.94)

Adjusted net debt to equity ratio			   0.88 	  (7.59)
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As at 31 March 2019	 Financial	 Financial	 Financial	 Total carrying	 Fair value level 
		  assets –	 liabilities -	 liabilities - 	 amount 
		  amortised cost	 FVTPL	 amortised cost

Financial assets measured at fair value	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  -

Financial liabilities measured at fair value		

Other financial liabilities	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  Level 3 

Financial assets not measured at fair value

(Refer note below)

Trade receivables	  1,232.69 	  -   	  -   	  1,232.69 	  -   

Cash and cash equivalents	  80.63 	  -   	  -   	  80.63 	  -   

Bank balances other than above	  21.36 	  -   	  -   	  21.36 	  -   

Loans	  55.00 	  -   	  -   	  55.00 	

Other financial assets	  111.96 	  -   	  -   	  111.96 	  -

Total	    1,501.64 	  -   	  -   	  1,501.64 	  - 

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 
(Refer note below)

Long-term borrowings (excluding current maturities) 	  -   	  -   	  2,437.81 	  2,437.81 	 -

Short-term borrowings	  -   	  -   	  175.53 	  175.53 	 -

Trade payables	  -   	  -   	  1,040.59 	  1,040.59 	 -

Other financial liabilities	  -   	  -   	  499.06 	  499.06 	 -

Total	  -   	  -   	  4,152.99 	  4,152.99 	  -  

2.33 Financial instruments : Fair value and risk management		

INR in millionsA. Accounting classification and fair values

As at 31 March 2018	 Financial	 Financial	 Financial	 Total carrying	 Fair value level 
		  assets –	 liabilities -	 liabilities - 	 amount 
		  amortised cost	 FVTPL	 amortised cost

Financial assets measured at fair value	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  -

Financial liabilities measured at fair value		

Other financial liabilities	  -   	  1,609.12 	  -   	  1,609.12 	  Level 3 

Financial assets not measured at fair value 
(Refer note below)

Trade receivables	  1,075.28 	  -   	  -   	  1,075.28 	  -   

Cash and cash equivalents	  109.62 	  -   	  -   	  109.62 	  -   

Bank balances other than above	  3.83 	  -   	  -   	  3.83 	  -   

Loans	  55.96 	  -   	  -   	  55.96 	

Other financial assets	  136.95 	  -   	  -   	  136.95 	  -   

Total	    1,381.64 	  -   	  -   	  1,381.64 	  -   

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 
(Refer note below)

Long-term borrowings 
(excluding current maturities) 	  -   	  -   	  2,488.36 	  2,488.36 	  -   

Short-term borrowings	  -   	  -   	  305.14 	  305.14 	  -   

Trade payables	  -   	  -   	  949.56 	  949.56 	  -   

Other financial liabilities	  -   	  -   	  4,451.25 	  4,451.25 	  -  

Total	   -   	  -   	  8,194.31 	  8,194.31 	  -  

INR in millions

Note: The Group has not disclosed the fair values for financial instruments such as short-term trade receivables or short-term trade 
payables because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair values.
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B. Measurement of fair values

i. Valuation technique and significant unobservable inputs

Financial instrument: The fair value is determined based on the value arrived as per discounted cash flows approach as on the 
reporting date. Significant unobservable input includes forecast annual revenue growth rate for income from hospital services 
ranges from 20% p.a to 25% p.a. (31 March 2018: 25% p.a.), forecast annual revenue growth rate for income from pharmacy and 
others ranges from 10% p.a. to 15% p.a. (31 March 2018: 15% p.a.) and Weighted average cost of capital 31 March 2019: Nil (31 
March 2018: 11.77% p.a.).

ii. Transfer between Level 1 and 2

There have been no transfers from Level 2 to Level 1 or vice-versa in 2018-19 and no transfers in either direction in 2017-18.

INR in millions

			   FVTPL Financial instruments

Balance at 01 April 2017	  906.25 

Net change in fair value (unrealised)	  702.87 

Balance at 31 March 2018	  1,609.12 

Balance at 01 April 2018	  1,609.12 

Net change in fair value (unrealised)	  (1,609.12)

Balance at 31 March 2019	 -

iii. Level 3 fair values

Sensitivity analysis

For the fair values of  FVTPL financial instrument, reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the significant 
unobservable inputs, holding other inputs constant, would have the following effects:

		  Increase	 Decrease

2018-19

Annual revenue growth rate (1% movement)	  -   	  -   

Risk adjusted discount rate (1% movement) -   	  -   

2017-18

Annual revenue growth rate (1% movement)	  (167.65)	  167.65 

Risk adjusted discount rate (1% movement)	  419.12 	  (502.94)

INR in millions
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C. Financial risk management					   
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk.

(i) Risk management framework

The Group’s Board of Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management 
framework. The Board of Directors has established the risk management committee, which is responsible for developing and 
monitoring the Group’s risk management policies. The committee reports regularly to the Board of Directors on its activities.

“The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate 
risk limits and controls to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly 
to reflect changes in market conditions and Group’s activities. The Group, through its training and management standards and 
procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all the employees understand their roles 
and obligations.“					   
	

(ii) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading 
to financial loss. The credit risk arises principally from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its investing 
activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions and other financial instruments. The carrying amounts of financial 
assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits to whom credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for credit. The 
collection from the trade receivables are monitored on a continuous basis by the receivables team.

The Group establishes an allowance for credit loss that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade and other 
receivables based on the past and the recent collection trend. The maximum exposure to credit risk as at reporting date is primarily 
from trade receivables amounting to INR 1,598.34 millions as on 31 March 2019 (31 March 2018 : INR 1,220.80 millions). The 
movement in allowance for credit loss in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows:

INR in millions

Allowance for credit losses			   As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Opening balance			    145.52 	  155.92 

Credit loss added / (reversed)			    180.96 	  (10.40)

Closing Balance			    326.48 	  145.52 

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent is limited as the Group generally transacts with banks and financial institutions with high 
credit ratings assigned by international and domestic credit rating agencies. 

(iii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that 
are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, 
that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without 
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

INR in millions

Particulars	 Carrying value	 Less than 1 year	 1 - 5 years	 More than	 Total 
					     5 years

Long-term borrowings 
(excluding current maturities)	  2,437.81 	  -   	  1,661.20 	  781.51 	  2,442.71 

Short-term borrowings	  175.53 	  175.53 	  -   	  -   	  175.53 

Interest on long-term borrowings	  -   	  249.03 	  613.13 	  162.10 	  1,024.26 

Trade payables	  1,040.59 	  1,040.59 	  -   	  -   	  1,040.59 

Other financial liabilities	  499.06 	  493.25 	  4.65 	  1.16 	  499.06 

Total	   4,152.99 	  1,958.40 	  2,278.97 	  944.77 	  5,182.14 

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March 
2019:
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INR in millions

Particulars	 Carrying value	 Less than 1 year	 1 - 5 years	 More than	 Total 
					     5 years

Long-term borrowings 
(excluding current maturities)	  2,488.36 	  -   	  1,301.22 	  1,195.59 	  2,496.81 

Short-term borrowings	  305.14 	  305.14 	  -   	  -   	  305.14 

Interest on long-term borrowings	  -   	  245.93 	  608.00 	  125.14 	  979.07 

Trade payables	  949.56 	  949.56 	  -   	  -   	  949.56 

Other financial liabilities	  6,060.37 	  6,059.04 	  -   	  1.33 	  6,060.37 

 Total	    9,803.43 	  7,559.67 	  1,909.22 	  1,322.06 	  10,790.95 

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March 
2018:

The Group has secured loans from bank that contain loan covenants. A future breach of covenant may require the Group to repay 
the loan earlier than indicated in the above table.					   
	

Particulars	 As at 	 As at  
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Variable rate long term borrowings (including current maturities) 
and short term borrowings	  2,722.59 	  2,907.93 

Total	  2,722.59 	  2,907.93 

D. Market risk 

(i) Interest rate risk exposure

The exposure of the Group’s borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Particulars	 Impact on profit or loss	 Impact on equity, net of tax

		  As at	 As at 	 As at	 As at 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018	 31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Sensitivity

1% increase in MCLR	  (27.23)	  (29.08)	  (17.71)	  (19.01)

1% decrease in MCLR	  27.23 	  29.08 	  17.71 	  19.01

(i) Sensitivity

The interest rate sensitivity is based on the closing balance of secured term loans and working capital loans from banks.

INR in millions

D. Currency risk

The Group is not exposed to currency risk.
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	 	 As at	 As at 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Charge on property, plant and equipment

Freehold land 	  119.56 	  94.65 

Leasehold land	  274.37 	  274.37 

Leasehold improvements	  147.63 	  150.42 

Buildings	  3,641.75 	  3,377.44 

Medical and surgical equipment	  2,228.65 	  1,994.63 

Plant and equipment	  212.52 	  209.59 

Office equipment	  22.40 	  20.65 

Electrical equipment	  235.11 	  259.97 

Computers 	  44.53 	  39.74 

Furniture and fixtures	  199.32 	  208.20 

Vehicles	  33.47 	  36.58 

Total property, plant and equipment pledged as security	  7,159.31 	  6,666.24 

Charge on current assets

Trade receivables	  355.55 	  1,220.80 

Inventories	  89.98 	  201.42

Total current assets pledged as security	  445.53 	  1,422.22 

2.34 Assets pledged as security INR in millions

2.35 	“During the previous year, the Group has paid amount aggregating INR 61.78 millions towards various services received for 
Initial Public Offering (IPO). These payments were classified as “”Other advances”” under “”Other current financial assets”” as it was 
recoverable from shareholders in proportionate of shares offered. 

During the year, the Group has decided not to proceed with the IPO and accordingly the advances paid could not be recovered from 
the shareholders and charged off as expenses in the respective head of profit and loss account.”

2.36 The Group did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable 
losses. The Group does not have any unhedged foreign currency exposure as at 31 March 2019.
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I. Acquisition by the Company

(i) Acquisition of shares of Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

On 05 May 2018, the Group acquired 51 percent of the voting shares of Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 
(“ICIMSPL”) giving it control of ICIMSPL.

Control over ICIMSPL is expected to provide the Group with an increased share to the healthcare market through access to ICIMSPL’s 
customer base.

Since the date of aquistion, ICIMSPL has contributed revenue of INR 358.70 million and loss after tax of INR 70.95 million to the 
Group’s results. ICIMSPL was incorporated on 10 April 2018 and started its full fledged operations after the acquisition by the Group, 
hence, Management estimates consolidated revenue and consolidated profit would not have changed, if the acquisition has occured 
on the date of incorporation of ICIMSPL.				  

A. Consideration transferred						    
The following table summarises the acquisition date fair value of each major class of consideration transferred: 		  INR in millions

Cash		  70.00 

2.37 Business combination	

B. Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition

Intangible assets		   95.94 

Total assets		   95.94

Deferred tax liabilities		   33.51 

Total liabilities		   33.51

Total net identifiable assets acquired		   62.43

The fair value of above acquired assets and liabilities were determined by a registered valuer. This fair value was estimated by 
applying an income approach. The following were the key model inputs used in determining the fair value:

Weighted-Average Required Return on Assets (WARA)		  16.40%

Implied Internal Rate of Return (IRR)		  15.00%

Weighted-Average Cost of Capital (WACC)		  15.20%

C. Goodwill arising on acquisition	

Consideration transferred		   70.00 

Fair value of net identifiable assets		   (62.43)

Goodwill		   7.57

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of ICIMSPL because the cost of combination included a control premium. In addition, the consideration 
paid for the combination effectively included amounts in relation to the benefits of expected synergies, revenue growth due to 
existing customer contract, future market development and assembled workforce of ICIMSPL.

None of the goodwill arising on these acquisition is expected to be deductible for tax purpose.

(ii) Acquisition of shares of Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

On 05 September 2018, the Company entered into a share purchase agreement with the existing shareholders of Saveera Institute 
of Medical Sciences Private Limited (‘Saveera’) to acquire 80% equity shares at a total consideration of INR 0.08 million at face value 
per share giving it control over Saveera.

Since the date of aquistion, Saveera has contributed revenue of INR 228.01 million and loss after tax of INR 33.38 million to the 
Group’s results. Saveera was incorporated on 16 August 2018 and started its full fledged operations after the acquisition by the 
Group, hence, Management estimates consolidated revenue and consolidated profit would not have changed, if the acquisition has 
occured on the date of incorporation of Saveera.

The Company has acquired the shares of Saveera at face value per share of INR 10 each. There were no identifiable assets and 
liabilities on the date of acquisition. Hence, no Goodwill is recognised in the consolidated financial statements of the Company on 
account of the acquisition of Saveera.
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(iii) Acquisition of shares of KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited

On 30 March 2018, the Group acquired 2.44 percent of the voting shares of KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited (“KHEPL”). 
As a result, the group’s equity interest in KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited increased from 47.83 percent to 50.27 percent, 
giving it control of KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited.

Control over KHEPL is expected to provide the Group with an increased share to the healthcare market through access to KHEPL’s 
customer base.

Since the date of acquisition, KHEPL has contributed revenue of INR 4.90 millions and profit of INR 0.23 millions to the Group’s 
results. Management estimates that if the acquisition had occurred on 1 April 2017, consolidated revenue and consolidated profit for 
the year would have been INR 7,541.66 millions and INR 862.90 millions respectively. Management has determined these amounts 
on the basis that the fair value adjustments, determined provisionally, that arose on that date of acquisition would have been the 
same if the acquisition had occurred in 1 April 2017.

A. Consideration transferred						    
The following table summarises the acquisition date fair value of each major class of consideration transferred: 		  INR in millions

Cash		  30.00 

The fair value of above acquired assets and liabilities were determined by a registered valuer. This fair value was estimated by 
applying an income approach. The following were the key model inputs used in determining the fair value:

Weighted-Average Required Return on Assets (WARA)		  16.15%

Implied Internal Rate of Return (IRR)		  16.27%

Weighted-Average Cost of Capital (WACC)		  15.00%

The remeasurement to fair value of the Group’s exisiting 47.82 percent share has resulted in a gain of INR 318.52 millions, which has 
been recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited because the cost of combination included a control 
premium. In addition, the consideration paid for the combination effectively included amounts in relation to the benefits of expected 
synergies, revenue growth, future market development and assembled workforce of KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited.

None of the goodwill arising on these acquisition is expected to be deductible for tax purpose.

B. Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition

Property, plant and equipment		   313.20 

Other non-current assets		   22.18 

Net working capital		   (15.73)

Total assets		   319.65

Long term liabilities		   1.54 

Debts		   170.00

Total liabilities		   171.54

Total net identifiable assets acquired		   148.11

C. Goodwill arising on acquisition	

Consideration transferred		   30.00 

Fair value of pre-existing equity interest		   528.19 

Fair value of net identifiable assets		   (148.11)

Goodwill		    410.08
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A. Consideration transferred						    
The following table summarises the acquisition date fair value of each major class of consideration transferred: 		  INR in millions

Cash		  - 

The fair value of above acquired assets and liabilities were determined by a valuer. This fair value was estimated by applying an 
income approach. The following were the key model inputs used in determining the fair value:

Weighted-Average Cost of Capital (WACC)		  15.20%

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of ICHPL because the cost of combination included a control premium. The goodwill is attributable 
mainly to the skills and technical work force and the synergies expected to be achieved from integrating ICHPL’s business into the 
ICIMSPL’s business.

None of the goodwill arising on these acquisition is expected to be deductible for tax purpose.

B. Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition

Property, plant and equipment		   50.11  

Other non-current assets and loans and advances		   29.57 

Net working capital		   (18.99)

Total assets		    60.69 

Debts		   116.67 

Total liabilities		    116.67 

Total net identifiable assets acquired		   (55.98)

C. Goodwill arising on acquisition	

Consideration transferred		   -   

Fair value of net identifiable assets/ (liabilities)		   (55.98)

Goodwill		     55.98 

(ii) Acquisition by Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited (‘SIMSPL’)

SIMSPL through a business transfer agreement, purchased the hospital and healthcare division of Saveera Hospitals Private Limited 
(‘SHPL’) under slump sale on 25 September 2018 for a purchase consideration of INR 197.27 on a going concern basis with effect 
from 01 October 2018. Accordingly, an amount of INR 258.19 being the excess of purchase consideration over the net value of 
the assets acquired (based on a valuation report) has been recognised as Goodwill on acquisition. The details of purchase price 
allocation is as follows:	

INR in millions

Particulars

Total Assets 

Property, plant and equipment		   489.00

Other non-current assets and loans and advances		   64.19 

Net working capital		   (43.89)

			    509.30 

Total Liabilities 

Borrowings		  529.55 

Deferred tax liabilities		  40.67

			    570.22

Net Assets		  (60.92)

Less: Purchase consideration		  (197.27)

Goodwill on acquisition		   258.19

The fair value of above acquired assets and liabilities were determined by a valuer. This fair value was estimated by applying an 
income approach. The following were the key model inputs used in determining the fair value:	

Weighted-Average Cost of Capital (WACC)		  16.4%

Weighted-Average required renturn on assets		  17.3%

Implied internal rate of return		  16.6%

None of the goodwill arising on these acquisition is expected to be deductible for tax purpose.
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INR in millions

KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited			   As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Percentage of ownership interest			    -   	  -   

Non-current assets			    -   	  -   

Current assets			    -   	  -   

Non-current liabilities			    -   	  -   

Current liabilities			    -   	  -   

Net Assets		   	 -	 -

Group’s share of net assets			    -   	  - 

2.38 Equity accounted investees
The following table summarises the financial information for the reporting years:

*w.e.f. 30 March 2018, KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited became a subsidiary.

INR in millions

Particulars	 For the period	 For the period	 For the period	 Total 
		  24 March 2018 to	 11 May 2017 to	 1 April 2017 to 
		  29 March 2018	  23 March 2018	  10 May 2017	

Percentage of ownership interest	 47.82%	 43.75%	 46.77%	

Revenue	  19.58 	  778.41 	  95.47 	  893.46 

Profit	  0.90 	  35.67 	  4.38 	  40.95 

Other comprehensive income	  0.01 	  0.43 	  0.05 	  0.49 

Total comprehensive income	  0.91 	  36.10 	  4.43 	  41.44 

				  

Group’s share of profit	  0.43 	  15.61 	  2.05 	  18.09 

Group’s share of other comprehensive income	  0.01 	  0.19 	  0.02 	  0.22 

Group’s share of total comprehensive income	  0.44 	  15.80 	  2.07 	  18.31

For the year ended 31 March 2018:

w.e.f 30 March 2018, KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited became a subsidiary.
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2.39 Non-controlling interest
The following table summarises the financial information relating to each of the Group’s subsidiaries that has material NCI, before 
any intra-group eliminations INR in millions

As at 31 March 2019	  Arunodaya	 Iconkrishi Institute	 KIMS Hospital	 Saveera Institute of 
		  Hospitals 	 of Medical Sciences 	 Enterprises	 Medical Sciences  
		  Private Limited		  Private Limited	 Private Limited 

NCI Percentage	 42.17%	 49.00%	 49.73%	 20.00%
Non-current assets	  205.97 	  257.97 	  729.42 	  888.14 
Current assets	  72.40 	  83.98 	  112.49 	  99.60 
Non-current liabilities	  (10.47)	  (137.92)	  (316.50)	  (526.88)
Current liabilities	  (77.27)	  (171.56)	  (159.70)	  (186.19) 

Net Assets	  190.63 	  32.47 	  365.71 	  274.67 

Net Assets attributable to NCI	  80.39 	  15.91 	  181.87 	  54.93  

Revenue	  357.90 	  358.70 	  1,177.31 	  228.00 
Profit	  34.11 	  (71.01)	  55.17 	  (33.38)
Other comprehensive income (‘OCI’)	  0.59 	  -   	  0.13 	  -   

Total comprehensive income	  34.70 	  (71.01)	  55.30 	  (33.38)

Profit allocated to NCI	  14.38 	  (34.79)	  27.43 	  (6.68)
OCI allocated to NCI	  0.25 	  -   	  0.06 	  -    

Total comprehensive income allocated to NCI	  14.63 	  (34.79)	  27.49 	  (6.68)

Cash flows attributable to NCI				  

Cash flow from operating activities	  24.37 	  (31.81)	  87.57 	  (9.35)

Cash flow from investing activities	  (26.78)	  (52.66)	  (33.61)	  (14.02)

Cash flow from financing activities	  (1.49)	  80.21 	  (55.80)	  24.27 

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents	  (3.90)	  (4.26)	  (1.84)	  0.90 

INR in millions

As at 31 March 2018	 Arunodaya Hospitals 	 KIMS Sahariah	 KIMS Hospital 
		  Private Limited	 Healthcare	 Enterprises 
			   Private Limited	 Private Limited

NCI Percentage	 42.17%	 0.10%	 49.73%

Non-current assets	  165.16 	  -   	  723.24 
Current assets	  72.54 	  0.10 	  123.90 
Non-current liabilities	  (18.09)	  -   	  (341.23)
Current liabilities	  (63.68)	  (0.02)	  (211.05)  

Net Assets	  155.93 	  0.08 	  294.86 

Net Assets attributable to NCI	  65.76 	  0.00 	  146.63  

Revenue	  350.12 	  -   	  4.91  
Profit	  27.71 	  (0.01)	  0.22 
OCI	  	 4.21 	  -   	  -     

Total comprehensive income	  31.92 	  (0.01)	  0.22 

Profit allocated to NCI	  13.46 	  (0.00)	  0.11 
OCI allocated to NCI	  1.78 	  -   	  -         

Total comprehensive income allocated to NCI	  15.24 	  (0.00)	  0.11 

Cash flows attributable to NCI
Cash flow from operating activities	  21.89 	  -   	  -   
Cash flow from investing activities	  (6.53)	  -   	  -   
Cash flow from financing activities	  (10.79)	  -   	  -       

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents	  4.57 	  -   	  -  
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	 	 For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Current tax	  386.09 	  180.84   

Deferred tax attributable to temporary differences	  (41.54)	  74.29 

Taxes for earlier years	  2.15 	  3.36 

Tax expenses for the year	  346.70 	  258.49

2.41 Income-tax

a. Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss
INR in millions

b. Amount recognised in other comprehensive incmoe INR in millions

	 For the year ended 31 March 2019	 For the year ended 31 March 2018

		  Before tax	 Tax (expense)/	 Net of tax	 Before tax	 Tax (expense)/	 Net of tax 
			   benefit			   benefit

Re-measurement on defined benefit plans	    (18.84)	  6.64 	  (12.20)	  33.68 	  (11.35)	  22.33 

	 	 For the year ended	 For the year ended 
		  31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Profit before tax	  (116.53)	  (219.46)

Enacted tax rates 	 34.944%	 34.608%

Tax expense at enacted rates 	  (40.72)	  (75.95)

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible/ (taxable) in 
calculating taxable income	

Non-deductible expenses	  349.64 	  431.21 

Impact of change in rate of tax	  (2.94)	  2.43 

Adjustment in respect of income-tax for earlier years	  2.15 	  3.36 

Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses	  26.71 	  (42.67)

Taxes on Indexation benefit on freehold land	  (0.15)	  -   

Income not liable to tax	  -   	  (110.23)

Others	  12.01 	  50.34 

Total	  346.70 	  258.49  

c. Reconciliation of effective tax rate INR in millions

INR in millions

Particulars			   As at 	 As at 
				    31 March 2019	 31 March 2018

Deferred tax asset		
Provision for impairment on receivables			    114.93 	  50.97 
Provision for employee benefits			    67.67 	  47.38 
Tax losses carried forward			    52.48 	  66.93 
Excess of depreciation on the fixed assets under Companies Act 
over depreciation under income-tax act, 1961 			    5.46 	  4.90 
Others			    39.73 	  15.47  
Total deferred tax asset			     280.27 	  185.65 
Deferred tax liability
Expenses of depreciation on the fixed assets under income-tax, 
1961 over depreciation under Companies Act.			    700.66 	  611.16 
Others			    69.73 	  6.44  
Total deferred tax liability		    	 770.39 	  617.60  
Deferred tax asset 	  	  	 (490.12)	  (431.95)

Net deferred tax liabilities	  		   (528.09)	  (472.33)
Net deferred tax asset	  		   37.97 	  40.39

d. Recongnition of deferred tax assets and liabilities

(i) Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following
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(i) Movement in temporary differences INR in millions

Particulars	 Balance	 Recognised	 Recognised	 Balance	 Balance	 Recognised	 Recognised	 Balance 
	 as at 	 during	 in OCI	 as at	 as at 	 in profit	 in OCI	 as at 
	 1 April 2017	 2017-18	 during	 31 March	 1 April 2018	 or loss	 during	 31 March 
			   2017-18	 2018		  during	 2018-19	 2019 
						      2018-19

Provision for impairment on 
receivables	  53.95 	  (2.98)	  - 	  50.97 	  50.97 	  63.96 	  - 	  114.93  

Provision for employee benefits	  43.91 	  14.82 	  (11.35)	  47.38 	  47.38 	  13.65 	  6.64 	  67.67 

Others items - assets	  51.34 	  (35.87)	  - 	  15.47 	  15.47 	  24.26 	  - 	  39.73 

Tax losses carried forward	  - 	  66.93 	  - 	  66.93 	  66.93 	  (14.45)	  - 	  52.48 

Excess of depreciation on the 
fixed assets under Companies Act 
over depreciation under 
income-tax act, 1961 	 5.11 	  (0.21)	  - 	  4.90 	  4.90 	  0.56 	  - 	  5.46 

Expenses of depreciation on the 
fixed assets under income-tax, 
1961 over depreciation under 
Companies Act.	  (511.48)	  (99.68)	  - 	  (611.16)	  (611.16)	  (89.50)	  - 	  (700.66)

Others items - liability	  (8.84)	  2.40 	  - 	  (6.44)	  (6.44)	  (63.29)	  - 	  (69.73)

	   (366.01)	  (54.59)	  (11.35)	  (431.95)	  (431.95)	  (64.81)	  6.64 	  (490.12)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
As per our Report on consolidated financial statements of even date attached

for B S R & Associates LLP	 for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants	 Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 116231W/W-100024	 CIN: U55101TG1973PLC040558

Sd/-	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
Sulabh Kumar Kedia	 Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao	 D Anitha 
Partner	 Managing Director	 Director 
Membership No.: 066380	 DIN:00008985	 DIN: 00025480 
UDIN: 19066380AAAAAP9471

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
	 Vikas Maheshwari	 Uma Shankar Mantha 
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary

Place: Hyderabad	 Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 03 July 2019	 Date: 03 July 2019
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Form No. MGT-11
Proxy form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 17th Annual General Meeting of the company, 
to be held on the Thursday, 8th day of August 2019 at 4.00 p.m. at the registered office of the company situated at “KIMS Hospitals”, 
1-8-31/1, Minister Road, Secunderabad - 500003 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

I/We, being the member(s) of ____________ shares of the above named company. Hereby appoint

Name of the Member(s)                                    

Registered Address                                             

E-mail Id	 Folio No /Client ID	 DP ID

Name :	 E-mail Id:

Address:

Signature

Name :	 E-mail Id:

Address:

Signature, or failing him

Sl. No. 	 Resolution(S)	                         Vote

			   For 		  Against

1.	 To consider and adopt the audited standalone and consolidated financial statements of the 
	 Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2019 and the reports of the Board of Directors 
	 (“the Board”) and Auditors thereon.

2.	 To appoint a director in place of Dr. B. Bhaskar Rao (DIN No: 00008985) who retires by rotation 
	 and, being eligible, seeks re-appointment.

3.	 To consider and appoint statutory auditors and to fix their remuneration and in this regard 
	 to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution 
	 as an Ordinary Resolution.

4.	 To approve the Loan, Guarantee or security under section 185 of Companies Act, 2013.

5	 To approval of Inter-corporate Loans & Investments in excess of limits.

6	 To approve the amendment of the existing articles of association of the Company.

7	 To ratify the remuneration to Cost Auditor M/s. Sagar & Associates, for the financial year 2019-20.

Resolution No’s.

or failing him

Note:
1.	 This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited either at the Registered Office of the Company at D.NO.1-8-31/1, 

Minister’s Road, Secunderabad, Telangana - 500003, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.
2.	A proxy need not be a member of the company.
3.	 In case the appointer is a body corporate the proxy form should be signed under its seal or be signed by an office or an attorney duly authorized by 

it and an authenticated copy of such authorization should be attached to the proxy form.
4.	 A person can act as a proxy on behalf of such number of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the 

total share capital of the company carrying voting rights. Further a member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company 
carrying voting rights, may appoint a single person as a proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or Member.

5.	 In case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient but names of all the joint holders should be stated.

Signed this _____day of _____2019

Signature of Shareholder						      Signature of Proxy holder			 

Affix
Revenue
Stamps
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KRISHNA INSTITUTE OF MEDICAL SCIENCES LIMITED

CIN: U55101TG1973PLC040558 
Regd.office: # 1-8-31/1, Minister’s Road, Secunderabad - 500003

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Note:

(1) Shareholders/Proxy holders as the case may be are requested to produce the attendance slip duly signed at the 
entrance of the meeting venue. 

(2) Members are requested to advise the change of their address, if any, to the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent, Karvy 
Fintech Private Limited, Karvy Selenium, Tower - B, Plot No. 31 & 32, Financial district, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally 
Mandal, Hyderabad, Telangana – 500032.

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 17th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Thursday, the 
8th day of August 2019, at 4.00 p.m., at “KIMS Hospitals” # 1-8-31/1, Minister’s Road, Secunderabad – 500003.

Name and Address of the Shareholder(s)

If Shareholder(s) please sign here	                                                                         If Proxy please mention and sign here

	 Name of Proxy	 Signature
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•	 Accident & Emergency Care

•	 Anaesthesiology

•	 Centre for Breast Diseases

•	 Cardiology

•	 Cardio Thoracic Surgery

•	 Dermatology & Cosmetology

•	 Dental

•	 Diabetology & Endocrinology

•	 ENT

•	 Epilepsy Centre

•	 Fertility Centre

•	 Genetic Counselling & 
	 Evaluation

•	 Intensive Care

•	 Internal Medicine

•	 Joint Replacement Surgery

•	 Laboratory & Blood Bank

•	 Medical Gastroenterology

•	 Medical Oncology

•	 Neonatology

•	 Nephrology

•	 Neurology

•	 Neurosurgery

•	 Nuclear Medicine

•	 Obstetrics & Gynaecology

•	 Ophthalmology

•	 Organ Transplantation – 
	 Kidney, Liver, Pancreas, 
	 Bone Marrow & Heart

•	 Orthopaedics

•	 Paediatrics

•	 Paediatric Cardiac Surgery

•	 Physiotherapy

•	 Plastic Surgery

•	 Psychology

•	 Psychiatry

•	 Pulmonology

•	 Radiation Oncology

•	 Radiology

•	 Rheumatology

•	 Robotic Surgery Centre

•	 Speech Therapy

•	 Spine Surgery

•	 Surgical Gastroenterology

•	 Surgical Oncology

•	 Urology

•	 Urogynaecology

•	 Vascular Surgery

•	 Wellness Clinic

Our Departments







Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Ltd.
Regd. Office: 1-8-31/1, Minister Road, 
Secunderabad - 500 003, Telangana, India.
Ph: +91-40-4488 5000/5184, Fax: +91 -40-27840980
cs@kimshospitals.com


